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December 19, 2007

To the Honorable John Elias Baldacci, Governor,
The Honorable Members of the Legislature, and
Citizens of the State of Maine

We are pleased to present the State of Maine’saFiéear 2007 (FY2007) Comprehensive Annual Findncia
Report (CAFR) prepared in accordance with Genertlgepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The annual
CAFR, required by Title 5 MRSA § 1547, is compilead published by the Office of the State Contrqi@6C).
The report is the primary means of reporting thate3¢ financial activities. The objective of thisport is to
provide a clear picture of our government as alsjngnified entity, as well as providing traditidriand based
financial statements.

Responsibility

The OSC is responsible for the accuracy, fairnesscampleteness of the financial statements preddntthis
report. The statements have been prepared indamoe with GAAP. To the best of our knowledge halief,

the information presented is accurate in all mategspects and includes all disclosures necessagable the
reader to gain a reasonable understanding of Mafirencial position and activities.

Adherence to Generally Accepted Accounting Principds

As required by State statute, we have prepare@€ &R in accordance with GAAP applicable to State kcal
governments, as promulgated by the GASB. The St voluntarily follows the recommendations oé th
Government Finance Officers Association of the EhitStates and Canada (GFOA) for the contents of
government financial reports.

Format of Report

This CAFR is presented in three sections: Introoiyct Financial and Statistical. The Introductoryctsan
contains this letter including an overview of cutrénitiatives, the list of principal elected angpainted
officials, and the State government organizatiomrch The Financial Section contains: the Independ
Auditor’'s Report on the Basic Financial Statementéanagement’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), whic
provides an introduction, overview and analysistié Basic Financial Statements; the Basic Financial
Statements, which present the government-wide iadnstatements and fund financial statements for
governmental funds, proprietary funds, fiduciarpnda and similar component units, and componentsunit
together with notes to the financial statementggu®ed Supplementary Information other than MD&Ahieh
presents budgetary comparison schedules, schedfilggension funding progress, and information about
infrastructure assets; and the supplemental fimhwoeita, which includes the combining financiatesteents and
schedules.

OFFICELOCATED ON 4TH FLOOR, BURTON M. CROSSBUILDING
PHONE: (207)626-8420 Fax:(207)626-8422
WWW.MAINE .GOV



This letter of transmittal is designed to completmdD&A where the financial analysis is now presehtéhe
State’s MD&A can be found immediately following thedependent Auditor’'s Report from the State Audito
The Statistical Section contains selected trendrinétion, and statistical data on financial, ecoitoand
demographic measures.

Internal Control Structure

The Office of the State Controller prepared thesarftial statements and assumes full responsiliditythe
completeness and reliability of the informationganeted in this report. To provide a reasonablesifasimaking
these representations, the Office of the State rOlbet has established a comprehensive internalrabn
framework that is designed to protect the Statesets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compifécsent
reliable information for the preparation of thet8taf Maine’s financial statements in conformitttwGAAP.

Because the cost of internal controls should noweigh their benefits, the State’s comprehensiaenéwork of
internal controls has been designed to provideorestde rather than absolute assurance that theciada
statements will be free from material misstatement.

As a recipient of federal financial assistanceféateral programs, the State is also responsiblerisuring that
an adequate internal control structure is in plkacensure and document compliance with applicedohes land
regulations related to these federal programs. ifiteenal control structure is subject to periodvaleation by
management and by the State Department of Augitieiof the annual Single Audit.

Independent Auditors

Pursuant to Title 5 MRSA § 243, the State Auditas lperformed an examination of the Basic Financial
Statements in accordance with auditing standaraergy accepted in the United States of AmeriCEhe
auditor’s opinion is presented in the financialtget of this report. The audit involved examiniray a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis@ssin the Basic Financial Statements; assessiag th
accounting principles used and significant estisiabade by management; and, evaluating the ovenalhdial
statement presentation. The State Auditor rendaneahqualified opinion on the Basic Financial &tagnts for
this fiscal year.

Also, pursuant to 8 243 the State Auditor has ua#ten a Single Audit of the State as a whole, toetance
with auditing standards generally accepted in thmetdd States of America and the standards appgc#tl
financial audits contained iGovernment Auditing Sandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, as required by federal law. The standaogierning Single Audit engagements require the taudo
report not only on the fair presentation of thefinial statements, but also on the governmentsnat controls
and compliance with legal requirements involving gdministration of federal awards. This statewetieral
Single Audit Report, including the auditor’s opinitn accordance with generally accepted governraediting
standards, is published separately.

The State Auditor is statutorily mandated to aatlinccounts and other financial records of Stateegnment or
any department or agency of State Government, dineduthe judiciary and the Executive Department o
Governor, except the Governor's Expense Accourd, tanreport annually, and at such other times a&s th
Legislature may require.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

GASB Statement No. 34 requires that managementdeay narrative introduction, overview and analysis
accompany the Basic Financial Statements in the fof MD&A. This letter of transmittal is designed
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjuwncivith it.



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Reporting Entity

The Governor and Legislature govern all funds aoccbants for every executive agency, board, comomnssi
public trust, authority and component unit. That&tof Maine financial reporting entity reflectedthe CAFR,
which is more fully described in Note 1 to the RBa&inancial Statements, includes these funds, @gnc
organizations, boards, commissions, Authorities @agbr component units in accordance with GASBe&siaint
No. 14 as amended by GASB Statement No. 39. Taexreés major component units, 8 nonmajor component
units, one blended component unit, and one fidyc@mponent unit included in the CAFR. The major
component units are discretely presented in thenfiral statements; and the blended componentsimtiuded
as a separate fund in the fund financial statememtse fiduciary component unit is presented in fidaciary
fund and similar component unit financial statersgeatong with the other fiduciary activities of tBéate. The
fiduciary activities are not included in the govwaent-wide financial statements because the respurfcthese
funds are not available to support the State’s pmgrams.

The departments of the primary government recced thaily financial operations in the State accoumsystem
called the Maine Financial and Administrative Statke Information System (MFASIS) operated by thdicaf
of the State Controller.

Budgetary Control

The Governor presents a biennial budget for thee@#rirund and the Special Revenue Funds to theslatgie
for enactment or revision. The State Constitujoavides the Governor a “line item” veto, whichoals an
Executive dollar substitution for those amountsag@oved, as long as an appropriation or allocaisonot
increased (or a deappropriation or deallocatiorredexed) either in the specified line or in any ptive in the
legislative document.

Once passed and signed, the budget becomes timeifihalan for the State for the next bienniuminttludes
proposed expenditures for all departments and &gnaterest and debt redemption charges, andnexpees
for capital projects to be undertaken and execdtethg each fiscal year. The budget also inclu@gipated
revenues and any other means of financing expaeditun accordance with statute, the State Buddeted
must use the projections of the Revenue ForecaGmmgmittee to prepare the General Fund and HigHwand
budgets.

The total General Fund appropriation for each figear of the biennium in the Governor's budgetsigbion to
the Legislature may not exceed the General Funtbppption of the previous fiscal year multiplied bne plus
the average real personal income growth rate, fasedein Title 5 MRSA 8 1665, subsection 1, plus Hdverage
forecasted inflation rate. “Average forecastedatnin rate" means the average forecasted changhein
Consumer Price Index underlying the revenue prgestdeveloped by the Revenue Forecasting Committee
This appropriation limitation may be exceeded omjythe amount of the additional costs or the |lestefal
revenue from the following exceptional circumstaagnfunded or under-funded new federal mandatsseb
in federal revenues or other revenue sources;easizinitiatives or referenda that require incrdaSgate
spending; court orders or decrees that requiretiaddl State resources to comply with the orderdemrees; and
sudden or significant increases in demand for iexjshtate services that are not the result of lagi®@ changes
that increased eligibility or increased benefitheTGovernor may designate exceptional circumstatizgsare
not explicitly defined, but meet the intent of tlgtatute. "Exceptional circumstances" means aoraséen
condition or conditions over which the Governor ahé Legislature have little or no control. Excepal
circumstances do not apply to new programs or pragexpansions that go beyond existing programriisand
operation.



The State maintains budgetary control at the adcand line category levels. The head of each dejeat and
agency of State government must submit a work prago the Bureau of the Budget for the ensuingafigear.
The work program is classified to show allotmemiguested for specific amounts for personal seryicagital
expenditures, and all other departmental expen$égse are the levels at which appropriations dlodadions
are approved by the Legislature, principally thfoug quarterly allotment system. The State Cormroll
authorizes all expenditures to be made from theumtsoavailable on the basis of these allotments raoid
otherwise.

Budget revisions during the year, reflecting prograhanges or intradepartmental administrative teass
require the approval of the State Budget Officed éime Governor. Except in specific instances, dhly
Legislature may transfer appropriations betweeradepents. Agency requests for increases in apiatigrs,
allocations, or funding for new programs are présgio the Legislature as a supplemental budget.

The State uses encumbrance accounting as an exteridormal budgetary control. This requires thatchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments be redoi@eeserve a portion of an appropriation or atamn for
expenditure. Appropriated and allocated balancesasmailable for subsequent expenditure to thengxteat
there are approved encumbrances at the end afad fiear. The State reports encumbrances outsigqatliyear-
end as reservations of fund balances to identibseéhportions of fund balances that are not avaldbt
allocation or expenditure, or that are legally sggted for specific future uses. Unencumbered @piatomns in
the General Fund and in the Highway Fund are achfoeward to a subsequent year only when authorimed
law, otherwise the balances lapse at year-end.

Maine Budget Stabilization Fund

The Maine Budget Stabilization Fund, establisheditte 5 § 1532, to replace the Maine Rainy Day dus a
designation of the unreserved General Fund fundnigal intended to be used when revenues are undgetbu
and critical services must be preserved. The Gmremay also allocate funds from the Budget Stzduilon
Fund for payment of death benefits for law enforertrofficers, firefighters and emergency medicalises
persons.

Balances in the fund do not lapse; but carry fodagach year. The money in the fund may be invesiddany

earnings credited to the fund except when the fsrad its statutory cap. In addition to interemtrengs, the fund
is capitalized at the close of each fiscal yeas.tl#e first priority before any other transfer, 8tate Controller is
required to transfer 35 percent of the unappropdizgurplus of the General Fund, when the fund tsahats

statutory cap. In accordance with statute, sinesettwas no unappropriated surplus in 2007, no feangas

required.

The statutory cap for the fund is 12 percent of tiial General Fund revenue received in the imnelyia
preceding fiscal year. At the close of the fispedr, the cap is based on the revenue receivdtkifisdcal year
being closed. Based on fiscal year 2007 actuak@éirund revenue, the statutory cap at the clbfisaal year
2007 and during fiscal year 2007 was $362.4 milliést the close of fiscal year 2007, the balancéhefMaine
Budget Stabilization Fund was $115.5 million, acréase of $35.6 million over fiscal year 2006. mdductions
to the Maine Budget Stabilization Fund balancerageired when it exceeds the balance of the statetp as a
result of a decline of General Fund revenue.



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Maine continues to grow consistent with the othemwNEngland states. Our State is home to many readwn
institutions of higher education, both public ant/ate, industries, vacation areas, and world fasna@itailers,
keeping the economy relatively stable and an intulfar new ideas and growth. Unemployment hasareed
close to the national average due to these statidiz factors. The State of Maine with an inteioral
reputation for recreational, cultural, historicableeducational institutions remains a significgrake of the New
England economy. Maine’s economy remains divegifi

Inflation continued to rise though the past yeahe Consumer Price Index rose by 2.6 percent fndgn2D06 to
July 2007; however, fuel and utilities prices rosech faster. The rise in oil prices to over $%eaarel in late
fall has put pressure on both household and gowenhivudgets. Sustained oil prices in excess ofpfg@Marrel
will impose significant challenges to both houselsand governments during the winter heating season

Personal income continues to rise in Maine fadtantinflation. According to the latest statistiosiable,
personal income is estimated to have risen by 8®8emt in calendar year 2007. The moderate graw2007
and 2006 is in contrast to the much slower growtBd05 when the state was affected by a numberesfts, the
most significant of which was the Base Realignnaard Closure Commission (BRAC) process. Unemploymen
has hovered around the national average througtheutyear. The rate in Maine stood at 4.8 percant i
September of 2007, which is slightly above theaoreti rate of 4.7 percent.

NEW ACOUNTING STANDARD

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board Stateie. 45, which sets accounting and financial repg
standards by employers for postemployment beneftisr than pensions, is effective beginning indisgear
2008. The term other postemployment benefits (OPEB8udes postemployment healthcare benefits ahdrot
types of postemployment benefits, such as liferasce. This new accounting standard will requies $tiate to
measure and disclose its liability for the OPEB #mel status of its efforts to fund that liability its fiscal year
2008 financial reports. The State’s independenteaagt has prepared valuations of the health caresflien
liabilities for the State Employee and Teacherdir@e Health Care Fund. The actuarial valuatioehined the
State’s annual required contribution (ARC) necesdar fully fund the OPEB and compare it to the attu
contribution paid. The difference is the Net OPEBIli@ation to be reported in the government-wideaficial
statements. See Management’s Discussion and Asdtysiurther details.

Component units and independent authorities oStiage will perform their own valuations as the &tabes not
assume the risk or financial burden for their Healre costs. The State has established an IrdeloGaust in
law, PL2007, Chapter 240, Part RRR, to accountdtiree health. The Trust is jointly administergdthe State
Controller and Treasurer who have the daily resipditees for managing the operations trust and Maine
State Retirement System who has the investmentomegplity. The State of Maine will fund the ARC
incrementally over a ten year period, reachingfiutiding by year 10 of the 30 year amortizationhaf unfunded
liability.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board StaterNe. 43 sets the financial reporting standards fo
postemployment benefit plans other than pensiomspl@he term plans refers to trust or other furits t
accumulate assets to finance the OPEB, and berstgaid as they come due. The requirements of thi
statement are effective beginning with fiscal y2a807. At this time the State of Maine administelBEB
benefits for health insurance through a self-insceafund under the supervision of the Commissioofer
Administrative and Financial Services for the pwpof accumulating funds to satisfy the ongoingeetpost-
employment benefit costs for state employees amdhtrs, excluding pensions and benefits otherwise
appropriated by statute. All funds remitted to 8tate as a subsidy on behalf of the members oktiree health
plan for employer-sponsored qualified prescriptanig plans pursuant to the Medicare PrescriptiongDr
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Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 will bepdsited into this fund, as well as any approregiby
the legislature to fund retiree post-employmentdbiés other than pensions.

Funding the ARC for retiree health benefits wil/aan effect on resources available for future letglg

CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS AND INITIATIVES

The First Regular Session of the 123rd Legislatsea part of Public Law 2007, Chapter 240, enatited
Governor’s initiative making sweeping reform in theministrative structure of local school districihe
legislation will have long lasting effects on thelidery of administrative service to schools. Tkéorm known
as “School Consolidation” proposed to reduce thmler of local school districts from 240 to no méran 80
districts. The consolidation of school administratdistricts is the most far reaching and significiegislation
proposed or enacted since the Sinclair Act of 18&7 created the School Administrative Districtteys.

Also enacted in Public Law 2007, Chapter 240, whasastablishment of an Irrevocable Trust to accéamand
invest funds set aside to amortize the unfundebilii@s of the state employee, teachers, and goamid
municipal firefighters and law enforcement persdrpeeticipating in the plan. The initial deposit e trust is
expected to amount to $90.0 million.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Cash Management

The State pools cash for a variety of State agseramel public sector entities. Interest earned aegocash is
allocated to the various funds, generally basetheir average equity balances. In accordance waéttute, the
Treasurer of State may deposit State funds in drtheobanking institutions organized under the lafghis
State, and any national bank or federal savingd@ad association located in the State. All Stataey in any
depository of State Government shall be to theicdhe State but the Treasurer of State shallwithdraw
any of the funds except upon the authority of tteeSController.

The Treasurer of State may invest funds that exaeecent obligations, with the concurrence of theat&
Controller or the Commissioner of Administrativedafinancial Services, and the consent of the Gaveithe
list of approved pool investments includes: U.SeaBury Bills, Notes, Bonds and Agency Securitiestam
secured repurchase agreements, prime commercialr,pegx-exempt obligations, banker’'s acceptanced, a
certain secured shares of an investment comparstesgd under the Federal Investment Company A&ddD.

Debt Administration

When issuing General Obligation Bonds, the Statelahe pledges its full faith and credit to rephg financial
obligation. Unless certain tax revenue streamsspeeifically restricted, states typically pledgeddltheir tax-
raising powers to secure the obligations. The méajand rating agencies regularly assess the capaoity
willingness of the State to repay its general @il@n debt. Moody'’s Investors Service, Standarda®i, and
FitchRatings make their assessments, in large Ipadxamining four basic analytical areas:

* Economy

* Financial Performance and Flexibility
* Debt Burden

* Administration

The economic base is the most critical element eterdnining the rating. Growth and diversity in the
demographics, tax base, and employment base dbttite over the last decade are indicators of fujuoeth
prospects and debt repayment capabilities. Gegerdthtes with higher income levels and diversenenoc
bases have superior debt repayment capabilitiesaasmdetter protected from sudden shocks or unésgec
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volatility in the economy. Because a strong econatogs not always ensure a State’s ability to meét d
payments, the State’s financial management andmeaihce are also key factors.

Financial analysis involves several factors, inolgd accounting and reporting methods; revenue and
expenditure patterns; annual operating and budgearformance; leverage and equity positions; budgel
financial planning; and contingency obligationse$a factors present a clear indication of the trarstrengths
and weaknesses of the State. The rating agenmed/ses of these factors provide the frameworkjddging
Maine’s capacity to manage economic, political, Andncial uncertainties.

viii



Following is a history of Maine’s credit rating®im three of the major rating agencies, and a lspfanation of
their meanings:

Standard & Poor’s Year Rating
“AAA” is the highest Issuer Credit Rating assigrigdStandard 1997 AA+
& Poor's. An obligor rated “AAA” has EXTREMELY stngy 1998 AA+
capacity to meet its financial commitments. Anigii rated 1999 AA+
“AA” has VERY strong capacity to meet its financial 2000 AA+
commitments. It differs from the highest ratedigdss only in 2001 AA+
small degree. Ratings from “AA” to “CCC” may be dified 2002 AA+
by the addition of a plus (+) or minus (-) signsieow relative 2003 AA+
standing within the major rating categories. 2004 AA
2005 AA-
2006 AA-
2007 AA

Moody's Investors Service

Moody's is one of the few major rating agencies theasures Year Rating
total expected credit loss over the life of theusiy, assessing 1997 Aa3*
both the likelihood that the issuer will defaultdathe amount 1998 Aa2
of loss after a default occurs. “Aaa” rated boads judged to 1999 Aa2
be of the best quality. Generally referred togk &dge," they 2000 Aa2
carry the smallest degree of risk. “Aa” rated boade judged 2001 Aa2
to be of high quality by all standards and togetiwéh the 2002 Aa2
“Aaa” group they comprise what is generally knowsragh 2003 Aa2
grade bonds. Moody's applies one of three nuneriodifiers 2004 Aa2
to each generic rating classification from “Aa”“®@aa.” The 2005 Aa3
modifier 1 indicates that the issue ranks at tiyldai end of its 2006 Aa3
generic rating category; the modifier 2 indicatemia-range 2007 Aa3

ranking; and the modifier 3 indicates that the ésganks at the
lower end of its generic category.
* Refinement of Aa rating, not a

downgrade

FitchRatings
“AAA” indicates obligations that have the highestting Year Ratin
assigned by FitchRatings on its national ratinglescaThe 1997 AA
capacity for timely repayment of principal and ne&t is 1998 AA
considered extremely strong. “AA” indicates obtigas for 1999 AA
which capacity for timely repayment of principaldainterest is 2000 AA+
very strong. Obligations rated “A” indicate thaétbapacity for 2001 AA+
timely repayment of principal and interest is sgarlative to 2002 AA+
other obligors. However, adverse changes in basjne 2003 AA+
economic or financial conditions are more likelyafbect the 2004 AA+
capacity for timely repayment than for obligatioinshigher 2005 AA
rated categories. 2006 AA

2007 AA



Various agencies and Authorities, the Maine Tedkin@ollege System, and the University of Maine &yst
issue revenue and/or lease—backed appropriatiodsbonhese obligations are supported solely by¢kenues
received by the issuing entities and the Stateishligated for such debt, nor is the full faitidacredit of the
State pledged for such debt. More detailed infoienaabout long-term obligations and moral obligas may
be found in Notes 11 and 15, respectively, of tharfcial statements.

Risk Management

In general, the State is “self-insured” for headthd dental insurance, worker’'s compensation, fatility,
vehicle liability, marine and aircraft, propertyskes, and retiree health insurance for State empdownnd
teachers. The Risk Management Division’s actigitieclude analysis of and control over insuranceecage
and risk exposure. Risk Management funds the obgiroviding claims servicing and claims payment by
charging premiums to agencies based on a revigasiflosses and estimated losses for the curreintpe

OTHER INFORMATION

Acknowledgements and Conclusion

State government continues to have many accompdistenof which it can be proud. Consistent withwisgon

of Governor Baldacci to improve and enhance theafiadministration of governmental operations, @fgce of

the State Controller continues to improve and eefta skills to meet the challenges of financiahagement in
the 2f' century. The Office provides assistance to matsteSagencies to help insure the integrity and
accountability of the programs they deliver to Mg citizens. We strive to find solutions to th&at8's
financial challenges by partnering with financiatigprogram managers ensuring that the best sotuéicnfound

to our many challenges.

At the close of Fiscal Year 2007 on Jund"3te Office of State Controller's officially reéid the MFASIS
accounting system that had served the State of néi@ince 1989. July 1, 2007 saw the successful
implementation of an integrated financial managersgstem for State government, AdvantageME. Tlséesy
integrates treasury functions, purchasing, gerledgler accounting, cost allocation, fixed asseist and grant
accounting, and financial reporting. The finanecr@lnagement system also provides the State withtegrated
data analysis tool that will assist agencies téeb@hanage and account for their resources.

In addition, the Office of the State Controller sessfully implemented an Employee Self Serviceesysthat
allows employees control over their personal infation, benefit selection, and payroll deductioiifie system
will, in time, deliver the employee’s payroll adeito their desktop electronically.

These new systems support the Administration’s cehgmsive consolidation of backbone services byigig
employees with the very best tools to increase thasrall productivity and effectiveness.

Although we face budgetary challenges as we mowari the next biennium, the State of Maine has ewrk
diligently to improve funding of its two major reses, the Budget Stabilization Fund and Workingi@pThe
Governor and the legislature have worked coopeigtitogether to build reserves, at a zero balan@003, to
approximately $156 million.

In an environment where economic resources araeldrand agencies are coping with budget constraims
challenge of maintaining effective controls is deeathan ever. We will continue to partner withclea
department, at its highest levels, to ensure thattdols are available to help each agency astessks and
target controls to manage those risks effectivaly aithin its budgetary constraints whenever pdssib



Each year the preparation of the CAFR requires the efforts of the finance people throughout the State from
virtually all agencies, departments and component units. We sincerely appreciate the dedicated efforts of all of
these individuals. Iam especially proud of the dedication and contributions of the staff of the Office of the State
Controller, who each day makes a contribution to maintaining the public’s trust in our financial operations. Their
efforts culminate in the CAFR each year, and for the sixth consecutive year we have achieved an unqualified
opinion from our auditors.

Sincerely,

Edward A. Karass, CGFM
State Controller

T £ S

Terry E. Brann, CPA
Deputy State Controller

Brenda L. Palmer, CPA
Principal Financial Management Coordinator
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STATE OF MAINE
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

66 STATE HOUSE STATION RICHARD H. FOOTE, CPA

AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333-0066 DEPUTY STATE AUDITOR
: CAROL A. LEHTO, CPA, CIA
TEL: (207) 624-6250 DEPUTY, SINGLE AUDIT
NERIA R. DOUGLASS, JD, CIA :
STATE AUDITOR FAX: (207) 624-6273 MICHAEL J. POULIN, CIA

DIRECTOR OF AUDIT AND ADMINISTRATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the President of the Senate and the
Speaker of the House of Representatives

We have audited the accompanying financial staténafithe governmental activities, the businesgtyp
activities, the aggregate discretely presented oot units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of Maine, & and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which
collectively comprise the State’s basic financitdtements as listed in the table of contents. &hes
financial statements are the responsibility of 8tate of Maine’s management. Our responsibilitiois
express opinions on these financial statementsdbaseour audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the following component units: FiraAathority of Maine, Maine Educational Center for
the Deaf and Hard of Hearing, Loring Developmenthawity, Maine Educational Loan Authority, Maine
Governmental Facilities Authority, Maine Health aH@gher Educational Facilities Authority, Maine
Municipal Bond Bank, Maine Port Authority, MaineaB Housing Authority, Maine Public Employees
Retirement System, Maine Community College Systdfaine Technology Institute, Northern New
England Passenger Rail Authority, and UniversityMafine System. We also did not audit the financial
statements of the NextGen College Investing Plamesé& financial statements reflect the following
percentages of total assets and revenues or atdfdhe indicated opinion units:

Percent of Opinion

Percent of Opinion Unit's Unit’s Total
Opinion Unit Total Assets Revenues/Additions
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component 100% 100%
Units
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 96% 63%

Those financial statements were audited by othdit@s whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us and our opinions, insofar as they relate toatmeunts included for these entities, are basechen t
reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with audisii@sndards generally accepted in the United Stdtes o
America. Those standards require that we planpartbrm our audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are fremaikrial misstatement. An audit includes examining
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amountsliaolosures in the financial statements. Antaaidb
includes assessing the accounting principles usddignificant estimates made by management, ds wel
as evaluating the overall financial statement priegmn. We believe that our audit and the repofts
other auditors provide a reasonable basis for pimians.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the repafitsther auditors, the financial statements reféte
above present fairly, in all material respects, thepective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggte discretely presented component units, eacbrmaj



fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatibthe State of Maine, as of June 30, 2007, and the
respective changes in financial position and, wiag@icable, cash flows, thereof for the year terded
in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis, budgetamparison schedules and related notes,
information about infrastructure assets reporteidgushe modified approach, and information on the
schedules of funding progress and employer cortobs for the State Retirement Plan and the
Participating Local District Plan are not a reqdirpart of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accountingqples generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedurehich consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measuremenpraséntation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the infotioa and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forntipgpions on the financial statements that colledyiv
comprise the State of Maine’s basic financial stetets. The supplementary information — combining
statements and individual fund statements, adlistéhe table of contents, are presented for pepof
additional analysis and are not a required patthi@fbasic financial statements. The combining states
and individual fund statements have been subjeaotéue auditing procedures applied by us and therot
auditors in the audit of the basic financial statata and, in our opinion, based on our audit aed th
reports of the other auditors, are fairly statedalinmaterial respects in relation to the basi@ficial
statements taken as a whole. The introductory@eetnd the statistical section, as listed in tidetaf
contents, have not been subjected to the auditiogepures applied by us and the other auditorhen t
audit of the basic financial statements and acogigi we express no opinion on them.

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statemethis,State corrected the reporting of certain ehpit
assets and reduced General Fund beginning nes éssatcorrection to receivables.

Neria R. Douglass, JD, CIA

State Auditor

December 19, 2007



MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the State of Maine’'s annual finaheeport presents the State’s discussion and sisabf
financial performance during the year ended June2807. Please read it in conjunction with thengraittal
letter at the front of this report and with thet8® financial statements, which follow this sentio

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide:

The State’s net assets increased by 8.9 percenttfre previous fiscal year. Net assets of Goventate
Activities increased by $325.6 million, while nedsats of Business-type Activities increased by %$24.
million. The State’s assets exceeded its liabgitby $4.3 billion at the close of fiscal year 2007
Component units reported net assets of $1.9 bjlkonincrease of $129.6 million (7.3 percent) friva
previous year. The reclassification of MHHEFA t@@mponent unit from fiduciary reporting accounts
for $34.5 million of the increase.

Fund level:

At the end of the fiscal year, the State’s govermiaiefunds reported combined ending fund balanc¢es o
$272.9 million, an increase of $59.5 million frometprevious year. The General Fund’s total fund
balance was a negative $156.3 million, an improvenod $23.4 million from the previous year, as
restated. The Highway Fund total fund balance ials@eased by $17.8 million.

The proprietary funds reported net assets at ygho£$706.1 million, an increase of $83.9 millionhis
increase is due to several factors: an increasieeiiRetiree Health Insurance Fund of $41.9 mi|liom
increase in the Employment Security Fund of $12i1Bam, an increase in the Alcoholic Beverages Fund
of $12.5 million, an increase in the Workers’ Comgegtion Fund of $13.7 million, the creation of the
Transportation Facilities Fund for $10.1 milliorffset by a decrease in the Employee Health Ins@ranc
Fund of $11.8 million

Long-term Debt:

The State’s liability for general obligation bordiscreased by $18.8 million during the fiscal yedrich
represents the difference between new issuancepagmdents of outstanding debt. During the yea, th
State issued $61.0 million in bonds and made pral@ayments of $79.8 million.

Additional information regarding the government-ejidund level, and long-term debt activities canfdaend
beginning on page 7.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introductiorthi® State of Maine’s basic financial statementsiclvtare
comprised of three components: 1) government-iltgncial statements, 2) fund financial statemeats] 3)
notes to the financial statements. This repom at:ntains other supplementary information in addito the
basic financial statements.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report informatioouathe State as a whole using accounting metbioukar

to those used by private-sector companies. Thei8tnt of Net Assets presents all of the Statesetasand
liabilities, with the difference between the twpoeted aqet assets. Over time, increases and decreases in net
assets are an indicator of whether the financisitjon is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents informatiomwgimg how the State’s net assets changed duringmibet
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assetseperted as soon as the underlying events givsgta the change



occur, regardless of the timing of related caskwdlo Therefore, revenues and expenses are repartibese
statements for some items that will only resultash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncdkectaxes and
earned but unused leave).

Both government-wide statements report three aietbvi

Governmental activities - Most basic services, such as health & human aesyieducation, governmental support
& operations, justice & protection, and transpaotatare included in this category. The Legislatuhediciary
and the general operations of the Executive degatsrfall within the Governmental Activities. Imoe taxes,
sales and use taxes, and State and federal girzenisdé most of these activities.

Business-type activities - The State charges fees to customers to help @lver most of the costs of certain
services it provides. Operating costs not covénedustomer fees are subsidized by the General.Funttery
tickets, transportation services, and the StateEmployment compensation services are examplesiindss-
type activities.

Component units - Although legally separate, component units arpartant because the State is financially
accountable for these entities. The State hasitield” one component unit, the Maine Governmentallikas
Authority (MGFA) with Governmental Activities as sieribed above. Maine reports 14 other componeitd as
discretely presented component units of the Séatd,one component unit is reported with the Stdtdigciary
funds. Complete financial statements of the indisidcomponent units may be obtained directly frdmairt
respective administrative offices as shown in Nlo£eto the financial statements.

Government-wide statements are reported utilizingeeonomic resources measurement focus and fulli@cc
basis of accounting. The following summarizesitheact of the transition from modified accrual tdl faccrual
accounting:

» Capital assets used in governmental activitiesnateaeported on governmental fund statements kit ar
included on government-wide statements

» Certain tax revenues that are earned, but notablajl are reported as revenues in the Governmental
Activities, but are reported as deferred revenuthergovernmental fund statements

» Other long-term assets that are not available o fpa current period expenditures are deferred in
governmental fund statements, but not deferredhemgbvernment-wide statements

» Internal service funds are reported as GovernmeXatvities, but reported as proprietary funds fe t
fund financial statements

* Governmental fund long-term liabilities, such agtiieates of participation, pension obligations,
compensated absences, bonds and notes payablethansl appear as liabilities only in the government
wide statements

» Capital outlay spending results in capital assetshe government-wide statements, but is recorded a
expenditures on the governmental fund statements

* Proceeds from bonds, notes and other long-terrmding arrangements result in liabilities on the
government-wide statements, but are recorded ar dithancing sources on the governmental fund
statements



* Net asset balances are allocated as follows:

Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt; are capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, and reduced by outstanding balarmebdnds, notes, and other debt attributed to
the acquisition, construction or improvement ofsthassets

Restricted Net Assets are those with constraints placed on the use bgread sources (creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations @veyrnments) or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislatiamd

Unrestricted Net Assets are net assets that do not meet any of the alestections.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detditormation about the State’s most significantdan Funds
are fiscal and accounting entities with self-balagcsets of accounts that the State uses to kaek &if specific
revenue sources and spending for particular pusposSehe State’s funds are divided into three catego-
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — and diffierent measurement focuses and bases of acogunti

Governmental funds: Most of the basic services are included in govemtal funds, which generally focus on
how money flows into and out of those funds and llatances left at year-end that are available dduré
spending. The governmental fund statements prowidetailed short-term view that helps determinetivér
there are more or fewer financial resources thatlE spent in the near future to finance the prograf the
State. The governmental fund statements focusapilyyon the sources, uses, and balance of cufirgsmcial
resources and often have a budgetary orientatibmese funds are reported using a flow of curremarfcial
resources measurement focus and the modified ddeases of accounting. Because this informatioesdnot
encompass the additional long-term focus of theegawent-wide statements, a separate reconciligtiondes
additional information that explains the relatioipskor differences) between them. The governmefutatls
consist of the General Fund, special revenue, agmbjects, and permanent funds.

Proprietary funds. When the State charges customers for the seritipesvides, whether to outside customers
or to other agencies within the State, these sesvéce generally reported in proprietary fundsopRetary funds
(enterprise and internal service) apply the acchasis of accounting utilized by private sectorihesses.
Enterprise funds report activities that provideigs and services to the general public. An exarigthe State
Lottery Fund. Internal service funds report atieda that provide supplies and services to theeStaither
programs and activities — such as the State’s Pé5iating & Supply Fund. Internal service furai® reported
as Governmental Activities on the government-witdgesnents.

Fiduciary funds: The State is the trustee or fiduciary for ast&is belong to others. The State is responsilsle fo
ensuring that the assets reported in these furedss®d only for their intended purposes and byeth@msvhom the
assets belong. These funds include pension amd ethployee benefit trusts administered by the Bl&nblic
Employees Retirement System, a component unitafgipurpose trusts, and agency funds. Fiduciarg<are
reported using the accrual basis of accountinge $tate excludes these activities from the goventwwele
financial statements because these assets aretegstn purpose and do not represent discretioaasgts of the
State to finance its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide amfdit information that is essential to a full ungtanding of the
data provided in both the government-wide and fiumehcial statements.



Required Supplementary Information

The required supplementary information includesdetdry comparison schedules for the General Fuid an
major special revenue funds. Also included aresi@nd a reconciliation of fund balance from thddgatiary
basis to fund balance determined according to gdlgpeaccepted accounting principles. This sectaso
includes schedules of funding progress for cerf@nsion trust funds and condition and maintenarata d
regarding certain portions of the State’s infrastinee.

Other Supplementary Information
Other supplementary information includes combinifigancial statements for non-major governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds. These fundsadded together, by fund type, and presented ilesc@umns

in the basic financial statements. Budgetary corspa schedules by agency are also included fogémeral
fund, the highway fund, federal funds, and othercsd revenue fund.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE AS A WHOLE
The State's net assets increased by 8.9 percgat3dillion at June 30, 2007, as detailed in Taklel and A-2.

Table A- 1: Condensed Statement of Net Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2007 2006* 2007 2006 2007 2006*
Current and other $2,005,451 $2,220,676 $530,972  $526,219  $2,536,42%2,746,89
noncurrent assets
Capital assets 3,934,17. 3,742,42! 90,36 79,03( 4,024,53. 3,821,45
Total Assets 5,939,622 5,963,101 621,333 605,249 6,560,955 6,568,350
Current liabilities 1,389,939 1,735,627 39,703 35,985 1,429,642 1,771,6}2
Long-term liabilities 781,37: 784,75t 75,64¢ 87,50( 857,01¢ 872,25
Total Liabilities 2,171,312 2,520,385 115,349 123,485 2,286,661 2,643,879
Net assets (deficit):
Investment in capital assets,
net of related debt 3,519,371 3,347,672 90,361 79,030 3,609,732 3,426,792
Restricted 198,786 172,449 489,677 476,832 688,463 649,281
Unrestricted (deficit) 50,153 (77,405) (74,054) (74,098) (23,901) (151,50%)
Total Net Assets $ 3,768,310 $ 3,442,716 $ 505984 $ 481,764 $ 4,274,294 $ 3,924,48(

* As Restated
Changes in Net Assets

The State's fiscal year 2007 revenues totaled Blidon. (See Table A-2) Taxes and operating tgaand
contributions accounted for most of the State'semee by contributing 49.8 percent and 34.5 percent,
respectively, of every dollar raised. The remaind@me from charges for services and other mistadlas
sources.



The total cost of all programs and services totfléd billion for the year 2007.

(See Table A-Z)hese

expenses are predominantly (70 percent) relatbgatth & human services and education activitiEse State's
governmental support & operations activities actedrior 7 percent of total costs. Total net assei®ased by

$349.8 million.
Table A-2 - Changes in Net Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)
Governmental Business-typ Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2007 2006* 2007 200¢ 2007 2006*
Revenue
Program Revenue
Charges for Servic $ 406,58 $ 412,03 $ 463,51t $ 450,117 $ 870,100 $ 862,15!
Operating 2,361,822 2,536,85 21,38¢ 20,66 2,383,21. 2,557,521
Capital Grants/Contributio 6,434 24,26¢ 4,14: 10,577 24,26t
General Revenue - -
Taxe! 3,448,12 3,360,54¢ 3,448,12 3,360,54!
Othe 211,16¢ 172,40: 2 448 211,17( 172,84!
Total Revenue: 6,434,13 6,506,10:¢ 489,04¢ 471,22¢ 6,923,18 6,977,33.
Expense
Governmental Activitie:
Governmental Suppc 460,31t 537,71 460,31! 537,71
Educatio! 1,622,65. 1,494,43¢ 1,622,65 1,494 ,43
Health & Human Servici 2,989,00: 3,167,52: 2,989,00 3,167,52.
Justice & Protectic 358,71¢ 340,28 358,71!¢ 340,28:
Transportation Safe 267,99: 322,43t 267,99: 322,431
Othe 414,59 392,18¢ 414,59 392,18!
Interes 36,24¢ 36,87: 36,24t 36,87
Business-Type Activitie - -
Employment Securi 120,21t 103,86 120,21! 103,86°
Lottery 180,72: 179,62¢ 180,72. 179,621
Military Equip. Maint 35,14( 65,01: 35,14( 65,01
Dirigo Healtt 65,17¢ 47,12: 65,17¢ 47,12
Othel 22,59t 11,96 22,59! 11,96
Total Expenses 6,149,52: 6,291,45 423,85( 407,597 6,573,37. 6,699,05.
Excess (Deficiency) before
Special ltems and Transfer 284,61" 214,64" 65,19¢ 63,63 349,81« 278,27!
Special Item (31,212 31,785 57¢
Transfer 40,97¢ 51,70¢ (40,979 (51,708 - -
Increase (Decrease) in Net As: 325,59 235,14 24,22( 43,71( 349,81« 278,85.
Net Assets, beginning of yea 3,442,714 3,207,57. 481,76« 438,05¢ 3,924,48 3,645,62'
Ending Net Asse $ 3,768,310 $ 3442,71« $ 50598: $ 481,76 $ 4,274,29. $ 3,924,48

* As Restated




Governmental Activities

Revenues for the State's Governmental Activitiealed $6.4 billion while total expenses equaledLdgllion.
The increase in net assets for Governmental Aets/iivas $325.6 million in 2007. This is due, priitya to
decreases in accrued expenditures for health ammservices and transportation related activitéfset by
increases in education spending.

The users of the State's programs financed $40@I®mof the cost. The federal and State govemtne
subsidized certain programs with grants and cautiohs of $2.4 billion. $3.6 billion of the Stateiet costs were
financed by taxes and other miscellaneous revenue.

Table A-3: Total Sources of Revenues for Governmental Aetisifor Fiscal Year 2007

Grants & Individual Income
Contributions Taxes
37% 23%

Charges fo
Services

6% Sales & Use Taxes

18%

Other

4% Other Taxes
12%

Table A-4: Total Expenses for Governmental Activities fosddl Year 2007

Governmental Support
Interest 7%
1%

Arts, Heritage &
Culture
<1%

Transportation Safety
4%

Natural Resources

3% Business Licensing

Regulation
1%
Economic
Development &
Workforce Training
3%

Justice & Protection
6%

Education

26%
Health & Humar

Services
49%




Business-type Activities

Revenues for the State's Business-type Activitealed $489.0 million while expenses totaled $428iBion.
The increase in net assets for Business-type Aiettvivas $24.2 million in 2007, due mainly to tlodlection of
$30.4 million in Savings Offset Payments by Dirigealth.

Table A-5 presents the cost of State BusinessAgtiwities: employment security, alcoholic beveragmttery,
military equipment maintenance, Dirigo Health ariteo. The table also shows each activity's net (¢otal cost
less fees generated by the activities and intergowental aid provided for specific programs). Tret cost
shows the financial burden placed on the Statefsaigers by each of these functions.

Table A-5: Net Cost of Business-Type Activities
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total Cost Net (Cost) Revenue
Category 2007 2006 2007 2006
Employment Security ~ $ 120,215 $ 103,867 $ 13,991 19$107
Alcoholic Beverages - - 12,525 12,525
Lottery 180,722 179,628 50,906 51,334
Military Equip. Maint. 35,140 65,013 (4,822) 5,414
Dirigo Health 65,178 47,122 (1,839) (21,236)
Other 23,595 11,967 (5,562) (3,813)
Total $ 423,850 $ 407,597 $65,199 $ 63,631

The cost of all Business-type Activities this years $423.9 million. The users of the State's @nogr financed
most of the cost. The State's net revenue froninBaes-type Activities was $65.2 million, with thettery
making up $50.9 million of the total. The StatBssiness-type Activities transferred $41.0 milligret) to the
Governmental Activities in statutorily required ptaoransfers.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S FUNDS

Table A-6: Governmental Fund Balances
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fund 2007 2006* Change
General $(156,349) $ (179,739) $ 23,390
Highway 27,559 9,712 17,847
Federal 37,595 22,190 15,405
Other Special Revenue 263,983 258,033 5,950
Other Governmental 100,098 103,174 (3,076)
Total $ 272,886 $ 213,370 $59,516
* Asrestated

The State’s governmental fund balances increasedgdfiscal year 2007 from fiscal year 2006 by $bhillion.
The General Fund’s increase was due mainly to eedse in the Medicaid incurred but not paid (IBMBgrual
of approximately $76 million. The Highway Fund fubdlance increased by $17.8 million from fiscalry2@06.
Operationally, transportation, safety and develapnexpenditures were $74 million lower in fiscalbye007.
Fewer transportation projects undertaken duringafigear 2007 accounted for most of the difference.

Budgetary Highlights

For the 2007 fiscal year, the final legally adopbedigeted expenditures for the General Fund amdunt&3.1
billion, an increase of about $166 million from theginal legally adopted budget of approximate®/billion.

Actual expenditures on a budgetary basis amoumtegproximately $62.9 million less than those aritieal in

the final budget; however, after deducting the emoered obligations and other commitments that @athe due
in fiscal year 2008, $17.1 million of unobligataghfls remained as a result of a continuing conceatfedlt to

control spending, primarily in the broad categodé®ducation and social services. Actual reveraxeeeded
final budget forecasts by $33.7 million.

As a part of the final budget adjustment for Fis¢ahr 2007, the Legislature approved a direct gmmton to

the State’s Budget Stabilization Fund in the amair35.6 million. The additional appropriation iresed the
balance in the Fund to $115.5 million as of Juneg2B07. This item is further explained in Note 2\aftes to the
Financial Statements.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

By the end of fiscal year 2007, the State had riyugh billion in a broad range of capital assets]uding land,
infrastructure, improvements, buildings, equipme®ticles and intangibles. During fiscal year 200i¢ State
acquired or constructed more than $346 million afital assets. The most significant impact ontehpissets
during the year resulted from continued constructand rehabilitation of roads and bridges, and majo
construction and renovation of State-owned fae#iti More detailed information about the Statefstabassets
and significant construction commitments is preseiih Notes 8 and 15 to the financial statements.

Table A-6: Capital Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities  Primary Government
2007 2006~ 2007 2006 2007 2006~

Land $ 424331 % 394,069 $ 38417 $ 38,161 $ 462,748 $ 432,230
Buildings 560,306 506,881 9,769 9,322 570,075 516,203
Equipment 248,130 254,007 43,385 20,220 291,515 274,227
Improvements 18,246 17,233 61,218 61,218 79,464 4518,
Infrastructure 3,023,973 2,861,522 - - 3,023,973 862,522
Construction in Progress 10,230 6,818 3,613 925 13,843 7,743
Total Capital Assets 4,285,216 4,040,530 156,402 9,846 4,441,618 4,170,376
Accumulated Depreciation (351,045) (298,105) (66,041) (50,816) _ (417,086) _ (348.921)
Capital Assets, net $3,934,17% 3,742,425 $90,361 $79,030 $4,024,532 $ 3,821,455

* Asrestated
Modified Approach for Infrastructure

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the Statedupted an alternative process for recording dégirec
expense on selected infrastructure assets — higharay bridges. Under this alternative methodredeto as the
modified approach, the State expenses certain emginte and preservation costs and does not report
depreciation expense. Ultilization of this approesdjuires the State to: 1) maintain an asset managesystem

that includes an up-to-date inventory of infrastuoe assets; 2) perform condition assessments ub@ata
measurement scale and document that the infrasteuassets are being preserved at or above thé&iocordvel
established; and 3) estimate the annual amountsnilnst be expended to preserve and maintain thastnéicture

at the condition level established by the States Ighg as the State meets these requirements,dalilyoas or
improvements to infrastructure are capitalized ahdther maintenance and preservation costs grensed.

Highways and bridges are included in the Statefimstructure. There are 8,834 highway miles 0847 lane
miles within the State. Bridges have a deck afeldl & million square feet among 2,965 total brelg@he State
has established a policy to maintain its highwaysnaaverage condition assessment of 60. At JOn2@®7, the
actual average condition was 76. Its policy fdddes is an average sufficiency rating conditiopeasment of
60. The actual average condition for bridges wasat7June 30, 2007. Preservation costs for figeat 2007
totaled $73.3 million compared to estimated prest@wa costs of $61.0 million.

Transportation bonds, approved by referendum,ssteed to fund improvements to highways and bridgedshe
amount authorized by Chapter 462, PL 2005, $27anillvas spent during FY 2007.
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Additional information on infrastructure assets bafound in Required Supplementary InformationlfRS

Long-Term Debt

The State Constitution authorizes general obligatomg-term borrowing, with 2/3 approval of the isigture
and ratification by a majority of the voters; anehgral obligation short-term notes, of which then@pal may
not exceed an amount greater than 10% of all moappsopriated, authorized and allocated by the dlatyire
from undedicated revenues to the General Fund aditated revenues to the Highway Fund for thatfigear,
or greater than 1% of the total valuation of that&of Maine, whichever is the lesser.

At year-end, the State had $920 million in genekdigation and other long-term debt outstandingoré/idetailed
information about the State's long-term liabilitiepresented in Note 11 to the financial statesient

Table A-7: Outstanding Long-Term Debt
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
General Obligation
Bonds $ 448,760 $ 467,550 $ - $ - $ 448,760 $ 467,550
Other Long-Term
Obligations 470,815 441,512 718 135 471,533 441,647
Total $919,575 $ 909,062 $718 $135 $ 920,293 $ 909,197

During the year, the State reduced outstanding-terng obligations by $79.8 million for outstandiggneral
obligation bonds and $227.5 million for other lalegm debt. Also during fiscal year 2007, the Siatarred
$318.3 million of additional long-term obligations.

Credit Ratings
Three of the major bond rating agencies regulaslyeas the State’s credit rating. During fiscalry&@07,

Moody’s Investors Service rated the State at Aa@ndard & Poor’s rated it at AA, and Fitch Ratimgted it at
AA. For fiscal year 2006, the Moody’s rating waa3A Standard & Poor’s was AA-, and Fitch Ratings WaA.
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FACTORS BEARING ON THE FUTURE OF STATE AND NEXT YEA R'S BUDGETS

Inflation continued to rise though the past yedihe Consumer Price Index rose nearly 2.6 percem fiuly
2006 to July 2007; however, fuel and utilities pagose much faster. The rise in oil prices to ®& a barrel in
late summer due to unrest in the Middle East paesgure on both household and government budgetgaied
prices in the $90 to $100 a barrel range, will isgosignificant challenges to Maine households and
governmental operations at all levels in the Sdateng the winter heating season.

Personal income continues to rise in Maine fadtan tinflation. According to the latest statistiogitable,
personal income is estimated to have risen by 8:6enmt in calendar year 2006. The moderate graw006 is

in contrast to the much slower growth in 2005 wiles state was affected by a number of events, & m
significant of which was the Base Realignment atak@e Commission process. Unemployment has hdvere
around the national average throughout the yedre rate in Maine stood at 4. 8percent in Septerab@007
which is slightly above the national rate of 4.Toemt.

The General Fund Revenue estimate accepted bpdeeéndent Revenue Forecasting Commission fordbé-2
2007 Biennium provides approximately $5.8 billionrésources to be available for general purposedspg. At
the beginning of the budgeting process for the Biennium, the State Budget Officer estimaiedctural
gap at approximately $100 million between revenod aosts to maintain current services. The 2008200
biennial budget was brought into balance with th@cement of Public Law 2007, Chapter 248n Act Making
Unified Appropriations and Allocations for the Expenditures of State Government, General Fund and
Other Funds, and Changing Certain Provisions of thedLaw Necessary to the Proper Operations of State
Government for the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 200 June 30, 2008, and June 30, 2009.The Budget
will be amended several times through various pulalivs to ensure adequate resources are availablid
fiscal years of the biennium as revenues and resewppear to be in decline as the result of higingy costs,
inflation, and the slowing of the real estate mtiskeub prime mortgage crises.

As a result of the November 2007 report by the ReeeForecasting Commission adjusting General Fund
Revenue downward by $95 million over current biemmisignificant adjustments will be made to bringrently
authorized spending into line with expected reveflonehe remainder of the biennium. Along with dh@wvnturn

in revenue, additional spending pressures are nmguim the State’s Medicaid program which will régu
additional General Fund support to ensure thatlécpayments” are made on a timely basis. This sifjuire
additional cuts in other state funded programs bdyhe adjustments necessary to meet the revenugum.

New Accounting Standard

The State maintains a retiree health care plaistate employees and teachers that are affecteldebstandard.
The plan is operated on a pay-as-you-go basiglaens benefits for health care plan participamespaid as they
occur. The portion of active and retired emplogdeealth care premiums for which the State is nesipte is
estimated and budgeted.

New accounting standards will require the Statebegin disclosing its liability for other post empioent
benefits (commonly referred to as “OPEB”) in its Y08 financial reports. An initial valuation repby an
independent actuarial firm for the State’s liailibr these health care and life insurance benéditshe fiscal
year ended June 30, 2006 was released in Jany, 2l'he report presented two separate calcutatbrihe
State’s OPEB liability, depending on whether thability would be prefunded in a manner meeting the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 45.

According to the report, assuming no prefunding,dbtuarial accrued liability of the State for OP&#migations
incurred through June 30, 2006 is $4.8 billion. eTRresent Value of Projected Benefits amounts to
approximately $5.9 billion at a discount rate & gercent. To fully amortize this liability over3@-year period,
utilizing an amortization growth rate of 4.5 perceer year would require annual required contrimsi (ARC)
commencing at $116 million for fiscal 2007 and prted to increase to $296 million in fiscal yeat 2@016.
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However, if prefunding at 7.5 percent is assumiee actuarial accrued liability is reduced to $3Ikom and the
annual required contribution is calculated to comoseat $275 million for fiscal year 2007. As theremental
cost of funding the full ARC is not within reachrfthe State, the State has decided to fund the ARG
graduated basis over a ten year period to attdlifufuding of the annual ARC.

In making these calculations, the independent aefum utilized employment and other data praddby the
State and projected annual claims growth initialiyl0.5 percent and declining to 5.1 percent afteryears and
continuation of current benefit levels and curnestiree contribution requirements. The report cedeonly the
State’s OPEB obligations for State employees, ®@chand participating ancillary groups. Municipes and
authorities of the State of Maine, even if theialtie care coverage is administered by the Stakéaifie’s Retiree
Healthcare Program, will perform their own valuatipas the State acts only as an agent for thegieemwith

respect to OPEB and does not assume the riskamdial burden of their health care costs or litibgi

In the absence of prefunding, the discount ratet mapiroximate the State’s rate of return on norsqmm(liquid)
investments over the long term, estimated at 4réem for the purpose of this study. In the evdmrefunding,
the discount rate would increase to a standardrretn long-term investments, estimated at 7.5 perfor the
purpose of this study. In order to qualify its @Pl&bilities as prefunded, the State will havestact legislation
providing for the escrowing of annual contributiansthe manner required by GASB Statement No. 4fl (a
similar to the program for funding the State’s urdad actuarial liability for pension).

GASB Statement No. 45 requires that OPEB obligatios recalculated at two-year intervals. Suchutations
may be affected by many factors, including changrperience and assumptions regarding future health
claims, by whether or not the State enacts legisiahat qualifies its OPEB obligations to be cédted on a
prefunded basis, by changes in the State’'s emplpsafde, and possible changes in OPEB coverageldeand
retiree contribution rates. Accordingly, it sholle anticipated that the actuarial accrued ligbditthe State for
OPEB liabilities will fluctuate.

A copy of the valuation report discussed abovelimaobtained by calling the Office of the State Calidr.
CONTACTING THE STATE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide citigetaxpayers, customers, investors and creditidhsargeneral
overview of the finances of the State and to demnatesthe State’s accountability for the moneyeitaives. If
you have any questions about this report or neddiaaial financial information, please contact:

State of Maine
Office of the State Controller
14 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333-0014
(207)-626-8420
financialreporting@maine.gov
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STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Totals Units
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ 436,233 $ 12,387 $ 448620 $ 86,891
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,511 1,646 13,157 51,684
Cash with Fiscal Agent 46,450 - 46,450 1,081
Investments 79,424 - 79,424 943,418
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool 14,493 - 14,493 -

Restricted Deposits and Investments 16,301 463,099 479,400 -
Inventories 7,038 779 7,817 1,924
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Taxes Receivable 389,651 - 389,651 -

Loans Receivable 4,560 - 4,560 75,966

Notes Receivable - - - 63

Other Receivables 301,847 50,931 352,778 58,985
Internal Balances (505) 505 - -
Due from Other Governments 601,846 - 601,846 138,670
Due from Primary Government - - - 13,214
Loans receivable from primary government - - - 4,015
Due from Component Units 894 66 960 -
Other Current Assets 1,518 206 1,724 38,219

Total Current Assets 1,911,261 529,619 2,440,880 1,414,130

Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool 47,856 1,353 49,209 9,507
Assets Held in Trust - - - 5,047
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Deposits and Investments - - - 692,191
Investments - - - 365,078
Receivables, Net of Current Portion:

Taxes Receivable 46,334 - 46,334 -

Loans Receivable - - - 2,411,120

Notes Receivable - - - 208,437

Other Receivables - - - 6,337
Due from Other Governments - - - 1,116,640
Loans receivable from primary government - - - 38,338
Due From Primary Government - - - 2,106
Other Noncurrent Assets - - - 35,535
Capital Assets:

Land, Infrastructure, and Other Non-Depreciable Assets 3,458,534 42,030 3,500,564 162,174

Buildings, Equipment and Other Depreciable Assets 826,682 114,372 941,054 995,060

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (351,045) (66,041) (417,086) (360,529)

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 3,934,171 90,361 4,024,532 796,705

Total Noncurrent Assets 4,028,361 91,714 4,120,075 5,687,041

Total Assets $ 5,939,622 $ 621,333 $ 6,560,955 $ 7,101,171

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 901,508 $ 5069 $ 906,577 $ 74,768
Accrued Payroll 45,742 1,445 47,187 650
Compensated Absences 528 72 600 2,190
Tax Refunds Payable 131,267 - 131,267 -
Due to Component Units 15,237 - 15,237 -
Due to Other Governments 110,913 - 110,913 6,951
Due to Primary Government - - - 1,043
Amounts Held under State & Federal Loan Programs - - - 32,094
Undistributed Grants and Administrative Funds - - - 10,867
Allowances for Losses on Insured Commercial Loans - - - 5,502
Claims Payable 22,980 - 22,980 -
Bonds and Notes Payable 77,000 - 77,000 142,042
Revenue Bonds Payable 14,610 - 14,610 42,376
Obligations under Capital Leases 6,402 - 6,402 364
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements 25,343 - 25,343 -
Pledged Future Revenues 4,015 - 4,015 -
Accrued Interest Payable 8,422 - 8,422 47,153
Deferred Revenue 1,006 14,096 15,102 42,629
Other Current Liabilities 24,966 19,021 43,987 36,510

Total Current Liabilities 1,389,939 39,703 1,429,642 445,139

Long-Term Liabilities:

Compensated Absences 41,152 646 41,798 -
Due to Other Governments 225 - 225 9,026
Amounts Held under State & Federal Loan Programs - - - 44,062
Claims Payable 41,116 - 41,116 -
Bonds and Notes Payable 371,760 - 371,760 3,231,846
Revenue Bonds Payable 167,995 - 167,995 1,342,473
Obligations under Capital Leases 35,349 - 35,349 4,321
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements 54,543 - 54,543 -
Pledged Future Revenues 38,338 - 38,338 -
Deferred Revenue 12,451 75,000 87,451 23,466
Pension Obligation 18,444 - 18,444 -
Other Noncurrent Liabilities - - - 86,983
Total Long-Term Liabilities 781,373 75,646 857,019 4,742,177
Total Liabilities 2,171,312 115,349 2,286,661 5,187,316
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 3,519,371 90,361 3,609,732 592,299
Restricted:
Highway Fund Purposes 26,083 - 26,083 -
Federal Programs 37,595 - 37,595 -
Natural Resources 19,079 - 19,079 -
Capital Projects and Debt Service 20,593 - 20,593 -
Unemployment Compensation - 489,677 489,677 -
Other Purposes 15,931 - 15,931 1,072,429
Funds Held as Permanent Investments:
Expendable 66,987 - 66,987 -
Nonexpendable 12,518 - 12,518 -
Unrestricted 50,153 (74,054) (23,901) 249,127
Total Net Assets $ 3,768,310 $ 505984 $ 4,274,294  $ 1,913,855
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Governmental Support & Operations
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment
Business Licensing & Regulation
Economic Development & Workforce Training
Education
Health & Human Services
Justice & Protection
Natural Resources Development & Protection
Transportation Safety & Development
Interest Expense
Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Employment Security
Alcoholic Beverages
Lottery
Transportation
Marine Ports
Ferry Services
Military Equipment Maintenance
Dirigo Health
Other
Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

Component Units:
Finance Authority of Maine
Maine Community College System
Maine Health & Higher Educational Facilities Authority
Maine Municipal Bond Bank
Maine State Housing Authority
University of Maine System
All Other Non-Major Component Units
Total Component Units

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 460,315 $ 76,507 $ 6,300 -
12,994 818 2,724 -
60,506 52,033 1,158 -
161,427 3,202 84,358 -
1,622,653 4,865 187,866 -
2,989,001 9,656 1,824,919 -
358,718 80,435 57,302 -
179,670 81,305 35,303 6,434
267,994 97,761 161,898 -
36,246 - - -
6,149,524 406,582 2,361,828 6,434
120,215 112,482 21,724 -
- 12,525 - -
180,722 231,628 - -
4,218 2,169 - 1,222
2,097 127 - -
9,405 3,837 - 2,921
35,140 30,656 (338) -
65,178 63,339 - -
6,875 6,755 - -
423,850 463,518 21,386 4,143
$ 6573374 $ 870,100 $ 2,383,214 10,577
37,027 14,851 26,930 -
101,950 24,143 29,268 861
70,518 63,349 9,879 -
67,364 47,457 12,988 22,043
233,884 70,460 180,904 -
613,575 257,096 200,890 7,859
92,602 29,388 40,819 2,662
$ 1,216,920 $ 506,744 $ 501,678 33,425
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Corporate

Individual Income
Fuel

Property

Sales & Use
Other

Unrestricted Investment Earnings

Non-Program Specific Grants, Contributions & Appropriations

Miscellaneous Income

Loss on Assets Held for Sale

Tobacco Settlement

Transfers - Internal Activities
Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning (As Restated)
Net Assets - Ending
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ (377,508) $ -8 (377,508) $ -
(9,452) - (9,452) -

(7,315) - (7,315) -
(73,867) - (73,867) -
(1,429,922) - (1,429,922) -
(1,154,426) - (1,154,426) -
(220,981) - (220,981) -
(56,628) - (56,628) -

(8,335) - (8,335) -

(36,246) - (36,246) -
(3,374,680) - (3,374,680) -

- 13,991 13,991 -

- 12,525 12,525 -

- 50,906 50,906 -

- (827) (827) -

- (1,970) (1,970) -

- (2,647) (2,647) -

- (4,822) (4,822) -

- (1,839) (1,839) -

- (120) (120) -

- 65,197 65,197 -

$ (3,374,680) $ 65,197 $ (3,309,483) $ -
- - - 4,754
- - - (47,678)

- - - 2,710

- - - 15,124

- - - 17,480
- - - (147,730)
- - - (19,733)
$ - 8 - 8 - $  (175,073)
292,255 - 292,255 -
1,478,542 - 1,478,542 -
181,459 - 181,459 -
48,339 - 48,339 -
1,191,982 - 1,191,982 -
255,550 - 255,550 -
39,599 - 39,599 17,083

- - - 286,805

123,036 2 123,038 973
(445) - (445) (146)

48,978 - 48,978 -

40,979 (40,979) - -
3,700,274 (40,977) 3,659,297 304,715
325,594 24,220 349,814 129,642
3,442,716 481,764 3,924,480 1,784,213

$ 3,768,310 $ 505,984 $ 4,274,294 $ 1,913,855
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M AJOR FUNDS

General Fund — This is the State's primary operatingFederal Fund — This fund is used to account for
fund. Its purpose is to account for all financialgrants, block grants and other financial assistance
resources obtained and used for general governmemgceived from the federal government, that arellgga
operations, which are not required to be accouftied restricted to expenditures for purposes specifietthé

in another fund. grant awards or agreements.

Highway Fund — This fund is used primarily to Other Special Revenue Fund — This fund is used to
account for motor fuel tax revenues, motor vehicleaccount for revenue sources that are legally otetti
license and registration fees, and special Stat® expenditures for specified purposes, includimge

appropriations that are legally restricted to theamajor capital projects that are not accountedrdhée

construction and maintenance of State highways andighway and Federal Funds.

bridges.

NON-MAJOR FUNDS

Other Governmental Funds are used to account for Other governmental funds are presented, by fune, typ
revenue sources that are legally restricted tbeginning on page 111.

expenditures for specified purposes, including some

major capital projects and funds held in trust for

public purposes.
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STATE OF MAINE

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Other Other Total
Special Governmental Governmental
General Highway Federal Revenue Funds Funds
Assets

Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ -3 29,186 $ - $ 225950 $ 83 % 255,219
Cash and Short-Term Investments 714 1,414 9,137 243 - 11,508
Cash with Fiscal Agent 3,807 420 - 18,488 - 22,715
Investments - - - - 79,424 79,424
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool 1,638 - - - 12,855 14,493

Restricted Deposits and Investments - - - - 13,898 13,898
Inventories 1,790 - 557 - - 2,347
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Taxes Receivable 402,501 23,614 - 9,870 - 435,985

Loans Receivable 1 71 - 4,488 - 4,560

Other Receivable 131,409 248 91,757 71,149 - 294,563
Due from Other Funds 39,153 7,312 5,233 8,616 - 60,314
Due from Other Governments - - 597,178 - - 597,178
Due from Component Units 179 - - - 715 894
Other Assets 464 - 51 - - 515
Working Capital Advances Receivable 111 - - - - 111

Total Assets $ 581,767 $ 62,265 $ 703913 $ 338,804 $ 106,975 $ 1,793,724
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Accounts Payable $ 317,414  $ 15,064 $ 520,225 $ 31,588 $ 4639 $ 888,930
Accrued Payroll 20,961 9,108 5,148 7,460 - 42,677
Tax Refunds Payable 131,242 25 - - - 131,267
Due to Other Governments - - 110,913 - - 110,913
Due to Other Funds 25,768 2,739 26,196 2,706 71 57,480
Due to Component Units 5,398 224 2,718 4,732 2,165 15,237
Deferred Revenue 213,411 7,545 597 27,297 - 248,850
Other Accrued Liabilities 23,922 1 521 1,038 2 25,484
Total Liabilities 738,116 34,706 666,318 74,821 6,877 1,520,838
Fund Balances:

Reserved

Continuing Appropriations 81,558 49,485 40,268 221,600 155 393,066

Capital Projects - - - - 20,593 20,593

Permanent Trusts - - - - 12,518 12,518

Other 45,578 71 - 13,443 66,832 125,924
Unreserved (283,485) (21,997) (2,673) 28,940 - (279,215)

Total Fund Balances (156,349) 27,559 37,595 263,983 100,098 272,886

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 581,767 $ 62,265 $ 703913 $ 338,804 $ 106,975 $ 1,793,724

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 272,886
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 3,994,388
Less: Accumulated depreciation (177,797) 3,816,591
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, long-term liabilities
are not reported in the governmental fund statements. However, these amounts are included
in the Statement of Net Assets. This is the net effect of these balances on the statement:
Bonds Payable (448,760)
Interest Payable Related to Long-term Financing (4,751)
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements (27,716)
Pledged Future Revenues (42,353)
Compensated Absences (38,093)
Pension Obligation (18,444) (580,117)
Certain revenues are earned but not available and therefore are not reported in the governmental
fund statements. 241,454
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 17,496

Net assets of governmental activities $ 3,768,310

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Other Other Total
Special Governmental Governmental
General Highway Federal Revenue Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 3,003,382 $ 225915 $ - $ 201372 % - 3% 3,430,669
Assessments and Other Revenue 109,336 90,596 160 89,209 - 289,301
Federal Grants and Reimbursements 16,762 3,518 2,362,098 3,939 - 2,386,317
Service Charges 36,717 7,269 1,178 78,085 - 123,249
Investment Income 9,653 1,106 672 4,599 10,710 26,740
Miscellaneous Revenue 25,099 580 1,775 133,686 536 161,676
Total Revenues 3,200,949 328,984 2,365,883 510,890 11,246 6,417,952
Expenditures:
Current:
Governmental Support & Operations 262,721 35,406 9,576 131,122 5,541 444,366
Economic Development & Workforce Training 40,280 - 89,187 28,977 3,559 162,003
Education 1,438,605 - 186,754 4,459 8,030 1,637,848
Health and Human Services 972,875 - 1,828,903 262,694 1,800 3,066,272
Business Licensing & Regulation - - 547 60,993 - 61,540
Natural Resources Development & Protection 70,373 38 39,544 90,329 3,920 204,204
Justice and Protection 245,592 37,930 60,772 27,923 457 372,674
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 8,958 - 2,681 996 580 13,215
Transportation Safety & Development - 242,315 143,290 33,501 42,917 462,023
Debt Service:
Principal Payments 69,350 10,415 3,915 - - 83,680
Interest Payments 17,369 1,387 1,578 - - 20,334
Total Expenditures 3,126,123 327,491 2,366,747 640,994 66,804 6,528,159
Revenue over (under) Expenditures 74,826 1,493 (864) (130,104) (55,558) (110,207)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Other Funds 115,292 20,736 30,271 183,532 3,065 352,896
Transfer to Other Funds (190,074) (5,162) (14,002) (58,895) (11,558) (279,691)
COP's and Other 23,346 780 - 11,417 - 35,543
Bonds Issued - - - - 60,975 60,975
Net Other Finance Sources (Uses) (51,436) 16,354 16,269 136,054 52,482 169,723
Revenues and Other Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Uses 23,390 17,847 15,405 5,950 (3,076) 59,516
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year (As Restated) (179,739) 9,712 22,190 258,033 103,174 213,370
Fund Balances at End of Year $ (156,349) $ 27559 % 37595 $ 263983 $ 100,098 $ 272,886

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. In the
current period, the amounts are:

Capital outlay
Transfer of capital assets to Transit, Aviation and Rail Transportation Fund, net

Depreciation expense

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (ie. sales, trade ins and contributions)
is to increase net assets.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds which
increases long-term debt in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds, but repayment reduces long-term debt in the
Statement of Net Assets. This is the amount that proceeds exceed repayments:
Bond proceeds
Proceeds from other financing arrangements
Repayment of bond principal
Repayment of other financing debt
Accrued interest

Certain expenditures are reported in the funds. However, they either increase or decrease long-term
liabilities reported as expenditures on the Statement of Net Assets and have been eliminated
from the Statement of Activities as follows:
Pension obligation
Pledged future revenues
Claims payable
Compensated absences

Certain revenues are earned but not available and therefore are not reported in the governmental
fund statements.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Activities.

Changes in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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211,114
(8,920)
(25,975)

(60,975)
(24,126)
79,765
10,473
493

(394)
3,915

(155)

59,516

176,219

(1,099)

5,630

3,366

18,663

63,299

325,594
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PROPRIETARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M AJOR FUNDS

Unemployment Compensation Fund - This fund  Alcoholic Beverages Fund - This fund was established
accounts for unemployment insurance contributionso license and regulate the sale of alcoholic eyes.
from employers and the payment of unemploymenburing fiscal year 2004, the State entered intera t
benefits to eligible claimants. year contract with a vendor to manage and operate
wholesale liquor distribution as the State’s agent.

NON-MAJOR FUNDS

Other Non-Major Enterprise Funds are used to Non-major enterprise funds are presented beginning
account for operations that are financed and opérat on page 119.

in a manner similar to private business, where the

State intends to finance or recover the costs dfombining fund statements for the internal service

providing goods or services to the General Publi@o funds, whose combined totals are presented on these
continuing basis primarily through user chargesie T statements, begin on page 127.

State also wuses these funds where periodic

determination of net income is appropriate for

accountability purposes.
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Major Major Non-Major Activities

Internal

Employment Alcoholic Other Service

Security Beverages Enterprise Totals Funds

Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ - 0% -8 12,387 $ 12,387 $ 206,298
Cash and Short-Term Investments 889 - 757 1,646 3
Cash with Fiscal Agent - - - - 23,735
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Deposits and Investments 463,099 - - 463,099 2,403
Inventories - - 779 779 4,691
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Loans Receivable - - - - 14,610

Other Receivable 28,839 - 22,092 50,931 5,818
Due from Other Funds 16 - 8,976 8,992 23,092
Due from Component Units - - 66 66 -
Other Current Assets - - 206 206 1,003

Total Current Assets 492,843 - 45,263 538,106 281,653
Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool - - 1,353 1,353 22,572
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Loans Receivable - - - - 167,995

Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation - - 90,361 90,361 117,580
Total Noncurrent Assets - - 91,714 91,714 308,147
Total Assets 492,843 - 136,977 629,820 589,800

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 2,296 - 2,773 5,069 5,812

Accrued Payroll - - 1,445 1,445 3,065

Due to Other Governments - - - - 225

Due to Other Funds - - 9,740 9,740 30,478

Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:

Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements - - - - 15,914

Revenue Bonds Payable - - - - 14,610

Obligations Under Capital Leases - - - - 6,402

Claims Payable - - - - 22,980

Compensated Absences - - 72 72 528
Deferred Revenue - 12,500 1,596 14,096 409
Other Accrued Liabilities 870 - 18,151 19,021 3,153

Total Current Liabilities 3,166 12,500 33,777 49,443 103,576

Long-Term Liabilities:
Working Capital Advances Payable - - - - 111
Deferred Revenue - 75,000 - 75,000 984
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements - - - - 36,256
Revenue Bonds Payable - - - - 167,995
Obligations Under Capital Leases - - - - 35,349
Claims Payable - - - - 41,116
Compensated Absences - - 646 646 3,059
Total Long-Term Liabilities - 75,000 646 75,646 284,870
Total Liabilities 3,166 87,500 34,423 125,089 388,446
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - - 90,361 90,361 61,590
Restricted for:
Unemployment Compensation 489,677 - - 489,677 -
Other Purposes - - - - 2,173
Unrestricted - (87,500) 12,193 (75,307) 137,591
Total Net Assets $ 489,677 $ (87,500) $ 102,554 504,731 $ 201,354
Amounts reported for business-type activities in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets
are different due to elimination of the State's internal business-type activities. 1,253
Net Assets of Business-Type Activities $ 505,984

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Assessments
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
General Operations
Depreciation
Claims/Fees Expense
Other Operating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Revenue (Expense) - net
Interest Expense
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)- net

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions and
Transfers

Capital Contributions and Transfers
Capital Contributions from (to) Other Funds
Transfers from (to) Other Funds

Total Capital Contributions and
Transfers In (Out)
Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year (As Restated)

Total Net Assets - End of Year

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the government-wide Statement of Activities
are different due to elimination of the State's internal business-types activities.

Changes in Business-Type Net Assets

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Major Major Non-Major Internal
Employment Alcoholic Other Service
Security Beverages Enterprise Totals Funds

$ -8 25 3 336,089 $ 336,114 $ 473,289
112,482 - 1,749 114,231 -

- - 65 65 714

112,482 25 337,903 450,410 474,003

- - 298,157 298,157 376,428

- - 5,048 5,048 16,048

120,215 - - 120,215 9,142

- - - - 362

120,215 - 303,205 423,420 401,980
(7,733) 25 34,698 26,990 72,023
21,724 - - 21,724 12,878

- - - - (16,523)

- 12,500 270 12,770 (373)

21,724 12,500 270 34,494 (4,018)
13,991 12,525 34,968 61,484 68,005

- - 16,524 16,524 2,057

(1,146) (24) (52,181) (53,351) (10,810)
(1,146) (24) (35,657) (36,827) (8,753)
12,845 12,501 (689) 24,657 59,252
476,832 (100,001) 103,243 142,102

$ 489,677  $ (87,500) $ 102,554 $ 201,354

(437)
$ 24,220

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Major Major Non-Major Internal
Employment Alcoholic Other Service
Security Beverages Enterprise Totals Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 111,892 $ 25 $ 338,982 $ 450,899 $ 473,005
Payments of Benefits (118,230) - - (118,230) -
Payments to Prize Winners - - (145,479) (145,479) -
Payments to Suppliers - 1) (119,399) (119,400) (306,931)
Payments to Employees - - (32,284) (32,284) (69,704)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (6,338) 24 41,820 35,506 96,370
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers in - - 5,275 5,275 3,170
Operating Transfers out (1,146) (24) (57,456) (58,626) (21,984)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities (1,146) (24) (52,181) (53,351) (18,814)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payments for Acquisition of Capital Assets - - 144 144 (24,702)
Proceeds from Financing Arrangements - - - - 42,285
Principal and Interest Paid on Financing Arrangements - - - - (37,394)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets - - 1 1 -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital Financing Activities - - 145 145 (19,811)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Revenue 21,724 - 270 21,994 12,879
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 21,724 - 270 21,994 12,879
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash/Cash Equivalents 14,240 - (9,946) 4,294 70,624
Cash/Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 449,748 - 24,446 474,194 184,387
Cash/Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 463,988 $ - $ 14,500 $ 478,488 $ 255,011
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $ (7,733) $ 25 $ 34,698 $ 26,990 $ 72,023
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense - - 5,048 5,048 16,048
Decrease (Increase) in Assets
Accounts Receivable (600) - 3,138 2,538 (880)
Interfund Balances 10 1) (3,712) (3,703) 24,574
Inventories - - 31 31 (327)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable 1,368 - (1,419) (51) (15,427)
Accrued Payroll Expenses - - 294 294 214
Change in Compensated Absences - - 583 583 127
Other Accruals 617 - 3,159 3,776 18
Total Adjustments 1,395 1) 7,122 8,516 24,347
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (6,338) $ 24 $ 41,820 $ 35,506 $ 96,370
Non Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Property Leased, Accrued, or Acquired - - - - 4,093
Contributed Capital Assets - - 2,926 2,926 2,057
Decrease of deferred revenue from the sale of liquor operations - 12,500 - 12,500 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trusts

accounts for funds held by the Maine Public
Employees Retirement System (the System), a
component unit included with Fiduciary Funds per
GASB Statement No. 34. The System provides
pension, death, and disability benefits to its members,
including State employees, some public school
employees, and employees of approximately 270 local
municipalities and other public entitiesin Maine.

Other Private-Purpose Trustand Agency Fundsre
used to account for private-purpose assets held by the
State in a fiduciary capacity, acting as either a trustee
or an agent for individuals, organizations or other
funds. Private-Purpose Trustalso include assets of
NextGen College Investing Plan.

A ligting of fiduciary funds and combining fund
statements for private-purpose trusts and agency funds
begins on page 139.
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension
(and Other
Employee Private
Benefit) Purpose Agency
Trusts Trusts Funds
Assets
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ - $ 1,272 $ 6,590
Cash and Short-Term Investments 216,272 - 41
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:
State and Local Agency Contributions 11,342 - -
Loans to Institutions - - -
Interest and Dividends 35,970 222 -
Due from Brokers for Securities Sold 123,912 - -
Investments at Fair Value:
Debt Securities 3,729,557 - -
Equity Securities 2,935,142 - -
Common/Collective Trusts 4,068,827 - -
Other 5,789 11,647 -
Securities Lending Collateral 3,031,737 - -
Due from other funds - 6,766 -
Investments Held on Behalf of Others - 5,231,583 62,260
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 4,176 - -
Other Assets - 18,001 389
Total Assets 14,162,724 5,269,491 69,280
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 2,016 3,277 14
Due to Other Funds - - 1,466
Due to Brokers for Securities Purchased 71,488 - -
Agency Liabilities - - 69,280
Obligations Under Securities Lending 3,031,737 - -
Other Accrued Liabilities 34,462 1 (1,480)
Total Liabilities 3,139,703 3,278 69,280
Net Assets
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension, Disability, Death,
Group Life Insurance Benefits and Other Purposes 11,023,021 5,266,213 -
Total Net Assets $11,023,021 $ 5266213 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Additions:
Contributions:
Members
State and Local Agencies

Investment Income:
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments
Capital Gains Distributions from Investments
Interest and Dividends
Less Investment Expense:
Investment Activity Expense
Cost of Securities Lending
Net Investment Income

Miscellaneous Revenues
Transfers In

Total Additions
Deductions:
Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries
Refunds and Withdrawals
Administrative Expenses
Transfers Out
Total Deductions
Net Increase (Decrease)
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension, Disability, Death,
Group Life Insurance Benefits and Other Purposes:

Beginning of Year

End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Pension (and

Other
Employee Private
Benefit Purpose
Trusts) Trusts

$ 163,899 $ 1,699,856
323,620 -
1,369,944 432,715
- 112,678
199,741 144,331
23,169 -
671 -
1,545,845 689,724
- 12,121
- 16
2,033,364 2,401,717
550,022 1,109,853
21,969 -
11,135 36,841
- 9,060
583,126 1,155,754
1,450,238 1,245,963
9,572,783 4,020,250
$ 11,023,021 $ 5,266,213
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COMPONENT UNIT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Finance Authority of Maine (FAME)- The
Authority provides commercial financing and loan
guarantees to Maine businesses and educational
financing to Maine students and their parents;
administers several revolving loan programs on
behalf of the State; and administers the Maine
College Savings Program Fund.

Maine Community College Systems Maine’'s
primary provider of post-secondary technical
education leading to a certificate, diploma, or
associate degree. The financial statements of the
system include the activity of seven colleges, the
central administrative office, and the Maine Career
Advantage.

Maine Health & Higher Educational Facilities
Authority — MHHEFA assists Maine health care
institutions and institutions of higher education i
undertaking projects involving the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction and
equipping of health care and educational facilities
and the refinancing of existing indebtedness. The
Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan
Corporations Act of 1983, may finance student loan
programs of institutions of higher education.

37

Maine Municipal Bond Banks authorized to issue

bonds providing funds to counties, cities, towns,
school districts, or other quasi-municipal
corporations within the State.

Maine State Housing Authoritys authorized to
issue bonds for the purchase of notes and mortgages
on single- and multi-family residential units to
provide housing for persons and families of low
income in the State. The Authority also acts as
agent for the State in administering federal
weatherization, energy conservation, fuel assigtanc
and homeless grant programs, and collecting and
disbursing federal rent subsidies for low income
housing.

University of Maine System The State University
consists of seven campuses and a central
administrative office.

Non-Major Component Units combining fund
statements begin on page 147.



STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Maine Health

38

Maine and Higher
Finance Community Educational
Authority of College Facilities
Maine System Authority
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ 2785 $ 6,276  $ -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,154 255 14,898
Cash with Fiscal Agent - - -
Investments 203,489 23,899 16,292
Restricted Assets:
Inventories - 1,255 -
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Loans Receivable - - 41,970

Notes Receivable - - -

Other Receivables 4,366 3,246 3,606
Due from Other Governments 1,465 - -
Due from Primary Government - 312 -
Loans receivable from primary government - - -
Other Current Assets 2,872 558 770

Total Current Assets 245,201 35,801 77,536

Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool 3,048 687 -
Assets Held in Trust - - -
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Deposits and Investments - 6,564 155,884
Investments - 6,307 -
Receivables, Net of Current Portion:

Loans Receivable - - 1,212,383

Notes Receivable 165,510 - -

Other Receivables - - 60
Due from Other Governments - - -
Due from Primary Government - - -

Loans receivable from primary government - - -
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 1,801 105,279 3,262
Other Noncurrent Assets - 302 899

Total Noncurrent Assets 170,359 119,139 1,372,488

Total Assets 415,560 154,940 1,450,024

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 1,447 5,487 2,066
Accrued Payroll - - -
Compensated Absences - 1,761 -
Due to Other Governments - - 559
Due to Primary Government - - -
Amounts Held under State & Federal Loan Programs - - -
Undistributed Grants and Administrative Funds 10,321 - -
Allowances for Losses on Insured Commercial Loans 5,502 - -
Bonds Payable 53 - 41,970
Obligations under Capital Leases - - -
Accrued Interest Payable 996 - 27,387
Deferred Revenue 1,710 1,940 126
Other Current Liabilities 51 6,363 1,554
Total Current Liabilities 20,080 15,551 73,662
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments 2,443 - 1,771
Amounts Held under State & Federal Loan Programs 44,062 - -
Bonds Payable 309,355 23,426 1,340,105
Obligations under Capital Leases - 3,490 -
Deferred Revenue - - -
Other Noncurrent Liabilities - - -
Total Long-Term Liabilities 355,860 26,916 1,341,876
Total Liabilities 375,940 42,467 1,415,538
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,801 85,230 3,262
Restricted 9,009 17,501 2,309
Unrestricted 28,810 9,742 28,915
Total Net Assets $ 39620 $ 112473 $ 34,486

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Maine Maine State University Non-Major

Municipal Housing of Maine Component
Bond Bank Authority System Units Totals

$ -8 - $ 52663 $ 97 $ 86,891
86 2,258 1,751 27,282 51,684
- - - 1,081 1,081
19,799 594,093 80,894 4,952 943,418
- - - 669 1,924
- 24,111 - 9,885 75,966
- 2 61 - 63
1,746 21,575 20,904 3,542 58,985
118,924 3,551 12,522 2,208 138,670
- 1,014 9,722 2,166 13,214
4,015 - - - 4,015
24,859 - 7,193 1,967 38,219
169,429 646,604 185,710 53,849 1,414,130
- - 5,762 10 9,507
- - - 5,047 5,047
259,512 149,890 115,984 4,357 692,191
- 80,765 253,760 24,246 365,078
- 1,126,434 - 72,303 2,411,120
- 944 40,800 1,183 208,437
- - 5,325 952 6,337
1,116,640 - - - 1,116,640
- - 2,106 - 2,106
38,338 - - - 38,338
816 1,768 577,021 106,758 796,705
4,689 4,062 19,994 5,589 35,535
1,419,995 1,363,863 1,020,752 220,445 5,687,041
1,589,424 2,010,467 1,206,462 274,294 7,101,171
452 38,808 19,219 7,289 74,768
- - - 650 650
- - - 429 2,190
3,085 3,112 - 195 6,951
_ . - 1,043 1,043
32,004 - - - 32,094
546 - - - 10,867
- - - - 5,502
99,827 35,655 6,507 406 184,418
- - 346 18 364
8,760 9,683 - 327 47,153
507 8,061 17,207 13,078 42,629
- - 23,038 5,504 36,510
145,271 95,319 66,317 28,939 445,139
1,608 - - 3,204 9,026
- - - - 44,062
980,774 1,603,935 216,900 99,824 4,574,319
- - 766 65 4,321
- 22,449 - 1,017 23,466
- - 86,983 - 86,983
982,382 1,626,384 304,649 104,110 4,742,177
1,127,653 1,721,703 370,966 133,049 5,187,316
- 1,768 396,319 103,919 592,299
408,184 269,697 343,104 22,625 1,072,429
53,587 17,299 96,073 14,701 249,127

$ 461,771 $ 288,764 $ 835496 $ 141,245  $1,913,855
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Maine Health

Maine and Higher
Finance Community Educational
Authority of College Facilities
Maine System Authority
Expenses $ 37,027 $ 101,950 $ 70,518
Program Revenues
Charges for Services 14,851 24,143 63,349
Program Investment Income 7,330 1,693 7,053
Operating Grants and Contributions 19,600 27,575 2,826
Capital Grants and Contributions - 861 -
Net Revenue (Expense) 4,754 (47,678) 2,710
General Revenues
Unrestricted Investment Earnings - 1,919 1,437
Non-program Specific Grants,

Contributions and Appropriations - 47,773 -
Miscellaneous Income - 1,607 110
Gain (Loss) on Assets Held for Sale - (35) -

Total General Revenues - 51,264 1,547

Change in Net Assets 4,754 3,586 4,257
Net Assets, Beginning of the Year 34,866 108,887 30,229
Net Assets, End of Year $ 39620 $ 112473 $ 34,486

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

40



Maine Maine State University Non-Major
Municipal Housing of Maine Component
Bond Bank Authority System Units Totals

$ 67364 $ 233834 $ 613575 $ 92,602 $1,216,920

47,457 70,460 257,096 29,388 506,744
6,904 35,157 - 3,132 61,269
6,084 145,747 200,890 37,687 440,409

22,043 - 7,859 2,662 33,425
15,124 17,480 (147,730) (19,733) (175,073)
917 737 10,457 1,616 17,083

- - 223,280 15,752 286,805

939 - (2,269) 586 973

- - - (111) (146)

1,856 737 231,468 17,843 304,715
16,980 18,217 83,738 (1,890) 129,642
444,791 270,547 751,758 143,135 1,784,213

$ 461,771 $ 288,764 $ 835496 $ 141,245  $1,913,855
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State of Maine Netto the Financial Statements
FoetFRiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Maine {tte) ave been prepared under guidelines
established by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAPgadated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Preparation of the financial statements in conformity withABArequires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosuhesfinancial statements.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, the State of Maine’s rampehtity includes the “primary government” and its
“component units.” The primary government includes all fundganizations, agencies, boards, commissions and
authorities. Component units are legally separate organizdtonghich the State is financially accountable.
Component units can also be legally separate, tax exempt etfiittesaise and hold economic resources for the
direct benefit of a governmental unit.

GASB Statement No. 14 he Financial Reporting Entifydefines financial accountability. The State is financially
accountable for those entities for which it appoints a vatiagprity of the governing board and either is able to
impose its will on that entity or the entity may provigeecific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. Entities for whiah $tate does not appoint a voting majority of the
governing board may be included if the organization is figaddipendent on the primary government or if the
nature and significance of its relationship with the primasyegnment is such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading @rrimplete.

GASB Statement No. 3®@etermining Whether Certain Organizations are Componaritsan Amendment of
GASB Statement No. ,1dstablishes criteria for legally separate, tax-exempt entitieshioald be reported as
component units if all of the criteria are méilthough the State has not identified any organizationsvibatd
qualify as direct component units of the State by meeting #ieccriteria of GASB Statement No. 39, a few of the
component units described later in this note have significamdations that meet the criteria of GASB Statement
No. 39.

Blended Component Units- The Maine Governmental Facilities Authority (MGFA) is adlg separate
organization that has its board appointed by the primargrgavent and provides services entirely, or almost
entirely, to the State. Therefore, the State reports MGFalanbes and transactions as though they were part of
the primary government, using the blending method.

The MGFA was created in 1997, as a successor to the MaineR2ailities Authority, for the purpose of assisting
in the financing, acquisition, construction, improvemeetonstruction, and equipping of additions to structures
designed for use as a court facility, State office or State tycipace. The MGFA is included as an internal
service fund in the State’s financial statements.

Discrete Component Units- Discrete component units are entities that are legally seperatéhe State but are
either accountable to the State or related so closely to the Isdatextlusion would cause the State’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. Component uaitarh not material to the State’s financial statements
have been excluded. The column labeled “Component Units” eraphakiese organizations’ separateness from
the State’s primary government. Because of its’ nature, theeMriblic Employees Retirement System (formerly
the Maine State Retirement System) is reported in the fidultiads.

45



State of Maine Netto the Financial Statements
FoetFRiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

The State’s major discrete and fiduciary component units are:

The Finance Authority of Mainprovides commercial financing and loan guarantees to Mainedsses and
educational financing to Maine students and their parents Atitherity also provides financial and other services
for the Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Board, the BuotrManagement Fund Board, the Northern Maine
Transmission Corporation, the Adaptive Equipment Loagiara Fund Board, the Fund Insurance Review Board,
the Agricultural Marketing Loan Fund Board, the Occupatiorafiety Program Fund Board, and the Small
Business Enterprise Growth Fund Board. Additionally, hehority administers the Maine College Savings
Program. Net assets of the program, NextGen College InveBlamy are included in the State’s fiduciary fund
financial statements. The Governor appoints the fifteen vatimgbers of the Authority.

The Maine Community College SystsnMaine’s primary provider of post-secondary technical edutédgiading

to a certificate, diploma, or associate degree. The combined fshatatements of the System include the activity
of seven colleges, the central administrative office, the Cente€Cdoeer Development (including the Maine
Career Advantage and Maine Quality Centers programs), and itsonentpunit, Maine Community College
Educational Foundations.

Maine Health & Higher Educational Facilities Authority BMWEFA) — MHHEFA assists Maine health care
institutions and institutions of higher education irderaking projects involving the acquisition, construction,
improvement, reconstruction and equipping of their fagdlitand the refinancing of existing indebtedness. The
Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations &c1983, may also finance student loan programs of
institutions of higher education. MHHEFA consists of tieemembers, four of whom sereg officioand must be

the Superintendent of Financial Institutions, the Commissiof Health and Human Services, the Commissioner
of Education, and the Treasurer of State. The remainift gigmbers must be residents of the State appointed by
the Governor.

The Maine Municipal Bond Barigsues bonds on behalf of counties, cities, towns, seuboinistrative districts,
community school districts, or other quasi-municipal coapons or eligible borrowers as designated by the
Legislature (the “governmental units”) within the State. Thedawor appoints three residents of the State to the
five-member Board of Commissioners. The remaining twanbes include the Treasurer of State and
Superintendent of Financial Institutions who serve as cosioniers ex officia

The Maine Public Employees Retirement Sysssiministers an agent, multiple-employer public employee
retirement system. It provides pension, death, and tigai@nefits to its members, which include employees of
the State, some public school employees, employees of approyird@felocal municipalities and other public
entities in Maine. The Governor appoints four of the Boaeifht voting trustees. A fifth trustee is either the
Treasurer of State or the Deputy Treasurer of State.

Maine State Housing Authoritgsues bonds to purchase notes and mortgages on resideitéiaboth single and
multi-family, for the purpose of providing housingr fpersons and families of low income in the State. The
Authority also acts as an agent for the State in administéethgral weatherization, energy conservation, fuel
assistance and homeless grant programs and collecting and idghiederal rent subsidies for low income
housing. The Governor appoints five of the Authorigéven commissioners. The remaining two commissioners
are the Treasurer of State and the Director of the Maine Statenigosthority, both of whom servex officia

The Authority’s fiscal year ends on December 31.

The University of Maine Systeisi the State University governed by a single Board oft&éess The combined
financial statements of the System include the activity oferseuniversities, eleven centers, the central
administrative office, and its component units, which inceeleeral foundations and alumni associations that raise
funds on the System’s behalf.
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Complete financial statements of the major component unitsbeanbtained directly from their respective
administrative offices by writing to:

Finance Authority of Maine Maine Governmental Maine Municipal Bond Bank Maine State Housing

5 Community Dr. Facilities Authority PO Box 2268 Authority

PO Box 949 PO Box 2268 Augusta, ME 04338-2268 89 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04332-0949 Augusta, ME 04338-2268 353 Water Street

Augusta, ME 04330-4633

Maine Community College  Maine Health and Higher Ed. Maine Public Employees University of Maine System
System Facilities Authority Retirement System 16 Central Street

323 State Street PO Box 2268 46 State House Station Bangor, ME 04401-5106
Augusta, ME 04330-7131  Augusta, ME 04338-2268 Augusta, ME 04333-0046

Related Organizations

Officials of the State's primary government appoint a votingjority of the governing boards of the Maine
Turnpike Authority and the Maine Veteran’s Home. The pringioyernment has no material accountability for
these organizations beyond making board appointments.

B. GOVERNMENT -WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities re@gortnation on all non-fiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. Primary govent activities are distinguished between
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental agivgenerally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenuesesBugpe activities are financed in whole or in
part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

The Statement of Net Assgigesents the reporting entity’s non-fiduciary assets atlities, with the difference
reported as net assets. Net assets are reported in three categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related delaonsists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and atbertitht are attributed to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assetsresult when constraints placed on net asset use are either éxtempdsed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or impdsethw through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. The government-wide statement of net assets ref@8&5 million of restricted net assets, of
which $42.0 million is restricted by enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assetxonsist of net assets that do not meet the definitioneofvib preceding categories.
Unrestricted net assets often are designated, to indicate thagemsent does not consider them to be
available for general operations. Unrestricted net assets oftercbastraints on resources that are imposed by
management, but can be removed or modified.

The Statement of Activitiedemonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a gidior or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those thelearly identifiable within a specific function.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicanfsuwdihase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function, andrapts and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular functi@xes and other items not meeting the definition of
program revenues are instead reported as general revenues.
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Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental forogisietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide stateméfajor individual governmental funds and
major individual proprietary funds are reported as separatenoslun the fund financial statements, with non-
major funds being combined into a single column.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide statements are reported using the ecoresoioages measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary funaddial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurredjlesgaof the timing of cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are |@riadts and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposeldebgrovider have been met.

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 28¢ccounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Furaisd Other
Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accountihg State’s proprietary funds follow all GASB
pronouncements and those Financial Accounting Standards BB&#8B) Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting ReseBulletins that were issued on or prior to
November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with a GA®IBgIncement.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expénsesonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and pragluanma delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All rewes and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental fund statements are reported using the curnamici@l resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognizéé igovernmental funds when they become
susceptible to accrual, generally when they become both measurdlaeagable. “Available” means earned and
collected or expected to be collected within the current pericban enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the State generally coagideenues available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the fiscal year.

Significant revenues susceptible to accrual include: income taakss and use taxes, and other taxes; federal
grants; federal reimbursements; and other reimbursemenisdarf materials and services. Revenues from other
sources are recognized when received because they are generally noalieasuil received in cash. Property
taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are foided the “available” criterion is met.

The State Tax Assessor levies taxes on properties located umahganized territory of Maine by August 1 of
each year, and on telecommunications personal properties statewidayb30 of each year. Unorganized
territory property taxes are due on October 1 and telecommumisgt&rsonal property taxes are due on August
15. Formal collection procedures begin on November 1, andidippoperty taxes become a lien no later than
March 15 of the fiscal year for which they are levied.

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurdddwever, expenditures related to claims and
judgments, debt service and compensated absences are recordedeonbayrhent is due and payable.

Financial Statement Presentation
The State reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Funds the State’s primary operating fund. It accounts fofirmdincial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.
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The Highway Fundaccounts for the regulation, construction and maintenance ef I8tdgiways and bridges
and is funded by motor fuel taxes, motor vehicle license egidtration fees, special State appropriations, and
other charges.

The Federal Fundaccounts for grants and other financial assistance receivedttiofederal government,
including federal block grants, that are legally restricted teemdiures for purposes specified in the grant
awards or agreements.

The Other Special Revenue Furabcounts for specific revenue sources that are legally restrioted
expenditures for specified purposes, and the related curretiti#éabincluding some major capital projects
that are not accounted for in the Highway and Federal Fund.

The State reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Maine Employment Security Fumeceives contributions from employers and provides unem@otym
compensation benefits to eligible unemployed workers.

The Alcoholic Beverages Furlitenses and regulates the sale of alcoholic beverages. Disdabyear 2004,
the State of Maine entered into a 10 year contract with a vendoamage and operate wholesale liquor
distribution as the State’s agent.

Additionally, the State reports the following fund types:

Governmental Fund Types:
Special Revenue Fundglude operating fund activities financed by specific revenuecssuhat are legally
restricted for specified purposes. An example is fundadquisition of public reserved lands.

Capital Projects Fundsccount for the acquisition or construction of major capiakts and other programs
financed by bond proceeds.

Permanent Trust Fundeeport resources that are legally restricted to the extenbtiptearnings, and not
principal, may be used for purposes that benefit the govetnondts citizenry. An example is the Baxter
State Park Fund.

Proprietary Fund Types:
Enterprise Fundseport the activities for which fees are charged to external f@egeods or services, such
as the unemployment compensation program, lottery operatiwhsansportation services.

Internal Service Fundprovide goods or services primarily to other agencies alsfoif the State, rather than
to the general public. These goods and services includingremd mailing services, supplies warehousing,
information technology, fleet management, risk management, hkretdted benefits, and financing for
acquisition and construction of governmental facilities.

Fiduciary Fund Types:
Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Furegert resources that are required to be held in trust for
members and beneficiaries of the State’s pension, death andityidadmefit plans. These resources are
managed by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System.

Private Purpose Trust Fundgport resources of all other trust arrangements in whicttipal and income

benefit individuals, private organizations, or other govemisi Examples include Abandoned Property,
Public Reserved Lands, Permanent School funds, and the NextBegeQnvesting Plan.
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Agency Fundseport assets and liabilities for deposits and investmetrssésd to the State as an agent for
others. Examples include amounts held for payroll wittihgk, inmate and student guardianship accounts.

D. FiscAL YEAR-ENDS

All funds and discretely presented component units are repasiag fiscal years which end on June 30, except
for the Maine Educational Loan Authority and the Maine StateskiguAuthority, which utilize December 31
year-ends.

E. ASSETS LIABILITIES , AND NET ASSETSFUND BALANCE

Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool

The State pools cash and cash equivalents for a variety of Seateleayand public sector entities. The pooled
balances are reported at fair value. Interest earned on pooled edishated to the various funds, generally based
on their average equity balances. The Treasurer’'s Cash Potiehgsneral characteristics of a demand deposit
account and is comprised primarily of prime commercial pappurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury Bills, U.S.
Treasury Notes, and other U.S. Agency Obligations, certificditésposit, and corporate bonds.

For component units that participate in the cash pool, eigusiyown at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquidesiments that are both readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are near maturity. On the Statement oFdash) the amount reported as “Cash and Cash
Equivalents” is equal to the total of the amounts reporteith@iStatement of Net Assets as “Equity in Treasurer’s
Cash Pool,” “Cash and Cash Equivalents,” “Cash with Fiscal #Xg&Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash
Pool,” and “Restricted Deposits and Investments.”

Cash with Fiscal Agent

Cash with Fiscal Agent in Governmental Funds represents caskwithbe used for debt service on bonds, the
unspent proceeds of bonds and Certificates of Participatiowelhsas unspent funds of the Maine Biological
Research Board being held by the State.

Cash with Fiscal Agent in Proprietary Funds represents proocgfe@ertificates of Participation and other
financing arrangements that have not been spent.

Other investments of the State are carried at fair value. bimatestments are stated at fair value at the date of
donation.

Investments Held on Behalf of Others

These assets include amounts held by the State in a fiduciary gapatiitg as either a trustee or an agent for
individuals, organizations or other funds. Generally, thegestments are reported at fair value or at amortized
cost which approximates fair value. The State also holds $ll6&n of Workers’ Compensation, $52 million of
Bureau of Insurance, and $23 million of Maine Department obt abrety bonds and letters of credit that are not
reflected on the financial statements.

Restricted Deposits and Investments

Restricted deposits and investments include: unemploymergdaipts deposited with the United States Treasury
that are drawn down to pay unemployment benefits; cashnaedtinents of the Maine Governmental Facilities
Authority, a blended component unit that has been indepdndaindited; unspent bond proceeds, and funds
invested in Certificates of Deposit and other investmenta@bus financial institutions within the State. The
financial institutions lend these deposits and investmerite& commercial and agricultural enterprises to foster
economic growth in Maine.
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Inventories

The costs of materials and supplies of the Governmental Faredeeported as expenditures when purchased.
Undistributed vaccines and food commodities are reportedvastory and deferred revenue in the Federal Fund.
Revenues and corresponding expenditures are recognized whestéogos are used (EBT cards), and when
vaccines and food commodities are issued. Inventories of alatand supplies in the Proprietary Funds are
determined by physical counts and by perpetual inventoryrsgsteroprietary Fund inventories are stated at cost
or average cost.

Inventories included in the component unit column are statix ddwer of cost or market (using the first-in, first-
out method).

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of amounts due to the State thwpayers and service providers. Also included in
receivables are amounts due but not yet remitted to the Statédoftery sales by agents. Loans receivable for the
primary government represent low interest financing arrangenentnstruct and modernize agricultural storage
facilities and local commercial enterprises, as well as Departméeftaangportation loans to local governments.
Receivables in the component units’ column arise in the narmake of business. Receivables are stated net of
estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts that are determassdl lupon past collection experience and
aging of the accounts. Receivables due from related provideistésim payments are $160 million, net of an
allowance for uncollectible amounts of $29.7 million.

Interfund Transactions and Balances

Numerous transactions are made between funds to finance operptimride services, and acquire or construct
assets. To the extent that transactions between funds werempletsal as of June 30, interfund receivables and
payables have been recorded in the fund financial statemenstfuid receivables and payables have been
eliminated from the Statement of Net Assets.

Long-term loans made by one fund to another are classifiéilvasking Capital Advances Receivable” and
“Working Capital Advances Payable.” In the fund financial statésnemdvances receivable are offset by
reservations of fund balance indicating that the reserves dwmnstitute expendable financial resources.

Due from/to Primary Government/Component Units

Numerous transactions are made between the primary governmentrapdnent units to finance operations,
provide services, acquire or construct assets, or repay bdimdthe extent that transactions between funds were
not completed as of June 30, “Due from Primary Government™Bneé to Component Unit” receivables and
payables have been recorded. Two component units have Decemlear &hds, therefore the “due to” and “due
from” amounts will differ.

Due from/to Other Governments

Due from/to Other Governments represents amounts receivableofrgayable to municipalities or the federal
government. Due from Other Governments represents primarily federal gran&vable for Medicaid claims,
other health and human services programs, and federal grantsabbedor transportation-related expenditures.
Due from Other Governments in the component units’ coluempmesents amounts receivable for grants, bond
repayment and retirement benefits. Due to Other Governmeirtsarily consist of amounts owed to
municipalities for Municipal Revenue Sharing and the federakmguonent for Medicaid cost recoveries from
providers.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipmentird#raktructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, ramps and
similar items), are reported in the government-wide statenagmtsapplicable fund financial statements. Capital
assets that are used for governmental activities are only reportee government-wide statements. The State
capitalizes governmental fund buildings valued at $1 milliomore and proprietary fund buildings valued at $100
thousand or more. Governmental fund equipment is capitaliz&dCathousand or more and proprietary fund
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equipment is capitalized $3 thousand or more. All land, réggrdf value, is capitalized. Capital assets are
recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market valuateatofl acquisition. In some instances, capital
assets historical cost were not available. The costs of theds asthe date of acquisitions have been estimated.

In the government-wide statements, most capital assets are depreciadestraight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives, which are 10-40 years for buildargsimprovements, and 2-25 years for equipment. The
State uses the modified approach for reporting its signifiofrastructure assets. As long as the State maintains
and preserves its infrastructure assets at pre-determined eondiels, maintenance costs are expensed and
depreciation is not reported. This approach is discusséakfunt the Required Supplementary Information.

Capital assets of component units are capitalized upon purchaseediated over their estimated useful lives.

Interest incurred during construction is capitalized. The astighuseful lives of fixed assets are 5-60 years for
structures and improvements and 3-15 years for equipmenitufe, fixtures and vehicles. Component units

reflect infrastructure in improvements other than buildingsranord depreciation expense on them.

Accounts Payable

Accounts payable represent the gross amount of expendituggpairses incurred as a result of normal operations,
but for which no actual payment has yet been issued to vémanislers. Incurred but not paid (IBNP) Medicaid
claims settlements; however, are actuarially estimated. The é3htRate at June 30, 2007 is $317 million.

Tax Refunds Payable
The amount of collected or accrued tax revenues that will be refim@stimated and accrued as a General Fund
liability.

Claims Payable

Claims payable represent workers’ compensation, retiree healthoyemphealth, and other claims payable,
including actual claims submitted and actuarially determined claimsred but not reported. The actuarially
determined claims liability is discounted and presented girasént value.

Compensated Employee Absences

In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund finasteisgments, compensated absences are recorded
as liabilities as required by GASB. In the governmentatl ffimancial statements, vested or accumulated leave

expected to be liquidated with current available financial resowsaepdorted as an expenditure and fund liability.

In the discretely presented component units, employees’ accumutaiigzensated absences are recorded as an
expense and liability as the benefits accrue.

Deferred Revenue

In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund finasteiments, deferred revenue is recognized when
cash, receivables, or other assets are received prior to theirdagimgd. In the governmental fund statements,
amounts recorded as receivable that do not meet the “availabilitgti@n for recognition as revenue in the
current period are classified as deferred revenue. Resources receiliedgbyernment before it has a legal claim
to them are also included as deferred revenue. Deferred revenueddpdhe General Fund relates to sales and
income taxes. Deferred revenue in the Federal Fund consistsilyriofidood commodities and vaccines not yet
issued. Deferred revenue in the Alcoholic Beverages Fund cawsphe proceeds from the sale of the State’s
liquor operations.

Pledged Future Revenues

In the Statement of Net Assets, the amount of bond proaeedsved by a component unit for unmatured
GARVEE bond proceeds is called “Pledged Future Revenues.” Téettnf§ receivables are classified as “Loans
Receivable from Primary Government.”
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Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund fiabsiEtements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are recorded as liabilities.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types remdhe face amount of debt issued as other
financing sources.

Net Assets/Fund Balances
The difference between fund assets and liabilities is “Net Assgtsthe government-wide, proprietary, and
fiduciary fund statements, and “Fund Balances” on governmentistatements.

Fund Balance Reservations

Fund balances for governmental funds are classified as either egsarvunreserved in the fund financial
statements. Reserved fund balances reflect either: funds legtilgteesfor a specific future use, or assets which,
by their nature, are not available for expenditure. Unresemved lbalances reflect the balances available for
appropriation for the general purposes of the fund.

The State reported the following fund balance reservations:

Continuing Appropriations indicates appropriations and encumbrances that the Legislasirgphcifically
authorized to be carried into the next fiscal year, if unexpended.

Capital Projects- indicates a legally segregated portion of funds availabi@aode the construction of major
capital facilities.

Permanent Trusts indicates assets reserved for the purpose of the permangnt fun

Other - indicates fund balance reserved for other specified purpodleslimg amounts for working capital
needs, long-term loans to other funds, transfers to otadsf and contingency funds from which the
Governor may allocate sums for various purposes.

F. REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenues and sepeme segregated by activity (governmental
or business-type), then further by function (e.g., governiai support & operations, education, health & human
services, etc). Additionally, revenues are classified betweengmognd general revenues. Program revenues
include: charges to customers or applicants for goods, serdgcgwivileges provided; operating grants and
contributions; and capital grants and contributions. laifriedicated resources are reported as general revenues,
rather than as program revenue. General revenues include all Bgdsin indirect costs are included in the
program expenses reported for individual functions.

In the governmental fund financial statements, revenues areeepiyrtsource. For budgetary control purposes,
revenues are further classified as either “dedicated” or “undedicatediédidated revenues are available to fund
any activity accounted for in the fund. Dedicated revenues arer bighState law or by outside restriction (e.g.,
federal grants), available only for specified purposes. Undseitated revenues at year-end are recorded as
reservations of fund balance. When both dedicated and undedigatixdare available for use, it is the State’s
policy to use dedicated resources first.

In the governmental fund financial statements, expendituregpoeted by function. Capital outlay expenditures
for real property or infrastructure (e.g. highways) are iredimith expenditures by function.

Revenues and expenses of proprietary funds are classified asngperatonoperating and are subclassified by
object (e.g. general operations and depreciation). Operatinguevand expenses generally result from providing
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services and producing and delivering goods. All other reegmnd expenses are reported as nonoperating,
capital contributions, transfers or special items.

NOTE 2 -BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL, AND LEGAL COMPLIAN CE

Appropriation Limits

The total General Fund appropriation for each fiscal year dbigrenium in the Governor's budget submission to
the Legislature may not exceed the General Fund appropridtibe previous fiscal year multiplied by one plus
the average real personal income growth rate, as defined in TWkirne Revised Statutes Annotated (MRSA) §
1665, subsection 1, plus the average forecasted inflation féteerage forecasted inflation rate” means the
average forecasted change in the Consumer Price Index underlgimgvinue projections developed by the
Revenue Forecasting Committee.

This appropriation limitation may be exceeded only by the amot the additional costs or the lost federal
revenue from the following exceptional circumstances: unfundeshder-funded new federal mandates; losses in
federal revenues or other revenue sources; citizens' initiativesesenda that require increased State spending;
court orders or decrees that require additional State resources\pdy with the orders or decrees; and sudden or
significant increases in demand for existing State servicesateahot the result of legislative changes that
increased eligibility or increased benefits.

The Governor may designate exceptional circumstances that arepfiotlgxdefined, but meet the intent of, this
statute. "Exceptional circumstances" means an unforeseen comditimmditions over which the Governor and
the Legislature have little or no control. Exceptional cirdamses do not apply to new programs or program
expansions that go beyond existing program criteria and operati

Budget Stabilization Fund

The Maine Budget Stabilization Fund, a fund designation ésiall under Title 5 MRSA C. 142, is included in

the negative $263.9 million unreserved General Fund fund balameeunts in the stabilization fund may be

expended only to offset a General Fund revenue shortfall. GBernor may also allocate funds for payment of
death benefits for law enforcement officers, firefighters anergemcy medical services personnel.

Balances in the fund do not lapse, but carry forward each ydaney in the fund may be invested with any
earnings credited to the fund except when the fund is abitg@ty cap. In addition to interest earnings, the fund
is capitalized at the close of each fiscal year. As the thioditgrbefore any other transfer, the State Controller is
required to transfer 35 percent of the unappropriated sugbltise General Fund, when the fund is not at its
statutory cap. In accordance with statute, since there wasapprapriated surplus in 2007, no transfer was
required.

The statutory cap for the fund is 12 percent of the total Geemd revenue received in the immediately

preceding fiscal year. At the close of the fiscal year, the capgsisdbon the revenue received in the fiscal year
being closed. Based on fiscal year 2007 actual General Fund retrengegtutory cap at the close of fiscal year

2007 and during fiscal year 2007 was $362.4 million.th&t close of fiscal year 2007, the balance of the Maine
Budget Stabilization Fund was $115.5 million. No redunito the Maine Budget Stabilization Fund balance are
required when it exceeds the balance of the statutory cap as afesd#cline of General Fund revenue.
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Budget Stabilization Fund Activity
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance, beginning of ye $  79,90!
Increase in fund balance 35,577
Balance, end of ye $ 115,48(

Budget and Budgetary Expenditures

The biennial budget sets forth proposed expenditures foadhenistration, operation and maintenance of the
departments and agencies of the State Government; all interedgtztrmédemption charges during each fiscal year
and all expenditures for capital projects to be undertaken aecltex during each fiscal year. Within this

structure, budgetary control by agency is maintained at thegmognd line category level. The State Budget
Officer and the Governor must approve budget revisions giuttie year, reflecting program changes or
intradepartmental administrative transfers.

Except in specific instances, only the Legislature may transfgoppations between departments. Changes in
appropriation, allocation, or funding for new programs aesgnted to the Legislature as a supplemental budget.
For the year ended June 30, 2007, the Legislature decreaseensemmjal appropriations to the General Fund by
$15.2 million.

Actual expenditures did not exceed legislatively authorized gpptimns at the Department level; therefore, the
State complied with all related budget laws at the legal level.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND RESTATEMENTS

Accounting Changes

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statemen#3J&inancial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plabscame effective in fiscal year 2007; however, it was not apf@itab
the State as no trust fund has yet been established for ptasterapt benefits.

Changes in Classification

Beginning in fiscal year 2007, Maine Health and Higher EducaltiBacilities Authority (MHHEFA) is reported

as a discrete component unit. Prior to fiscal year 2007, MHt&as reported with the State’s fiduciary funds.
This change was made after re-evaluating the nature of the ditéyState determined that it is more correctly
classified as an enterprise activity. As a result, beginngtgassets for discretely presented component units
increased $30.2 million.

The presentation of component units was changed to depiat amajcnonmajor classifications.

Change in Accounting Estimate

The liability estimate for incurred but not paid (IBNP) Mmadd claims as of June 30, 2006 was reduced by
approximately $117 million as determined by actuarial calcukatiarhe cause of the decrease was a higher-than-
usual claims payment pattern at the end of fiscal year 2006ngathsi IBNP amount to be inflated. The payment
pattern has now stabilized, resulting in more consistent éatuasults.

Restatement — Primary Government

The beginning net assets on the Governmental Activities irStatement of Net Assets were decreased $7.5
million for assets that should not have been capitalized inpti@ period. Beginning net assets in the
governmental funds balance sheet, general fund, decreased lgiidrifor a correction to receivables from the
lottery fund.
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NOTE 4 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/NET ASSETS

Five internal service funds showed deficit Net Assets forfidwal year ended June 30, 2007. The Workers'’
Compensation Fund reported a deficit of $15.2 millionictviveflects accruals for actuarially determined claims
payable. The Leased Space Fund had a fund balance deficit of $i#:2 logicause rates charged were insufficient
to cover expenses incurred. The Postal, Printing & Sufuply reported a deficit of $65 thousand because
expenses are recognized when incurred; however, related revenue @armed until jobs are satisfactorily
completed. The Information Services Fund has a deficit baldn$818 thousand because rates charged were
insufficient to cover expenses incurred. The Financial & Peeddervices Fund had a fund balance deficit of
$1.2 million because rates charged were insufficient to cover expémsurred. All of the deficits mentioned
above are expected to be funded by future service charges.

The Alcoholic Beverages Enterprise Fund shows a deficit ob®&ilion. During fiscal year 2004, the State of
Maine entered into a 10 year contract with a vendor to managepanate wholesale liquor distribution as the
State’s agent. The deficit reflects the deferral of license feewithee amortized over that 10 year period.

The Maine Military Authority Enterprise Fund shows a defidi $168 thousand. Expenses are recognized when
incurred; however, related revenue is not earned until repgegis are satisfactorily completed. The deficit will
be funded by future billings as projects are completed.

The General Fund shows a deficit fund balance of $156.3 méfiddune 30, 2007, and a deficit of $179.7 million
at June 30, 2006, as restated. The change in recognizing inezleeand fuel tax revenues to 60 days from one
year decreased the beginning fund balance by $137.3 milliascal ffear 2006. This deficit is in part due to the
full recognition of the state’s share of Medicaid liabilitediscal year end, which are funded throughout the year
with the aforementioned tax revenue. The federal portion edetHiabilities is also fully accrued, with an
offsetting receivable from the federal government as allowed UBASB 33. Per GASB 33 revenue associated
with government mandated non-exchange transactions should bgnirecb when applicable eligibility
requirements have been met and the resources are available. Mediraiehitlement program. Therefore, the
funds are available when the payments for these liabilities acegzed.

NOTE 5 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Title 5 MRSA § 135 governs the deposit and investmentigsliof the State of Maine Office of the Treasurer.
The Treasurer may deposit State funds, including trusdsfof the State, in any of the banking institutions
(including trust companies, State or federal savings anddssociations, and mutual savings banks) organized
under the laws of this State and any national bank or feskraigs and loan association located in the State.

The State follows the practice of pooling cash and cash equivétera variety of State agencies and public sector
entities. The Treasurer may invest funds that exceed curregiatidntis, with the concurrence of the State
Controller or the Commissioner of Administrative and FaiainServices and the consent of the Governor.

Approved investments include bonds, notes, certificatesdebiedness, other obligations of the United States that
mature not more than 36 months from the date of investmggmirchase agreements secured by obligations of the
United States that mature within the succeeding 12 monthag prommercial paper; tax-exempt obligations;
corporate bonds rated “AAA” that mature within 36 monthsnftbe date of investment; banker's acceptances; and
“no-load” shares of an investment company registered under theaFboestment Company Act of 1940, whose
shares maintain a constant share price. Although authorizdd sw, the Treasurer does not participate in the
securities loan market.
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Investment policies of the permanent trusts are governed ey FiIMRSA § 138. The Treasurer, with the
approval of the Commissioner of Administrative and Finan8atvices, the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions and the Attorney General, shall invest thel$uin securities that are legal investments in accordance
with Title 9-B MRSA. The investments need not be segregatéte separate trusts, but the identity of each trust
must be maintained. The Treasurer may enter into custodial casericing contracts or agreements negotiated
in accordance with the laws of this State for the handlirigrafs held in trust.

No amounts exceeding 25 percent of the capital, surplus, ratidided profits of any trust company or national
bank or 25 percent of the reserve fund and undividedtprofia mutual savings bank or State or federal savings
and loan association, shall be on deposit in any one iistitat any one time. This restriction does not apply to
deposits subject to immediate withdrawal to meet the paymemtyobonded debt or interest or to pay current bills
or expenses of the State. Also exempt are deposits securesl flgdhe of certain securities as collateral or fully
covered by insurance.

With assistance from the Finance Authority of Maine, the Treagarticipates in a restricted deposit program to
encourage banks to provide loans at two percent below marketTiageTreasurer may invest up to $8 million in
lending institutions at a two percent lower-than-market raigiged the lenders pass the rate reduction on to the
borrowers. $4 million of this program are earmarked fan$oto agricultural enterprises and the other $4 million
are designated for commercial entities.

The Primary Government’s Deposits and Investments excludingponent units that are fiduciary in nature at
June 30, 2007:

Primary Government Deposits and Investments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business- Private
Governmental Type Purpose Agency
Activities Activities Trusts Funds Total

Equity in Treasurer's Cash

Pool $ 484,089 $ 13,740 $ 1,272 $ 6,590 $ 505,691
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,511 1,646 - 14 13,171
Cash with Fiscal Agent 46,450 - - 27 46,477
Investments 79,424 - 11,647 - 91,071
Restricted Equity in

Treasurer's Cash Pool 14,493 - - - 14,493
Restricted Deposits and

Investments 16,301 463,099 - - 479,400
Investments Held on

Behalf of Others - - 5,231,583 62,260 5,293,843
Other Assets - - 18,001 389 18,390
Total Primary Government $ 652,268 $ 478,485 $ 5,262,503 $ 69,280 $ 6,462,536

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rétdshd investments will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. In general, the Statés lsglcurities to maturity. All debt securities are
reported at full-term.
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The following table provides the segmented time distributicthe Primary Governmentisivestmentat June
30, 2007:

Maturities in Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Less More No Fair
than 1 1-5 6-10 11-20 than 20 Maturity Value

Governmental and Business-Type Activities, exctudion-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds

US Instrumentalities $16,901 $48,386 $ - $ - $ - $ - $65,287
US Treasury Notes 7,888 - - - - - 7,888
Repurchase Agreements 15,760 - - - - - 15,760
Corporate Notes and Bonds 13,675 3,978 - - - - 17,653
Commercial Paper 167,755 - - - - - 167,755
Certificates of Deposit 9,862 1,471 - - - - 11,333
Money Market 242,150 - - - - - 242,150
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - - - 13,954 13,954
Unemployment Fund

Deposits with US Treasury - - - - - 463,099 463,099
Private-Purpose Trusts, Agency Funds, and Non-M&jmecial Revenue and Permanent Funds
US Instrumentalities 1,023 4,668 2,248 1,383 5,646 - 14,968
US Treasury Notes 3,409 17,013 3,184 6,267 3,614 - 33,487

Repurchase Agreements 29 - - - - - 29

Corporate Notes and Bonds 1,728 4,598 2,177 183 2,191 - 10,877
Other Fixed Income
Securities - - 132 - - - 132
Commercial Paper 2,574 - - - - - 2,574
Certificates of Deposit 127 23 - - - - 150
Money Market 3,716 - - - - 1,254 4,970
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - - - 27,627 27,627
Equities - - - - - 66,082 66,082
Other - - - - - 311 311
$486,597 $80,137 $7,741 $7,833 $11,451 $572,32  $1,166,086
NextGen College Investing
Plan 5,231,583
Other Assets 18.390
Cash with Fiscal Agent 46,477
Total Primary Government $6.462.536

Credit Risk —Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counteyptartan investment will not fulfill its

obligations. This credit risk is measured by the creditityuedtings of investments as described by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations. To the extenilpess the Treasurer's Cash Pool, at least 30 percent
of the portfolio shall be invested in U.S. Treasury, Fed@ggncy or Federal Instrumentality securities, or
Repurchase Agreements. The State limits credit risk inugsstiby ensuring that at least 85 percent of the debt
securities are rated A or better.
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The Primary Government’s total investments by credit quedting as of June 30, 2007 are presented below:

Standard & Poor’s Credit Rating (Expressed in Thowsands)

Not
Al A AA AA+ AAA BB BBB Rated Total
Governmental and Business-Type Activities, excublion-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds
US Instrumentalities $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 65,287 $ -$ - $ - $ 65,287
US Treasury Notes - - - - 7,888 - - - 7,888
Corporate Notes
and Bonds - - : - 176853 - - : 17,653
Commercial Paper 100,732 - - - - - - 67,023* 167,755
Money Market - - - - - - - 242,150 242,150
Private-Purpose Trusts, Agency Funds, and Non-M8jecial Revenue and Permanent Funds
US Instrumentalities - 98 344 - 3,962 - - 10,564 14,968
US Treasury Notes - 300 123 - 33,064 - - - 33,487
Corporate Notes - 2075 947 - 3170 23 729 3,933 10,877
and Bonds
Commercial Paper 1,545 - - - - - - 1,029* 2,574
Money Market - - - - - - - 4,970 4,970
Other Fixed Income ) ) ) ) ) ) 132 ) 132
Securities
Total Primary
Government $102,277 $2473 $1414 $ - $131024 $ 23 $ 861 $329,669 $ 567,741

*Rated “P1” by Moody’s credit rating.

Concentration of Credit RiskGencentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributedthe magnitude of a
government’s investment in a single issuer. The State lpnitsentration of credit risk in its trusts by requiring
that no single stock represent more than 10 percent of #ileptotfolio. There is no concentration of credit risk
policy for the Treasurer's Cash Pool. At June 30, 26@te than 5 percent of the cash pool’s investments were in
Citizens Bank, and TD Banknorth. These investments are B8288n (42.1 percent), and $34 million (5.1
percent), respectively, of the cash pool’s total investments.

Custodial Credit Risk For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk thatthe event of a failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the State will not be able to eetlo® value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The State ilis custodial credit risk for the Treasurer's Cash Pool
by maintaining a file of the most recent credit rating analysisrts performed for each approved financial
institution. The State also requires that all securities biegied in the name of the State and held in third party
safekeeping by a state approved custodian. Of the cash poalsrillibn invested in non-negotiable certificates
of deposit, $5.8 million exceeded the FDIC insured amowntthé institutions at which they were held. The State
does not have a policy regarding custodial credit risk fotritsts. The Percival P. Baxter Trust is held by the
counterparty’s trust department, but not in the State’s name.
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The fair value of the trust’s investments as of June 307 2&as $66.8 million and was comprised of the following:

U.S. Instrumentalities $ 8,123
US Treasury Notes 3,387
Corporate Notes and Bonds 5,744
Other Fixed Income Securities 132
Equities 47,879
Cash and Equivalents 1,307
Other 261
Total $ 66,833

The State and certain vendors contract with a fiscal intermeditayeon, for electronic disbursements from the
State to its vendors. During fiscal year 2007, these dismants, on average, exceeded $153 million per month.
The funds in transit are not collateralized and are not helchdState Treasurer. Until the vendor receives
payment, the State retains some liability.

MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System (The Systengsniakestments in a combination of equities,
fixed income securities, mutual funds, commingled mutual adex funds, derivative financial instruments, and
other investment securities established by the Trustee’s inmespolicy. The System prohibits its investment
managers from using leverage in its derivative financial imstnis or from investing in speculative positions.

Securities Lending The System has also entered into agreements for securitiesglératisactions, which are
collateralized in an amount at least equal to 102 percent (105 péscémternational securities) of the market
value of the securities loaned. All securities and loans caerbengted on demand by either the lender or the
borrower.

Cash open collateral is invested in a short-term investmehtthe Global Core Collateral Section. Cash collateral
may also be invested separately in “term loans.” At June 3@, 2000f the collateral for securities lending is
subject to custodial credit risk. The System believes tleaé s no credit risk as defined in GASB Statement No.
28 and GASB Statement No. 40. The collateral held and the nvaitkket of securities on loan for the System as of
June 30, 2007 was $3.6 billion and $3.5 billion, respelsti

NEXTGEN COLLEGE INVESTING PLAN

The Maine College Savings Program Fund (the Fund) doinmpdsssas NextGen College Investing Plan (the
Program), was established in accordance with Title 20-A MRBIX &3, to encourage the investment of funds to
be used for Qualified Higher Education Expenses at institsitdf higher education. The Program is designed to
comply with the requirements for treatment as a Qualifiece Staition Program under Section 529 of the Internal
Revenue Code.

The statute authorizes the Finance Authority of Maine (“FAME)administer the Program and act as
administrator of the Fund. The Fund is held by the Treasirthe State who invests it under the direction of and
with the advice of a seven member Advisory Committee ore@elSavings, which is chaired by the Treasurer.
FAME and the Treasurer have selected Merrill Lynch as the Progranadér. The Program is reported as a
private purpose trust fund in the financial statements dbtate.

NextGen’s investments are comprised of 47 different investpemifiolios which are reported at fair value and
total $5.2 billion at June 30, 2007.

Custodial Credit Risk- NextGen, in accordance with its Program Description, pilynarvests in open-end

mutual funds, which, according to GASB Statement No. ddat bear custodial credit risk; hence, the Program’s
exposure to custodial credit risk arising from its invesimn mutual funds is considered to be insignificant.
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The Program makes some investments in entities which are mealnfunds including a Guaranteed Investment
Contract (GIC) issued by Transamerica Life Insurance CompatlyeirPrincipal Plus Portfolio. Because an
investment in a GIC represents a contractual investment rathea tbacurity, it is not deemed to be subject to
custodial credit risk.

The Program also invests in the Cash Allocation AccountAtiveunt), a separate account that was established by
FAME. All of the Account investments are held in either thee of the Account or the Account Agent’'s name,
thereby minimizing the custodial credit risk.

Credit Risk -The Program has not established an investment policy theifisplly limits its exposure to credit
risk. The Program’s investments in fixed income mutuati$uthe Principal Plus Portfolio, and the Account may
bear credit risk. The GIC underlying the Program’s investrimetine Principal Plus Portfolio has not been rated by
any of the nationally recognized statistical rating organizatidrtge fair value of the GIC at June 30, 2007 was
$62.1 million.

The assets of the Account are invested in a portfolio ofdpgthity, short-term money-market securities consisting
primarily of direct U.S. Government obligations, U.S.v&mment agency securities, obligations of domestic and
foreign banks, U.S. dollar denominated commercial paper, aed stiort-term debt securities issued by U.S. and
foreign entities repurchase agreements. In addition, the Atowests in certificates of deposit issued by Maine
financial institutions in accordance with instructions of HAMNd the Treasurer. All Maine Certificate of
Deposit's are FDIC insured or fully collateralized. The valiihe Account at June 30, 2007 was $289.2 million.

Concentration of Credit Risk he Program has not established an investment policy thafisalgcilimits its
exposure to concentration of credit risk because the Progiaaipatly invests in mutual funds which have been
excluded by GASB Statement No. 40 from its concentrationisofasure risk requirements.

Interest Rate Risk Fhe Program has not established an investment policy thigd limrestment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arisimg iihcreasing interest rates. The Program’s
investments in fixed income mutual funds, the Principal Plusfolio, and the Account all invest in securities that
are subject to interest rate risk.

Market values of the above-mentioned investments are presented(lmetbousands):

Fair Value
Principal Plus Portfolio $ 62,090
Cash Allocation Account 289,212
Fixed Income Securities 1,032,289
Total Fair Value $1,383,591

COMPONENT UNITS

Generally, component unit investment policies authorize invessnierobligations of U.S. Treasury and Agency

Securities, repurchase agreements, corporate bonds, certificatepasitdand money market funds. Some

component units may invest in stocks, bonds, fixed incggoarities, mutual funds, commingled mutual funds and
index funds, guaranteed investment contracts, real estate ancthodstment securities.

Certain component units also invest in the Treasurer's CashaRd comprise approximately 16 percent of pool
assets. The component units reported their participation leer €ash and Cash Equivalents or Investments on
their financial statements. The State reclassified $96.40midlf the component units’ participation to “Equity in
Treasurer's Cash Pool” on the State’s financial statementsaddition to the amounts reported, the State
Treasurer's Cash Pool includes $18.8 million, consistinginance Authority of Maine component unit fiduciary
funds that, because of GASB Statement No. 34 reportingriaritare not shown in the accompanying financial
statements.
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NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

Receivable balances are segregated by type, classified as current andembnand presented in the fund
financial statements net of allowance for uncollectibles. Thewwlg tables disaggregate amounts considered to
be uncollectible by fund and type of receivable as of the clotediscal year:

Primary Government — Receivables
(Expressed in Thousands)

Allowance
for Net
Taxes Accounts Loans Uncollectibles Receivables

Governmental Funds:

General $539,806 $195,650 $1 ($201,546) $533,911

Highway 28,064 263 71 (4,465) 23,933

Federal - 124,865 - (33,108) 91,757

Other Special Revenue 10,297 75,138 5,469 (5,397) 85,507

Other Governmental Funds - - - - -
Total Governmental Funds 578,167 395,916 5,541 (244,516) 735,108
Allowance for Uncollectibles (142,182) 0@1353) (981)
Net Receivables $435,985 $294,563 $4,560 T $735,108
Proprietary Funds:

Employment Security $0 $36,847 $0 ($8,008) $28,839

Nonmajor Enterprise - 22,517 - (425) 22,092

Internal Service - 5,818 182,605 - 188,423
Total Proprietary Funds - 65,182 182,605 (8,433) 239,354
Allowance for Uncollectibles - (8,433) -
Net Receivables $0 $ 56,749 $182,605 T $ 239,354

Component Units — Receivables
(Expressed in Thousands)
Allowance
For Net
Accounts Loans Notes Uncollectibles Receivables

Finance Authority of Maine $4,366 $ - $170,286 ($4,776) $169,876
Maine Community College System 4,050 - - (804) 3,246
Maine Health and Educational
Facilities Authority 3,666 2,318,841 - (1,064,488) 1,258,019
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 1,746 - - - 1,746
Maine State Housing Authority 21,575 1,160,219 1,039 (9,767) 1,173,066
University of Maine System 28,727 - 41,653 (3,290) 67,090
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund receivables and payables represent amounts owed ttateé&iB8d by another, for goods sold or services
received, or for borrowings to eliminate negative balances ifirgsurer’'s Cash Pool.

Balances due within one year are recorded as Due to/Due fromFoitnds. The balances of current interfund
receivables and payables as of June 30, 2007 were:

Interfund Receivables
(Expressed in Thousands)

Dueto Other Funds

Other

Special Other
Due from Other Funds General Highway Federal Revenue Govemmental
General $ 10,741 $ 17
Highway 4,692
Federal 1,171 20 136 102
Other Special Revenue 1,956 266 2,298 582
Employment Security 16
Non-Major Enterprise 2,690 2 5,182 5
Intemal Service 13,185 4,45 3,131 2,017
Fiduciary 6,766
Total $ 25,768 $ 2,739 $ 26,196 $ 2,706 $ 71

Non-Major Internal

Due to Other Funds Enterprise Service Fiduciary Total
General $ 8,689 $ 18,186 $ 466, $ 39,153
Highway 2,620 23
Federal 3,804 532
Other Special Revenue 653 2,861 8,616
Employment Security 16
Non-Major Enterprise 86 1,011 8,976
Intemal Service 312 ,996 23,092
Fiduciary 6,766
Total $ 9,74( $ 30,47 $ 1,46t $ 99,1¢

Not included in the table above are interfund loans/advanceshahé not expected to be repaid within one year.
Postal, Printing & Supply (an internal service fund) owkklfthousand to the General Fund for operating capital.

Transfers are made in accordance with statutory authority. fi§agitransfers are used to 1) move revenues from
the fund that statute requires to collect them to the fhat dtatute requires to expend them, 2) move receipts
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restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the rectghe funds required to pay debt service as principal
and interest payments come due, 3) use unrestricted revenwagecbih the General Fund to finance various
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance withdbaggauthorizations, 4) move profits from the

Lottery Fund, and 5) transfer accumulated surpluses from @ithds to the General Fund when authorized by
statute.

During fiscal year 2007, the State of Maine, in accordance wéhldgislatively authorized budget, recorded
several non-routine, nonrecurring transfers.

The General Fund transferred $27.8 million to other fndshe following purposes: $2.1 million to the Other
Special Revenue Fund for the Fund for a Healthy Maine, $18l@mto the unappropriated surplus of the
Highway Fund, $8.7 million to the Federal Fund for iedt cost allocation settlements and federal audit
settlements within the Department of Health and Human Senacels$2.0 million to the Information Services
Fund to partially fund the development and implementaticghefState accounting system.

The Other Special Revenue Fund transferred $6.6 million tortéyepropriated surplus of the General Fund.

The Dirigo Health Fund transferred $1.1 million to the ymapriated surplus of the General Fund.

The Employee Health Insurance Fund transferred $3.5 millitmetanappropriated surplus of the General Fund.
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Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2007, texhsibthe following:

Interfund Transfers
(Expressed in Thousands)

Transferred From

Other

Special Other
Transferred To General Highway Federal Revenue Governmental
General $ - $ - $ 5 $ 42,098 $ 3,023
Highway 16,911 - - - -
Federal 10,055 - - 15,472 -
Other Special Revenue 153,834 - 12,794 - 8,535
Other Governmental Funds 3,023 - - 42 -
Employment Security - - - - -
Non-Major Enterprise 858 3,755 7 109 -
Internal Service 5,393 1,407 1,196 1,158 -
Fiduciary - - - 16 -
Total $ 190,074 $ 5,162 $ 14,002 $ 58,895 $ 1,568

Transferred From

Alcoholic Employment Non-Major Internal
Transferred To Beverages Security Enterprise Service Fiduciary Total
General $ 24 $ - $ 51,753 $ 9,473 $ 8,916 $ 115,292
Highway - - - 835 - 20,736
Federal - 1,146 - 3,598 - 30,271
Other Special Revenue - - 5,770 2,455 144 B2
Other Governmental Funds - - - - - 3,065
Employment Security - - - - - -
Non-Major Enterprise - - - 931 - 5,660
Internal Service - - 318 1,702 - 124
Fiduciary - - - - - 16
Total $ 24 $ 1,146 $ 57,841 $ 21,984 $ 9,060 $ 369,746
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NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following schedule details changes in capital assetsd@abernmental activities and business-type activities
of the primary government for the fiscal year ended June(®,: 2

Primary Government — Capital Asset:
(Expressed in Thousan

Beginning Increases anc Decreases an Ending
Balance* Other Additions Other Deletions Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 394,069 $ 3005 $ 788 $ 424,32
Construction in progress 6,818 21,191 17,779 10,23
Infrastructure 2,861,522 162451 - 3,023,97
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,262,409 214,692 18,567 3,458,5¢
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 506,881 B53 2,697 560,3C
Equipment 254,007 cvail 52,499 248,12
Improvements other than buildings 17,233 1,016 3 18,24
Total capital assets being depreciated 778,121 103,760 55,199 826,6¢€
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 129,264 B34 2,620 183,9C
Equipment 166,813 16 30,549 158,14
Improvements other than buildir 2,02 6,97 8,9¢
Total accumulated depreciation 8,295 86,112 33,172 351,04
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 480,016 17,648 22,027 475,63
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, 3,742,42 % 23234 % 4059 % 3,934,17
Beginning Ending
Balance* Net Additions Net Deletions Balance
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 38,161 $ 256 $ - $ 38,41
Construction in progress 925 2,688 - 3,61
Total capital assets not being depreciated 39,086 2944 - 42,03
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 9,32 45 9,7€
Equipment 20,220 23 767 43,3€
Improvements other than buildings 61,218 - - 61,21
Total capital assets being depreciated 90,760 24383 771 114,37
Less accumulated depreciation 50,816 15,875 650 66,04
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 39,944 8,508 121 48,332
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, 79,03 % 1145 % 12 $ 90,3€

*As restated.
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During the fiscal year, depreciation expense was charged to lihsifg functions in the governmental activities
column of the Statement of Activities for the primary govezntn

Governmental Activities — Depreciation Expense
(Expressed in Thousands)

Amount

Governmental Activities:

Arts, Heritage and Cultural Enrichment $ 40
Business Licensing and Regulation 390
Economic Development and Workforce Training 824
Education 2,059
Governmental Support and Operations 6,798
Health and Human Services 6,608
Justice and Protection 10,843
Natural Resources Development and Protection 4,378
Transportation Safety and Development 11,873
Total Depreciation Expense — Governmental Adésit $ 43,813

NOTE 9 - MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

PLAN DESCRIPTION

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System, formerly thendiState Retirement System, (the System),
which is a component unit of the State, is the administdtan agent, multiple-employer, defined benefit public
employee retirement system established and administered uitldes MRSA C. 421, 423, and 425. Financial
information for the System is included in the StatemeRidiiciary Net Assets and in the Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets. Additional schedules and notes are pedsarthe accompanying Required Supplementary
Information (RSI). The System issues a publicly availablepcehensive annual financial report that includes
schedules of funding progress and employer contributidiiee June 30, 2007 report may be obtained from the
Maine Public Employees Retirement System, 46 State HousenS#atigusta, ME 04333.

The System provides pension, disability, and survivorefisnto its members and their beneficiaries. Members
include employees of the State, public school employees whef@ned by Maine law as teachers for whom the
State is the employer for retirement contribution and bepefftioses, and employees of approximately 270 local
municipalities and other public entities (PLD’s) in Mainee3$é 270 entities each contract for participation in the
System under provisions of relevant statutes.

At June 30, 2007, membership consisted of:

Active vested and nonvested members 52,060

Terminated vested participants 7,852

Retirees and benefit recipie 33,58¢
Total 93,498

The System’s retirement programs provide retirement bsrifged on members’ average final compensation and
creditable service. Vesting occurs upon the earning of five ydaservice credit or the earning of one year of
service credit immediately preceding retirement at or after naetiE@ment age. Normal retirement age is age 60
or 62, determined by whether the member had at least 10 yeeneddfble service on June 30, 1993 (effective
October 1, 1999, the prior ten-year requirement was reducédetgears by legislative action). The monthly
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benefit is reduced by a statutorily prescribed factor for eachofeage that a member is below her/his normal
retirement age at retirement. The System also provides ldisabid survivor benefits, which are established by
statute for State employee and teacher members, and by contiacotihgtr participating employers under
applicable statutory provisions.

Upon termination of membership, members’ accumulated employdgbations are refundable with interest,
credited in accordance with statute. Withdrawal of accumulated lmatintns results in forfeiture of all benefits
and membership rights. The annual rate of interest credit¢driionated members’ accounts is set by the
System’s Board of Trustees and is currently 6 percent.

In the event that a PLD withdraws from the System, itssziddal employee-members can terminate membership
or remain contributing members. The PLD remains liabtecfintributions sufficient to fund benefits for its
already retired former employee-members; for its terminatectdvesembers; and for those active employees,
whether or not vested, who remain contributing System raesnb

Contributions from members and employers and earnings iffreestments fund retirement benefits. Employer

contributions and investment earnings fund disability death benefits. Member and employer contributions are
a percentage of applicable member compensation. Member contribatids are defined by law and depend on
the terms of the plan under which a member is covered. Emplowpéiibution rates are determined by biennial

actuarial valuations.

The total funds managed by the System are constitutioresitsicted and held in trust for the payment of pension
and related benefits to its members. The System’s Boafdustees, in its fiduciary capacity, establishes the
System’s investment policies and their overall implementati@he System maintains separate reserves and
accounts for each participating entity and performs separate acwedriations for each participating entity’s
respective plan.

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System management’s @iédiqun of the State of Maine statutes is that
all assets accumulated for the payment of benefits may legallysdxe to pay benefits, including refunds of
member contributions, to any plan members or beneficiarfes Sfstem is therefore regarded as administering an
agent multiple employer plan. The statements include $2idnbdf assets related to the PLD’s. The Attorney
General’'s Office does not concur that these assets are availapég/foent of State benefits.

The System also provides group life insurance under a jlanitered by a third party insurance company.
Premiums paid, by or on behalf of those covered, are set #rdted by the System. The insurance company
makes benefit payments. The System remits payments tmdheamce company for premiums collected plus
additional payments representing administrative fees.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The System’s financial statements are prepared on the accruabbasicounting. Pension contributions and
group life insurance premiums are recognized as additionsg ipettiod when they become due pursuant to formal
commitments or statutory or contractual requirements. Inwsgtimcome is recognized when earned. Pension
and group life insurance benefits and contributions and prameéfunds are recognized as deductions when due
and payable in accordance with Statutes. In addition, an estsnaig@die for group life insurance death benefits
incurred before year end but not reported to the System aftéil year end. Benefits payable and group life
insurance death benefits incurred but not reported are reflectéueadiabilities.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments thabtdwame an established market are reported at estimated
fair value. Fair value of shares in managed investment mblssed on unit values reported by the funds. The
fair value of other investments, including real estate holdamgsmortgage participation agreements, are based on
third-party appraisals and valuations provided by the spamighe agreement. Investment purchases and sales are
recorded as of their trade date.
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SIGNIFICANT |INVESTMENTS
As of June 30, 2007, the System did not have any inveitnierany one organization, other than the U.S.
government, which represented greater than 5% of plan net assets.

FUNDING PoLicy

The Maine Constitution, Maine Statutes and the System’sirfgngolicy provide for periodic employer
contributions at actuarially determined rates that, based up@incassumptions, are expressed as percentages of
annual covered payroll and are sufficient to accumulate adequate agsstdenefits when due.

Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates are rdigted using the entry age normal actuarial
funding method. The System also uses the level percentaggrofl pnethod to amortize the unfunded liability of
the State and teacher plan over a closed period that cannot betlmm8d years from July 1, 1997 but may be,
and at certain times has been, shorter than that period.00y @@ amortization period was reduced to a 19-year
period from June 30, 2000. In 2004, the Legislaturengtleened the period to 25 years, the full extent of the- the
remaining Constitutional years for the 2004-2005 bienniand reshortened the period effective July 1, 2005 to
the 13 years that will then remain in the earlier shortened cperio 2005, the State repealed the “sunset”
provision, with the result that the period for reductiéih@se unfunded actuarial liabilities continues to the full
extent permitted by the State constitution, or June 30, .20B8 contribution rate in effect for 2007 was
determined by the 2004 valuation, as revised, and reflecteldrgthened amortization period-he unfunded
actuarial accrual liability of the judicial plan @nortized over a period of which 10 years remaiaedune
30, 2007.

For PLD'’s, the level percentage of payroll method is usedrad &ny unfunded liability.
In order to reduce any unfunded pension liability for Statel@yees and teachers under Title 5 MRSA § 1536, the
State is required to remit 20 percent of its General Fund upigted surplus to the System at year-end. For

fiscal 2007, no General Fund unappropriated surplus existed.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the cotbnbrequirements are the same as those used to
compute the standardized measure of the pension obligation.

The actuarially determined contribution rates in effect for Z00participating entities are:

State
Employees 1 7.65-8.65%
Employer 1 15.01-47.07%
Teachers
Employees 7.65%
Employer 17.23%
Participating Local Entities
Employees 1 3.0-8.0%
Employer 1 1.5-6.5%

! Contribution rates vary depending on specific teafplan benefits for certain classes of employa&¥or, in the case of participating local disgifPLDs),
on benefit plan options selected by a particulatiggpating local entity. Withdrawn entities’ caiffutions are set in dollar amounts, not as rates.
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ANNUAL PENSION COST AND NET PENSION OBLIGATION
The State is one of several employers whose employees are Systebers. The State’s net pension obligation
shown at the end of the year includes the pension liabildyeeito its employees. It does not include the pension

liability related to PLD’s. The State’s annual pension codtraet pension obligation to the System for the current
year were:

Net Pension Obligation
(Expressed in Thousands)

Annual required contribution $ 303,076
Interest on net pension obligation 1,444
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1,050)
Annual pension cost 303,470
Contributions made 303,076
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation 394
Net pension obligation beginning of year 18,050
Net pension obligation end of year $ 18,444

Analysis of Funding Progress
(Expressed in Thousands)

Annual Net

Pensior Percentagt Pensior
Year Cosl Coverec Obligation
2007 303,47( 99.87% 18,44
200¢€ 287,25: 105.63% 18,05(
200t 262,87 104.50% 34,23¢

The annual required contribution for the current year was detedmas part of the June 30, 2004 actuarial
valuation using the entry age normal cost method based on g&reehtage of covered payrolls. The actuarial
assumptions included (a) 8 percent return on investmentgbapdojected salary increases of 5.5 percent to 9.5
percent per year, including cost of living. The assumptinciside post retirement benefit increases of 4 percent
per annum. The System also uses the level percentage of pagtioid to amortize the unfunded liability of the
State and teacher plan over a 24 year period from June 30, 2004.

COMPONENT UNIT PARTICIPANTS

The Maine Municipal Bond Bank, Maine Maritime Academy, and the & Riablic Employees Retirement System
have defined benefit pension plans. All are participating lodétlyguarticipants in plans administered by the
Maine Public Employees Retirement System. Employees of theeMaommunity College System, Maine

Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing, and thiaé&arNew England Passenger Rail Authority are

considered to be State employees for retirement benefit purpoedese included in the pension disclosures of the
State.

Employer contributions met actuarially determined contributémuirements.
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NOTE 10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

POST RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

The State of Maine funds postretirement health care bendfitadst retired State employees and legislators, as
authorized by Title 5 MRSA § 285, and for a portion e premiums for teachers, as authorized by Title 20-A
MRSA § 13451. Pursuant to Title 5 MRSA § 285 mostadtemployees of the Maine Turnpike Authority, Maine
Community College System, Maine Maritime Academy, Maine Puhiiployees Retirement System, and Maine
Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing are eligilgartipate in the health plan but are not funded
by the State. Specifically excluded (Title 5 MRSA § 285 1-B)raembers of the Maine Municipal Association,
Maine Teachers Association and employees of counties and mutiiefpahd their instrumentalities, except as
provided in subsection 11-A. Title 5 MRSA § 286-M inctddetired county or municipal law enforcement officer
and municipal firefighters, as defined in subsection 28&vhh participates in an employer-sponsored retirement
plan and, prior to July 1, 2007 was enrolled in a salfsiad health benefits plan offered by the employing county
or municipality.

The State pays 100 percent of post retirement health insuranceimpeefar retirees who were first employed on
or before July 1, 1991. A pro rata portion, rangingnfraero percent for retirees with less than five years
participation to 100 percent for retirees with ten or moresyefparticipation, is paid for eligible individuals first
employed after July 1, 1991. Retirees who are not eligibl®éxlicare retain coverage in the same group health
plan as active employees. Retirees must pay for Medicare RaxeBage to be eligible to participate in the State-
funded Companion Plan. Coverage for retirees ineligible foriddegl includes basic hospitalization; supplemental
major medical and prescription drugs; and costs for treatafemental health, alcoholism, and substance abuse.
Effective January 1, 2006, the State contribution to retieadher health premiums was increased to 45 percent.
County and municipal law enforcement officers and municipefiginters will begin coverage in Fiscal Year 2008
with the State contributing 45% of the cost of their respegians.

The State had been in the process of changing funding referéigalth care benefits from a pay-as-you-go basis to
an actuarial funding method. For retired State employees, téte &timated the total amount necessary to pay
health insurance premiums. This amount is generated usingtrébetion rate, authorized by Title 5 MRSA §
286-A, multiplied by the value of the current employee payrdllhe amounts contributed were reported as
expenditures/expense in each of the various funds. Fadétiachers, the State estimates the total annual amount
necessary to pay its 45 percent share of health insurance premithissamount, less any accumulated funds
remaining from prior years’ estimates, is appropriated andrtegp as expenditures in the General Fund.
Contributions resulting from both sources are accumulatednih reported as revenue of the Retiree Health
Insurance Internal Service Fund. The State’s share of the pneexipense is paid from that fund when retiree
payrolls are processed. With the enactment of Chapter 24G¢ Rais 2007, the State of Maine has transitioned
from a pay-as-you-go plan to an actuarial based funding mgmring with Fiscal Year 2008. Chapter 240
established an OPEB Trust Fund to be invested by the Malle Fimployees Retirement System in a similar
manner to the investment of employee retirement funds.

As of June 30, 2007, there were 9,069 retired eligible Stapdogees and 7,768 retired teachers. In fiscal year
2007, the State paid into the Retiree Health Insurance Fun@ &llion for retired employees and $16.9 million
for retired teachers. Premium charges paid were $40.8 miioh$16.1 million, respectively. Overall, Net
Assets increased by $41.9 million to $103.7 million ateJB0, 2007 as a result of an increase in cash of $42
million. The increase in cash relates to a premium increase icipatibn of the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 45.

Under current accounting standards, GASB Statement NoDis2losure of Information on Postemployment

Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits by State and Local Boeetal Employersthe State has an actuarial
accrued liability at June 30, 2006 and 2007 for postretirebmmefits of $2.6 billion.
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GASB Statement No. 4F;inancial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit PlanseDffhan Pensionsbecame
effective in 2007. The standards in this Statement apgPieB trust funds, of which the State does not currently
have any. Statement No. 45¢counting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Popteyment Benefits
Other Than Pensionsyill be implemented by the State for the fiscal year beginduidyg 1, 2007, as required.
This Statement will require that the long-term cost of re@m@mhealth care and other obligations for
postemployment benefits be determined on an actuarial basisortedein a manner similar to pension plans.
An actuarial study was completed to determine the actuarial accrusityliab of June 30, 2006 and forecast to
June 30, 2007. The study determined the liability if &dhet transition of $3.2 billion, or $4.8 billion ibnh
funded at transition. GASB Statement No. 45 does not martat prefunding of postemployment benefit
liabilities; however, any prefunding of these benefits hdlp minimize the obligation required to be reported on
the financial statements. The Legislature authorized the credtam icrevocable trust fund to be established in
fiscal year 2008 to meet the State’'s unfunded liability obitigat for retiree health benefits for eligible
participants. The Legislature will appropriate funds annubkginning in fiscal year 2010, which will retire in 30
years or less, the unfunded liability for retiree health benéftie actuarial opinion will be updated for fiscal year
2007.

POST RETIREMENT L IFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System provides céféainsurance benefits for retirees who, as active
employees, participated in the Group Life Insurance Programrignimum of ten years. Payments of claims are
made from a fund containing the life insurance premiums ofea8iiste employees and teachers, plus earnings on
the investments of the fund. In addition to the cost ofrdaithe State pays a monthly retention fee to a life
insurance company. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007s dlztimted $2.3 million for retired State
employees and $1.6 million for retired teachers. The numbpartitipants eligible to receive benefits at fiscal
year-end was 8,201 retired State employees and 5,228 retired teachers

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The State records its liability for general obligation boindsie Governmental Activities column on the Statement
of Net Assets. Other long-term obligations recognized byState include: revenue bonds issued by the Maine
Governmental Facilities Authority, a blended component whiigations under Certificates of Participation and
other financing arrangements; pledged future revenues for repagimeods issued by the MMBB on behalf of
the Maine Department of Transportation; compensated employee ahssntte State’s net pension obligation.

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Programs for which the State issues general obligation bmulisde: adaptive equipment loan programs;
environmental cleanup and protection; highway and transportaiated projects; agricultural and small business
job creation; and acquisition, construction, and renovatfomajor capital facilities including State parks and
historic sites. General obligation bonds are secured byuthdafth and credit of the State. Debt service
requirements are provided by legislative appropriation frbenState’'s general tax revenues and are repaid in
annual installments beginning not more than one year aftemiesu

12



State of Maine Netto the Financial Statements

FoetFRiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Changes in general obligation bonds of the primary governduginty fiscal year 2007 were:

Primary Government - Changes in General ObligatiorBonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance Due

Within
July 1, 2006 Additions Retirements June 30, One Year

2007
General Obligation Debt:

General Fund $433,585 $33,975 $69,280 $398,280 $66,230
Special Revenue Fund 33,875 27,000 10,415 50,460 10,750
Self Liquidating 90 - 70 20 20
Total $467,550 $60,975 $79,765 $448,760 $77,000

Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for all autishg general obligation bonds of the primary
government, from June 30, 2007 until maturity, are sunzexdin the following table:

Future Debt Service on General Obligation Bonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal

Year Principal Interest Total

2008 $ 77,000 $ 18,109 $ 95,109

2009 68,780 14,945 83,725

2010 62,980 11,960 74,940

2011 57,620 9,202 68,82

2012 53,595 6,915 60,51
2013-2017 128,785 10,332 139,

Total $ 448,760 $ 71,463 $ 520,223
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General fund, special revenue and other general obligation beswddiand outstanding at June 30, 2007 are as
follows:

Primary Government — General Obligation Bonds Outsanding
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year
Maturities
Amounts Outstanding First Last Interest
Issued June 30, 2007 Year Year Rates
General Fund:
Series 1998 $ 54,500% 5,205 1999 2008 4.20% - 6.50%
Series 1999 54,385 7,745 2000 2009 4.20% - 6.75%
Series 2000 66,290 16,815 2000 2010 4.875% - 7.75%
Series 2001 22,050 8,420 2002 2011 4.00% - 6.08%
Series 2002 27,610 13,800 2003 2012 3.00% - 5.75%
Series 2003 97,080 58,235 2003 2013 1.50% - 5.00%
Series 2004 117,275 84,725 2005 2014 2.00% - 5.27%
Series 2005 137,525 122,215 2006 2015 2.00% - 5.27%
Series 2006 52,390 47,145 2007 2016 4.00% - 5.51%
Series 2007 33,975 33,975 2008 2017 4.00% - 5.50%
Total General Fund $ 398,280
Special Revenue Fund:
Series 1998 $ 30,000 $ 3,000 1999 2008 4.00% - 5.25%
Series 1999 16,900 3,380 2000 2009 4.00% - 5.50%
Series 2001 19,225 7,680 2002 2011 4.00% - 5.00%
Series 2004 13,000 9,400 2005 2014 2.00% - 4.00%
Series 2007 27,000 27,000 2008 2017 4.00% - 5.50%
Total Special Revenue $ 50,460
Self Liquidating:
Maine Veteran's Home $ 1,700 _$ 20 1982 2008 8.34%

AUTHORIZED UNISSUED BONDS

Any bonds not issued within five years of the date oficatifon may not be issued after that date. Within two
years after expiration of the five-year period, the Legislatag extend, by a majority vote, the five-year period

for an additional five years or may deauthorize the bondgheltegislature fails to take action within those two

years, the bond issue shall be considered to be deauthorizad amther bonds may be issued. At June 30, 2007,
general obligations bonds authorized and unissued totalechi$iZ.

REVENUE BONDS OF THE MAINE GOVERNMENTAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

The State included $182.6 million in other financing arraregemto reflect revenue bonds issued by the Maine
Governmental Facilities Authority (MGFA), a blended compongrit. Payment of the bonds is subject to, and
dependent upon, biennial appropriations being made by thel®gislature. Debt issued by MGFA is not debt of
the State or any political subdivision within the Statee Bfiate is not obligated for such debt, nor is the fuh fait
and credit of the State pledged for such debt. MGFA mayissoe securities in excess of $263.5 million
outstanding, at any one time, except for the issuance of cert@nue refunding securities.
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, MGFA issuefid¢hies 2007 Bonds, which totaled $11.0 million at an
interest rate between 4 percent and 5 percent. At June 30,t28@rwere approximately $71.9 million of MGFA
in-substance defeased bonds outstanding.

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The State uses financing companies, Certificates of Particip@@i@#®’s), and lease/purchase agreements to
finance construction of certain State buildings and to purchaspnegnt and vehicles, including school buses.
COP’s are issued through a trustee, and the State is redpdnsipayments to the trustee that approximate the
interest and principal payments made to the certificate holdéws State and school districts maintain custody and
use of the assets; however, the trustee holds a lien asyseatifisuch time as the certificates are fully paid.

Neither COP’s nor the other financing arrangements constiti#gah debt, liability, or contractual obligation in
excess of amounts appropriated. The State’s obligation to mak®aum payments or any other obligation under
agreements is subject to, and dependent upon, appropriatimgsrbade by the Legislature. The Legislature has
no obligation to appropriate the money for future minimpagments or other obligations under any agreement.

SHORT TERM OBLIGATIONS

The State of Maine issued and retired $54.5 million in Banticipation Notes during fiscal year 2007. Short
term obligations are used to meet temporary operating cashrideds. At June 30, 2007 there were no
outstanding Tax Anticipation Notes or Bond Anticipatiootét.

OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In general, expenditures and fund liabilities are not recordgdvarnmental funds for long-term obligations until
amounts owed are “due and payable.” Fund liabilities are recondée iproprietary funds when obligations are
incurred. In the Statement of Net Assets, the State has reclmdgderm obligations for its compensated
employee absences and net pension obligation.

Changes in other long-term obligations for governmentabasthess-type activities for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2007, are summarized as follows:

Primary Government - Changes in Other Long-Term Obigations
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2006 Additions Reductions June 30, 2007 One Year
Governmental Activities:
MGFA Revenue Bonds $186,215 $10,985 $14,595 $082,6 $14,61(
COP’s and Other Financing 36,581 60,294 16,989 79,886 25,34
Compensated Absences 41,326 638 284 41,680 52
Claims Payable 72,981 176,658 185,543 64,096 22,98
Capital Leases 40,091 12,8 6,154 41,751 6,40
Pledged Future Revenues 46,268 - 3,915 42,353 4,01
Net Pension Obligation 18,050 394 - 18,444
Total Governmental Activities $441,512 $256,783 $230 $470,815 $73,87¢
Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences $135 $583 $ - $718 $72
Total Business-Type Activities $135 $583 $ - $718 $72
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Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for COP’scinel financing arrangements of the primary
government, from June 30, 2007 until maturity, are sunz@drs follows:

Future Debt Service on MGFA Revenue Bonds, COP’s @nOther Financing Arrangements
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Funds Internal Service Funds
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2008 $ 9429 $ 1,173 $ 10,602 $ 30524 $ 10,163 $ 40,687
2009 7,921 767 8,688 25,953 8,710 34,663
2010 7,174 379 7,553 25,033 7,667 32,700
2011 1,237 130 1,367 20,207 6,649 26,856
2012 1,293 74 1,367 17,707 5,856 23,563
2013 - 2017 661 93 754 71,182 18,709 89,891
2018 - 2022 - - - 39,655 4,593 44,248
2023 - 2027 - - - 3,940 417 4,357
2028 - 2032 - - - 575 14 589

Total $ 27,71t $ 2,61¢ $ 30,33: $234,77t $ 62,77¢ $297,55¢

CoNDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

To enable local school districts to purchase learning technabgy lower cost than they would be able to
negotiate independently, the State has entered into a sem@asefdgreements with Apple Computer. These leases
are special limited obligations of the State, payable solely &odsecured by a pledge of rentals to be received
from participating school administrative units. The leasesalaonstitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit
of the State or any political subdivision thereof and acogigihave not been reported in the accompanying
financial statements.

At June 30, 2007, lease agreements outstanding totalecb$B68sand.

Under a General Bond Resolution adopted on June 5, 1978eNtgalth and Higher Educational Facilities
Authority (MHHEFA) issues tax exempt bonds to assidinancing health care institutions and institutions for
higher education. Loans to institutions made with proceédgneral resolution bonds are written for the entire
amount of the bonds, including debt service reserve fundsuri for these bonds is limited to debt service
reserve funds of and the loans to the specific institutiowfach the bond was issued. Therefore, these bonds are
considered conduit debt.

PLEDGED FUTURE REVENUES

On December 16, 2004, the Maine Municipal Bond Bank (MMBBuésl $48.4 million of GARVEE grant
anticipation revenue bonds on behalf of the Maine Departmentrarisportation, to provide financing for
construction of a new Waldo-Hancock bridge. Net proceeds fnenbénds totaled $49.4 million including bond
premium of approximately $900 thousand. The bonds payablérbeast rates from 2.5 percent to 5 percent, and
have maturities from 2005 to 2015. Payment of principaliatedest on the bonds shall be subject to appropriation
each year by the Legislature in an amount sufficient to coverrihapal and interest requirements of MMBB'’s
debt for these bonds. The State’s receipt of these funsishject to continuing federal appropriations. MMBB
insured payments of principal and interest with a finanaiargnty insurance policy. The bonds do not constitute a
debt or obligation of the State.

Total principal and interest requirements over the life of tradb are $60.2 million, with annual requirements of
up to $5.6 million. Federal transportation funds receivedhiey State for the federal fiscal year preceding the
issuance of the bonds totaled $175 million. Total fedesalsportation funds received in federal fiscal year 2007
were $168 million. Current year payments to MMBB were $5l6om (0.3 percent of federal transportation funds

received).
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

The State leases various assets under noncancelable leasing arrangésasds that constitute rental agreements
are classified as operating leases; the resulting expenditunexagaized as incurred over the lease term. Leases
that are comparable to purchases are classified as capital leases.

In the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, assdtdiabilities resulting from capital leases are
recorded at lease inception. The principal portion of lease paymeshices the liability; the interest portion is
expensed.

Most leases have cancellation clauses in the event that fundirg &vailable. For reporting purposes, such
cancellation clauses are not considered because the likelihoodhdkatitl be exercised is considered remote.
Some lease agreements include renewal or purchase options. Theokffech options is reflected in the
minimum lease payments only if it is considered reasonablyeasshat an option will be exercised. Because the
accounting treatment for installment purchase agreements is sisuitdr agreements are reported with capital
leases.

Leases that exist between the State and the Maine Governmental eSadilitihority (MGFA), a blended
component unit, are not recorded as leases in this repotheiinseparately issued financial statements, MGFA
records a lease receivable from the State. Although payables andhibéEsitechnically exist between these
parties, when combined for government-wide reporting, theyeminated. A long-term liability exists on the
government-wide statements for the bonds issued by MGFéonstruct the assets associated with the leases.
Future payments to MGFA are, therefore, not included in¢hedale of lease commitments below. At June 30,
2007 capital assets include $67.8 million of capitalizeddingk in the internal service funds, net of related
accumulated depreciation of $30.2 million.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The State is obligated under certain leases, accounted for as gpkyasies, in the proprietary funds. Operating
leases do not give rise to property rights or lease obligatemd therefore assets and liabilities related to the lease
agreements are not recorded in the State’s financial statementtal &gense incurred under operating leases
totaled $2.1 million during the year.

A summary of the operating and noncancelable capital lease commitmerasurity follows:

Future Minimum Lease Payments
Capital and Operating Leases
(Expressed in Thousands)

Capital Operating
Fiscal Year Leases Leases
2008 $ 6,402 $ 3,251
2009 5,987 2,826
2010 5,538 2,753
2011 5,287 2,421
2012 5,049 2,353
2012-2016 16,070 6,329
2017-2021 6,498 683
2022-2026 1,406 -
2027-2030 2 -
Total Minimum Payments 52,239 $ 20,616
Less: Amount Representing Interest 10,488
Present Value of Future Minimum Payments $ 31,7
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MGFA REVENUE BONDS, COP’s AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

MGFA revenue bonds will be liquidated by the MGFA Internatv&@e Fund, from revenues received through
lease agreements with various governmental funds. The liatutitpledged future revenues will be liquidated
from the Federal Fund. The vast majority of COP’s and dihancing arrangements will be liquidated by the
internal service fund in which the leases are recorded; the GenerHligingday Funds will pay relatively small
amounts.

CLAIMS PAYABLE

Claims payable that represent Medicaid claims will be paid tteenGeneral Fund and Federal Fund. Claims
payable that represent workers’ compensation and retiree/employete \Wwitlalte liquidated by the applicable
governmental and internal service funds that account for theesakard wages of the related employees. Other
claims and judgments attributable to governmental activitidsbeilliquidated by the General Fund and related
special revenue funds.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund finasteitdments, compensated absences are reported
as liabilities as required by GASB. In the governmental ffimancial statements, liabilities for compensated
absences are accrued when they are considered “due and payable” and ne¢hed&thd only for separations or
transfers that occur before year-end. The liabilities are liedday the funds that account for the salaries and
wages of the related employees.

COMPONENT UNITS

Bonds payable of the discretely presented component units areldigations of the component units and are not
general obligations of the State. The following table sunmesitbonds outstanding for selected material balances
of discretely presented component units, as reported in #yrately issued financial statements, utilizing their
respective fiscal year-ends:

Component Unit Bonds Outstanding
(Expressed in Thousands)

Component Unit Interest Rates Amount Maturity

Dates
Finance Authority of Maine 1.0 - 3.98% 309,408 2025037
Maine Community College System 4.0 - 5.0% 23,426 12202036

Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

debt 2.0-6.2% 1,382,075 1993 - 2036

conduit debt 4.5-7.3% 50,994 1990 - 2043
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 1.0 - 10.25% 1,080,601 919 2036
Maine State Housing Authority 2.20 - 6.40% 1,639,59 2007 — 2039
University of Maine System 2.0-5.75% 223,407 20037

MHHEFA advance refunded various bond obligations in pyears. Proceeds were primarily used to purchase
U.S. Government securities that will provide for future magt on the debt. At June 30, 2007, there were
approximately $6.7 million of in-substance defeased bonds mémgaoutstanding with respect to all advance-
refunded issues within the reserve fund and taxable fund tiesslu At June 30, 2007, there were approximately
$24.1 million of defeased bonds remaining outstanding reipect to advance refunded bond issues of the general
resolution. The general resolution bonds are considerehlitatebt.

On June 28, 2007, UMS issued 2007 Series A Revenue Bi®lg, million of which was used to advance refund
$13.8 million of outstanding bonds. The refunding reslin a deferred amount on refunding of $841 thousand, of
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which the unamortized balance was $841 thousand as of JuB&(30,Total interest payments over the next 27
years were reduced by $310 thousand, and an economic gain ofh®885nd was obtained. At June 30, 2007,
$13.8 million of advance refunded bonds remained outstanding

The following table summarizes debt service requirements fatamating bonds of the discretely presented
component units:

Component Units Principal Maturities
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Ending FAME MMBB MCCS MSHA UMS MHHEFA
2008 $ 53 $ 100,239 $ - $ 35,655 $ 7114 $ 41,97
2009 54 99,018 - 49,820 7,523 44,88
2010 54 94,351 - 53,705 7,926 47,98
2011 55 92,060 - 129,725 8,365 50,35
2012 55 83,238 545 52,550 39,267 55,09
2013-2017 286 326,366 3,065 263,845 37,779 293,38
2018-2022 300 203,199 3,775 295,495 35,066 286,901
2023-2027 176 74,920 4,790 277,150 32,125 257,94
2028-2032 - )98 6,095 270,580 209 199,45
2033-2037 309,500 2,025 5,960 185,935 13,190 104,13
2038-2042 - - - 41,285 - -
2043-2047 - - - - - -
Net unamortized premium
or (deferred amount) (1,125) (2,795) (804) (16,155) 2,132
Total Principal Payments $ 309,408 $ 0,681 $ 23,426 $ 1,639,590 $ 223,407% 1,382,07

NOTE 12 - SELF-INSURANCE

A. RISK MANAGEMENT

The State maintains several types of insurance plans and acamutiter in two funds that are combined for

financial statement purposes as the Risk Management Fund. iSkh&&agement Division provides insurance

advice and services to State governmental agencies. The State-gtdrathiFund offers similar services to quasi-
governmental entities. Statute requires the Self-Insurance tBubd replenished by appropriation if the fund

balance drops below $1 million. The State-Administered Batance has no similar provision; however, statutes
prevent it from being used for any purpose other than girayinsurance services.

Insurance plans offered include property, vehicle, boat and airtoat, civil rights, employee bonds, police
professionals, and a variety of other insurance products. alNdepartments elect to insure through the Risk

Management Division. Specifically, the Department of Tranafiort elected not to purchase general liability
insurance.

In some cases the State purchases excess insurance to limatdig Igtbility for insured events. For example,
coverage for property damage is $250 million per occurrence. Stdte retains $2 million of this risk per
occurrence. A private insurance carrier covers the remaining eiglegs insurance). Settled claims have not
exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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Coverage, risk retention, and excess insurance amounts fortypgerof insurance are listed below:

Type of Insurance

Coverage

Per Occurrence

Risk Retention

Per Occurrence

Excess Insurance

Per Occurrence

Property * $250 million $ 2 million $250 million
Ocean Marine Boat Liability * 10 million 10 thousand 10l iwm
Loss of Software and Data * 8 million 25 thousand Biamill
Boiler and Machinery* 3 million 2 million 3 million
General Liability Including

Employment Practices 400 thousand 400 thousand e non
Police Professionals 400 thousand 400 thousand none
Vehicular Liability 400 thousand 400 thousand none
Bonding 500 thousand 500 thousand none
Foster Parents 300 thousand 300 thousand none
Inland Marine (various policies) 2 million 2 million nen

* These lines of insurance have commercial excessanse covering losses above the risk retentioruainap to the per occurrence

amount listed. All other insurance programs arelytself-insured.

The plan funds the cost of providing claims servicing aadnd payment by charging a premium to each agency
based on a review of past losses and estimated losses forrtéa period.

All risk-financing liabilities are reported when it is pratb&that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can
be reasonably estimated. Claims liabilities represent the estiswgedf claims as of June 30, 2007. This cost of
claims includes case reserves, the development of known claimsi@mded but not reported claims, and the
direct administrative expenses for settling specific claims.

Claims liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis. Periedéwaluation occurs to take into consideration
recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other ecoreondisocial factors. Because actual claims
liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, chaimgiegal doctrines, and damage awards, the process
used in computing claims liability does not necessarilylr@san exact amount.

At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the present value of the claigablpafor the State’s self-insurance plan was
estimated at $3.2 million and $3.2 million, respectivelye Rctuary calculated this based on a 1.75 percent yield
on investments.

Risk Management Fund
Changes in Claims Payable
(Expressed in Thousands)

2007 2006
Liability at Beginning of Year $ 3190 $ 3,547
Current Year Claims and
Changes in Estimates 683 1,424
Claims Payments 683 1,781
Liability at End of Year $ 3190 $ 3,190

As of June 30, 2007, fund assets of $20.3 million exesddnd liabilities of $3.7 million by $16.6 millionThe
portion of this amount that may be reserved for catasttdpsses has not been determined.
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In the past, general liability insurance coverage excluded lawsgitght by employees. Therefore, the loss
history used by the actuary to project claims did not incthdeeffects of any such lawsuits. Effective July 1,
1999, the State added $50 thousand coverage per occurrence &msthef defending the State in any such
lawsuits. Effective July 1, 2000, the State increased covevagelide both defense and indemnification costs up
to $400 thousand. The effect of this change has not beerparated into the estimate used to determine claims
payable as of June 30, 2007.

B. UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

The State is self-insured for unemployment compensation. a Alirect reimbursement employer, the State
recognizes all costs for unemployment compensation as claimsidre FThese costs totaled $1.2 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

C.WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Workers’ Compensation is accounted for in an Internal Serviod.Funterfund premiums are treated as quasi-
external transactions. Each State agency is charged a premium bakechamber of employees to be covered
plus an added amount to reduce the unfunded liability. LHggslature, Legislative Council, and Law Library
employees are self-insured for workers’ compensation purpdgdes State assumes the full risk of all claims filed
for workers’ compensation.

Claims liabilities are actuarially determined based on estimatéiseofiltimate cost of claims, including future
claim adjustment expenses that have been incurred but not reandedaims reported but not settled. Because
actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as orflathanges in legal doctrines, and damage
awards, the process used in computing claims liability doesewessarily result in an exact amount. Claims
liabilities are re-evaluated periodically to take into considaratzently settled claims, the frequency of claims,
and other economic and social factors. The balance of clainigiéatas of June 30, 2007:

Workers’ Compensation Fund
Changes in Claims Payable
(Expressed in Thousands)

2007 2006
Liability at Beginning of Year $ 53,343 $ 53,343
Current Year Claims and

Changes in Estimates 474 8,955
Claims Payments 8,459 8,955
Liability at End of Year $ 45,358 $ 53,343

Based on the actuarial calculation as of June 30, 2005tate is liable for unfunded claims, and incurred but not
reported claims, of approximately $58.8 million. The disted amount is $45.4 million and was calculated based
on a 4 percent yield on investments.

D. EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE
The employee health and retiree health insurance programs are acdouirteivo Internal Service Funds. The
State became self insured for employee and retiree health care coveragyg b, 2003. A stop loss agreement

with Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield provides catastcopbverage for individual claims exceeding $350
thousand.
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The State retained an independent contractor for claims administratilization review, and case management
services. Premiums are paid to the independent contractor basedratps established with the technical
assistance of the plan’s consulting actuary.

There are two primary health plans available. HMO Choice is at-pbservice plan available to all active
employees and retirees not eligible for Medicare. The Group &aimp Plan is a supplement to Medicare Parts A
& B and is available to Medicare eligible retirees. Total enmtiimaveraged approximately 41,000 covered
individuals. This total includes 30,300 active employees agpemtlents, 4,200 pre-Medicare retirees and
dependents, and 6,500 Medicare retirees and dependents.

Claims expenses are recorded when premiums are paid to the sgaucing contractor. At the end of the period,
the total of these premium payments are compared with the a@im$ @aid and claims expense is adjusted for
any overage or shortage with an offsetting receivable or liabditorded. For the period ending June 30, 2007,
the State recorded a receivable of $2.7 million for an overpayohdmalth care premiums.

Expenses and liabilities for incurred but not reported clabased on an actuarial analysis of claim lag pattern,
have been recorded as liabilities in the amount of $15.50milliChanges in the Employee Health Insurance and
Retiree Health Insurance claims liability for the fiscal yeairendune 30, 2007 follows (in thousands):

Employee Health Retiree Health
Fund Fund
Liability at Beginning of Year $ 10,554 $ 5,894
Current Year Claims and
Changes in Estimates 125,641 49,860
Claims Payments 126,249 50,152
Liability at End of Year $ 9,946 $ 5,602

NOTE 13 — JOINT VENTURES

Joint ventures are independently constituted entities generatited by two or more governments for a specific
purpose. The State of Maine participates in two separate yeimiure arrangements; the Tri-State Lotto
Commission (Commission) and the Multi-State Lottery Asstion (MUSL).

Tri-State Lotto Commission

The Commission was established in 1985 pursuant to pasgadaw of the Tri-State Lotto Compact by the States

of Maine, New Hampshire, and Vermont. The Commission isosized and empowered to promulgate rules and
regulations regarding the conduct of lottery games, indutioket prices, prizes, and the licensing of agents under
Title 8 MRSA C. 16.

The Commission is composed of one member from each of theigstihg states. Each member State’s
commission appoints one of its members to serve on the @&siomand each member holds office at the pleasure
of his or her appointing authority. The Commission afigwelects a chairman from among its members.

The Commission designated that 50 percent of its operatieguebe aggregated in a common prize pool.

A prize award liability is established when the winning tiak@tnber is selected. If no winning ticket is selected,

the available jackpot is carried over to the following drawiiige Tri-State Lotto Compact requires that prizes not
claimed within one year from the date of the drawing be forfeit&ll expired unclaimed prizes are credited to
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future prize pools. The Commission funds its jackpotsutph annuity contracts purchased from insurance
companies and zero-coupon U.S. Government Treasury Strips.

A proportional share of revenues and expenses are allocated ta@&achaSed on ticket sales made by each State.
Exceptions are the facility's management fee, which is based orracted percentage of operating revenue that
varies from State to State; Daily Number expenses that are alldoad@dh State based on Daily Number ticket
sales; and certain other miscellaneous costs that are based owrlztges generated by each State.

The Tri-State Lotto Commission financial report for fisgahr 2007, which may be obtained from the Bureau of
Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations, 8 State House St#tiggusta, ME 04333-0008, includes the
following selected financial information:

Tri-State Lotto Commission
(Expressed in Thousands)

Current Assets $ 40,895
Noncurrent Assets 94,558
Total Assets $ 135,453
Current Liabilities $ 27,760
Long-term Liabilities 95,296
Total Liabilities 123,056
Designated Prize Reserves 4,096
Unrealized Gain on Investments Held for

Installment Prize Obligations ,3@L
Total Net Assets 12,397
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1334
Total Revenue $ 70,041
Total Expenses 46,726
Allocation to Member States 23,315
Change in Unrealized Gain on Investments Held fesdke (530)
Change in Net Assets $ (530)

Multi-State Lottery Association

The Maine State Lottery became a member of the Multi-State Loissgciation (MUSL) in July 2004. The
MUSL currently has 29 member State lotteries, including tistritt of Columbia and the United States Virgin
Islands. The MUSL is managed by a board of directors, wisiactcomprised of the lottery directors or their
designee from each of the party States, and authorized tceinjtiamulgate, administer and carry out one or more
lottery product offerings that will enhance the participatiagyplottery’s revenue.

Participating lotteries sell Powerball tickets, collect all reesnand remit prize funds to the MUSL, net of lower
tier prize awards. The operating costs of the board are diededlly among all of the participating lotteries.
Jackpot prizes payable in installments are satisfied througdstiments purchased by the MUSL. The MUSL
purchases US government obligations which are held in irrevotaisits established by the MUSL for the benefit
of participating State lotteries. Each week the MUSL allocatgeeEfent of sales to the prize pool. If no winning
ticket is selected, the available jackpot is carried over to thmnfiolyy jackpot drawing.
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The Multi-State Lottery Association’s financial report foscfl year 2007, which may be obtained from the
Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations, 8 StateeH8tation, Augusta, ME 04333-0008, includes
the following selected information:

Multi-State Lottery Association
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 156,119
Investments in US Government Securities T4,
US Government Securities Held for Prize Annuities 703,846
Due from Party Lotteries 32,039
Other Assets 2,674
Total Assets $ 972,392
Amount Held for Future Prizes 227,850
Grand Prize Annuities Payable 730,805
Other Liabilities 13,540
972,195
Net Assets, Unrestricted 197
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 972,392
Total Revenue $ 3,035
Total Expenses 3,050
Excess (deficit) of revenue over expenses (15)
Net assets, beginning 212
Net assets, ending $ 197
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NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Title 20 MRSA § 11473 establishes the Maine College Savinggrén Fund (the Fund), administered by the
Finance Authority of Maine (FAME). The Fund holds all mes associated with the Maine College Savings
Program doing business as the NextGen College Investimg(RextGen). NextGen is the primary program of the
Fund and was established to encourage the investment of tuhdaused for qualified higher education expenses
at institutions of higher education. The program has beegreesto comply with the requirements for treatment
as a “Qualified State Tuition Program” under Section 529 olfrfeenal Revenue Code.

By statute, the program assets and liabilities are held by réwsdrer of the State of Maine. FAME and the
Treasurer of the State of Maine have entered into a management agrfeeitienTreasurer to act as a fiduciary of
the Fund. The Treasurer is responsible for investmenteofrtind and determining, with the advice of the
Advisory Committee on College Savings, the proper allocatfadhe investments of the Fund. The NextGen had
approximately $5.2 billion in net assets at June 30, 280ih have been recorded in an Agency Fund on the
financial statements of the State.

General Obligation Bonds of the State include $20 thousargklbfiquidating bonds of the Maine Veterans’
Home. The State issues the bonds, and the Maine Veterans’ idomite to the State the debt service as it comes
due.

The State of Maine pays a local company as a provider for mentti hedl independent living services through

the MaineCare program. The Executive Director of the companysalyes as House Chair of the Joint Standing
Committee on Health and Human Services in the Maine Legislaueng fiscal year 2007, the State paid $12.2

million for these services; $5.1 million from the Generaldrand $7.1 million from the Federal Fund. At June 30,
2007, the State owed $319 thousand to this vendor.

The State of Maine entered into memoranda of understandingh&itWells National Estuarine Research Reserve
Management Authority, a jointly governed organization, thhotige Bureau of Public Lands and the Bureau of
Parks and Recreation. These agreements outline each entity’ssibgpies in relation to the operation of the
Reserve and the management of the property included within theddmes of the Reserve. The Authority’s
responsibilities are generally to manage the Reserve consistenha/MVells National Estuarine Research Reserve
Management Plan dated May 1991.

COMPONENT UNITS

The State provided appropriations and grant monies to thawfoly discretely presented component units:
University of Maine System, $230.1 million; Maine ComitytCollege System, $52.1 million; Maine Municipal

Bond Bank, $3.3 million; Finance Authority of Maine, ¥ @nillion; and Maine State Housing Authority, $12.0
million.

FAME administers several revolving loan funds on behathefState of Maine. FAME recorded these funds,
which total $34.8 million at June 30, 2007, as a liabilitAmounts Held Under State Revolving Loan Programs in
their financial statements. The state reports the asset as abésdivthe Special Revenue Fund. During fiscal
year 2007, the State expended $2.0 million to FAME fateStevolving loan funds.

Title 20-A MRSA Chapter 419-A establishes the Maine State Grargram as a fund under the jurisdiction of the
Finance Authority of Maine. All grant revenues under thisdf must be distributed by FAME to students who
meet the eligibility requirements for a grant under this @rapDuring fiscal year 2007, the NextGen College
Savings grant funds and the Maine State Grant funds weledpioto the new State of Maine Grant. FAME paid
approximately $8.0 million in grants to the UniversityMéine System (UMS) on behalf of eligible students. The
UMS reflected these as grant revenues from the State.
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RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The State receives transfers in the amount of the annual opesatiplgs from the Maine Turnpike Authority
under the Sensible Transportation Act of 1991. The Legisladefined operating surplus within the Maine
Turnpike Authority statute to be the total operating reveofiise Authority after money has been set aside to pay
reasonable operating expenses and to meet the requirements e$@ntion authorizing bonds. The Authority,
with the concurrence of the Maine Department of Transportastablished the operating surplus at $4.7 million
annually. The payment of debt service costs in connectionthrdtissuance of the Series 1996 Special Obligation
Bonds is considered to constitute payment of the operstirgius for the year 2007.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

LITIGATION

The State of Maine, its units, and its employees are pastiesnherous legal proceedings, many of which are the
result of normal governmental operations. In the opinibrthe Attorney General and other legal counsel
representing the State, in all of the cases listed, the Stdie ayyeincies or employees have valid defenses. The
following cases have the potential for liability in excess bidlllion. Even if liability is found, the State should
not expect to pay out the full amounts being sought agaimsall of the cases. In any given case, however, the
State could incur a large judgment.

Paul and Robert Dyer v. State of Maine, Department of §pariation.The Dyers were awarded approximately
$447 thousand by the State Claims Board in connectionthétiiaking of property in Waldo County for the new
Penobscot Narrows Bridge. They are seeking approximatelyiltk2nm damages.

Goodall Hospital v. HarveyThis suit was filed on November 20, 2006. Plaintiff htdpalleges that the
Department of Health and Human Services has refused or faileglytthe hospital's 2005 fiscal year bills for
services to Medicaid recipients. The case is worth slightly $2enillion, approximately $666 thousand of State
dollars. The potential for expenditure is moderate.

Franklin Memorial Hospital v DHHS. The issue in this case is whether DHHS has failed to isseenint
settlements for the fiscal years 2005 and 2006, and if lsether DHHS is required legally to issue those interim
settlements. Maine regulations require that payment folaitisn 30 days of settlements. The complaint alleges
that DHHS owes Franklin approximately $3.0 million fo03@nd $1.7 million for 2006. Status: this case has not
yet been briefed. The potential for expenditure is moderate.

Callahan Mine Superfund SitEhe U.S. EPA identified the State of Maine as a Potentiallpétesible Party for a
Superfund site — the Callahan Mine Site in Brooksville, Maiithe mining occurred pursuant to a lease from 1968
to 1972 in part on state-owned submerged land that had b&ieedl No court action has been filed by EPA at
this time. If the State is found liable as a Responsible Rarthe site, costs could exceed $1 million just for the
work conducted by EPA to date. The State has only agreeddaatdrasibility studies to date. Potential liability
for remedial actions could exceed $1 million, however, feasitslitdies have not yet been completed. The
potential for expenditure regarding this matter is probdideyever, the State cannot reasonably estimate the
amount of potential loss.

Gannet Co. v. State Tax Assesddiis case involves whether certain income is taxable by the Stikaioé for

the tax year 2000. Plaintiff is seeking a refund of ovelOFXD plus interest, which may make the total refund
over $1 million. The State is appealing, but the potefdiaéxpenditure is more than moderate.

In various lawsuits, Plaintiffs seek damages in excess ofiliémagainst the State or against State officials, and
various notices of claim also specify damages in excess oflidnmwhere no lawsuit has been filed. In none of
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these lawsuits, in the view of the Attorney General, is theyer@msonable possibility that the State’s liability
could reach or exceed $1 million. Therefore, these suits halw®ao individually identified.

Numerous workers’ compensation claims are now pending agansus State agencies. Since most claims
involve the possibility for significant long-term damagasg since the test for demonstrating a causal relationship
between the employment and the illness or injury is notgasaus as in ordinary civil cases, these cases involve
the possibility of significant liability for the State.inSe possible damages include future medical costs and wage
replacements for the employee (and in some cases spouse)ffitidt dd estimate the total potential liability to

the State.

All other legal proceedings are not, in the opinion of manageafésr consultation with the Attorney General,
likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial posititine State.

FEDERAL GRANTS

The State receives significant financial assistance from the fedemingnent. The receipt of grants is generally

dependent upon compliance with terms and conditions of e ggreements and applicable federal regulations,
including the expenditure of resources for allowable purpo&gants are subject to the Federal Single Audit Act.

Disallowances by federal officials as a result of these audiysb@eome liabilities of the State. The amount of

expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor agenciest tendetermined at this time.

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE L ANDFILLS

Title 38 MRSA 81310-F, establishes within the DepartmenEmfironmental Protection (DEP) a cost-sharing
program for the closure and remediation of municipal sosidtevlandfills that pose an actual or potential hazard to
the environment and public health. The State's obligatipnoide cost sharing to municipalities is subject to the
availability of funds approved for that purpose. State expeed for landfill remediation projects totaled $49
thousand for fiscal year 2007.

During the 2007 fiscal year, no State general funds or hamasfwere expended for municipal solid waste landfill
closure projects. After January 1, 2000, the State is mgeloliable for the costs relating to the closure of
municipal solid waste landfills, except the Commissioner malte grants or payments up to 30 percent, if they
are incurred pursuant to an alternative closure schedule appro®gFbprior to January 1, 2000, and if they are
specifically identified in a department order or license, scheduleompliance or consent agreement. No
reimbursement applications for past closure costs are onNiteadditional cost share eligible closures have been
approved by DEP. Consequently, the DEP expects no fuatipenditures for municipal landfill closures.

During the 2007 fiscal year, the State expended $49 thousammheral obligation bond funds for municipal solid
waste landfill remediation projects. Remediation fundingjesa to the availability of funds, will continue for 90

percent of the cost of remediation for threats posed by a mahlandfill to wells or other structures constructed
on or before December 31, 1999. The maximum reimbursefoenemediation funding is 50 percent for

structures constructed after that date. Bonds have not beed iksucover these outstanding obligations.
Approximately $48 thousand remains in the existing munidgalfill bond account.

The DEP recognizes that, in the future, some landfills neduire State funds for post closure investigation and
remediation activities. The DEP has estimated the amounesé thotential future costs could be as much as $5
million, based on current site knowledge, the increasinguémecy of residential development near closed

municipal landfills, the discovery of older abandoned durtgs siow occupied by residential homes, and recent
issues involving gas migration from two municipal landfih the state.

SAND AND SALT STORAGE PROGRAM

The State estimates the potential aggregate cost to comphheiimvironmental requirements associated with the
Sand and Salt Storage program to be $20 million. @isists of approximately $14 million for State-owned

facilities and approximately $6 million for the State’s shamger a cost sharing arrangement, for municipal
facilities.
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POLLUTION ABATEMENT PROGRAM

Title 38 MRSA § 411 establishes within DEP a cost-shapiogjram for pollution abatement projects. Subject to
funding by the Legislature and the approval of the Comomssj the State may contribute to the design,
engineering and construction of municipal pollution abatensailitfes. During the 2007 fiscal year, $2.4 million
of general obligation bond funds were expended for pollwimetement projects. As of June 30, 2007, amounts
encumbered for pollution abatement projects totaled $820 thdyuaad general obligation bonds authorized for
these projects, but not yet encumbered or expended, totalechiibB. At June 30, 2007, DEP estimated the total
cost (federal, State, and local) of future projects to be $4ii@m

DESIGNATION AS A POTENTIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARTY BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

The State has been identified as a potentially responsible giartyp hazardous wastes clean-up sites in Maine.
These are located in Plymouth and Brooksville. The remedghéoPlymouth site has been identified in concept
but the final cost has yet to be determined. The Brooksiilles presently under investigation but no remedy has
been identified.

GROUND WATER OIL CLEAN-UP FUND

The Ground Water Qil Clean-up Fund is established in BRI&MRSA § 569-A. Fund activities include, but are
not limited to, providing insurance to public and privatétiess for clean up of oil spills. The program is funded
by a per barrel assessment on petroleum products importedhantState. Coverage is up to $1 million per
occurrence for both aboveground and underground storage t3isl party injury coverage may not exceed
$200 thousand per claimant.

A report to the legislature dated February 15, 2007, stdunity the Maine Department of Environmental
Protection (DEP), identified 359 long-term remediatioassés of January 2007 that are covered by the insurance
program. As of August 28, 2007 there were 377 siteherong-term remediation priority list. Since it is not
possible for the DEP to estimate the cost of remediatimn,State has not accrued a liability in the financial
statements.

CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

A portion of the payment that is made to municipalities@eneral Purpose Aid to Local Schools is allocated for
debt service. Although the outstanding indebtednessfaro$ construction projects is debt of the municipalities,
the State subsidizes 53.51 percent of the annual paymentsf Jume 30, 2007, outstanding commitments by
municipalities for school bond issues that are eligible fateSsubsidy totaled $824.6 million.

At June 30, 2007, the Department of Transportation hadamtnél commitments of approximately $59.8 million
for construction of various highway projects. The State&es of that amount is expected to be approximately
$16.2 million. Of these amounts, $2.7 million has alrebhdgn accrued. Federal and State funds plus bond
proceeds are expected to fund these future expenditures.

TOBACCO SETTLEMENTS

On November 23, 1998, Maine along with 45 other states igedcivil jurisdictions, entered into a Master
Settlement Agreement (MSA) with certain Participating Tobacco uféaturers (PM’s) to recover smoking-
related Medicaid costs. In this out-of-court settlementPiiés agreed to make annual payments to the states and
jurisdictions based on their allocated share of the markeetum, the states agreed to relinquish claims to further
damages resulting from Medicaid costs. Annual payments luitufate subject to various adjustments and are
contingent on the passage and enforcement of a State statuteingnmm®nomic conditions on the
Nonparticipating manufactures (NPM’s) and market forces. Thi#l NMBjustment is set forth in the Master
Settlement Agreement (MSA). If the PM’s prove that they toarket share to the NPM’s, and if they prove
Maine did not diligently enforce its statutes concerning NPbdtosg, then the Participating Manufacturers may
lower their annual payment pursuant to the MSA. This NEMsament may be sought each year. For the year
2003, the adjustment sought was approximately 18%.
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The PM’s have also agreed to pay $8.6 billion in Strategiatriboition Payments (SCP) to certain states and
jurisdictions as compensation for their contribution ® dlrerall settlement. Maine’s share is approximately $114
million. Maine will receive ten annual SCP payments startir20i08.

DIRIGO HEALTH AGENCY

Experience Modification Program

Title 24-A, MRSA Chapter 87 established the Dirigo HealtgeAcy to arrange for the provision of
comprehensive, affordable health care coverage to eligible small yarglancluding the self-employed, their
employees and dependents, and individuals on a voluntary(Bagi®Choice).

Because DirigoChoice members had no prior claims history, itigpHealth Agency agreed to share claims costs
that exceed an agreed upon level through an Experience Modifiextignam (EMP) with its carrier, Anthem
Blue Cross Blue Shield (Anthem). The EMP is a form of @gpee rating not uncommon in start up association-
like plans where the risk of the population is unknowrhe EMP protects the DirigoChoice pool from adverse
selection.

The Dirigo Health Agency prepays the EMP quarterly, based arilraent assumptions. Because the Dirigo
Health Agency assumes the most adverse outcome, the EMP liehilitpt exceed the total prepayments.

If the experience outcome is favorable in the DirigoChoice planthéin returns all of the EMP to the Dirigo
Health Agency. Terms of the outcome sharing are detailed in tiectual agreement between the Dirigo Health
Agency and Anthem.

Due to limited claims and experience data for DirigoChoice mesrfioer2007, the medical loss ratio and related
amount that may be returned to the Dirigo Health Agen@nyf cannot be reasonably estimated. EMP payments
for State fiscal year 2007 totaled $2.3 million, net of rdfun

Savings Offset Payment

Title 24-A MRSA 8 6913 established the Savings Offset Payi(®0P) within the Dirigo Health Fund where it
uses the SOP as a source of revenue to pay for the activitibe Maine Quality Forum and to subsidize the
purchase of health coverage. Each year the Board of Directorsigd Bliealth Agency determines the aggregate
measurable cost savings to health care providers in this Stateesslt of the operation of Dirigo Health. Upon
approval of the cost savings amount by the Superintendeinsofance, the Board determines a savings offset
amount to be paid by health insurance carriers, employee benefits énsesance carriers and third party
administrators. The Board calculates the savings offset pawasenpercentage of paid claims.

For the first Savings Offset Payment, the State Superintemddnsurance determined that $43.7 million was
saved in the health care system because of Dirigo Health. Thd Bstablished a percentage of .02408 to be
applied to claims paid by health insurance carriers, employee tbereéiss insurance carriers and third party
administrators. In SFY 2007, Dirigo Health collected $3@iion of this assessment and expects to collect an
additional $5.1 million in SFY 2008. For the second BgwiOffset Payment, the State Superintendent determined
the amount of savings to be $34.3 million. Of this antpthe Agency expects to collect $15.5 million in fiscal
year 2008.

ESCHEAT PROPERTY

The State Abandoned Property Statute requires the depasttain defined and unclaimed assets into a state-
managed Abandoned Property Fund (Private Purpose Trust. Flihe) State Statute provides that whenever the
cash balance of the fund exceeds $500 thousand at fiscal ye#neeagcess must be remitted to the General Fund
where it is reported as operating transfers from other fusdslune 30, 2007, the Fund included $18 million of
securities not yet liquidated that were not subject to tratsfdre General Fund. Net collections from inception
(1979) to June 30, 2007 of approximately $130.8 milliepresent a contingent liability to the State since claims
for refund may be filed by the owners of such property.
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A liability representing the probable amount of escheat propiestywill be reclaimed and paid to claimants and
other third parties is reported in the Fund. To the éxteat the assets in the Fund are less than the claimant
liability, a receivable (due from other funds) is reportethat Fund and an equal liability (due to other funds) is
reported in the General Fund. At June 30, 2007, the amepatted in the Fund for claimant liability is $20.1
million. The General Fund shows a $1.6 million payabka¢oEscheat Fund.

NURSING HOME L OANS

In 1994, the Maine Department of Human Services substant@liged the eligibility criteria for Medicaid
coverage of nursing facility services, causing a decline in occupamaysing facilities. The occupancy decline
has not affected each nursing facility equally. In some instapegscularly in proprietary nursing homes,
borrowing under the taxable financing reserve fund resolutibich consists primarily of loans to nursing homes,
these declines in occupancy created cash flow problems.

MHHEFA advanced approximately $761 thousand from the opgratimd as of June 30, 2007 to other financially
troubled institutions, with combined loan amounts duee Aluthority of approximately $11.4 million at June 30,
2007, including loans of $9.7 million reserved at June2BD7. These advances were primarily made to assist
these institutions in meeting debt service requirementserrsy prior to fiscal 2007. MHHEFA also has
approximately $.5 million of other receivables outstandinth whe operating fund at June 30, 2007, primarily
related to amounts due from institutions to reimburse théhakity for arbitrage rebate payments made on their
behalf. MHHEFA established a $1.2 million reserve in itsraping fund related to the above loans, advances and
other receivables outstanding.

Article 9, 8§ 14-A, C, and D of the Maine State Constitutprovides that the State may insure the payment of
mortgage loans for industrial, manufacturing, fishing, @dtiral and recreational enterprises; mortgage loans for
the acquisition, construction, repair and remodeling of é®asvned or to be owned by members of two tribes on
several Indian reservations; and mortgage loans to resident Matiens of the Armed Forces of the United
States, including loans to a business organization owneddtevor in part by resident Maine veterans. The
aggregate of these obligations, at any one time, may not eg8ednillion, $1 million, and $4 million,
respectively. At June 30, 2007, loans outstanding pursaghese authorizations are $31.2 million, less than $1
million, and less than $1 million, respectively. The Skete not paid, nor does it expect to pay, any amounts as a
result of these authorizations as of June 30, 2007.

Article 8, § 2, of the Maine State Constitution providest the State may secure funds, through the issuance of
bonds authorized by the Governor, for loans to Maine stadstending institutions of higher education. The
amount of bonds issued and outstanding shall not abm@ytime exceed $4 million in the aggregate. The State
has not paid, nor does it expect to pay, any amount aslaakthis authorization as of June 30, 2007.

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT

The Federal Department of Health and Human Services, Office aigpedtor General (OIG), conducted an audit
of the State’s Targeted Case Management (TCM) services for Federdlyfears 2002 and 2003. During that
time, the OIG alleges that approximately $44 million, $2Bioni being the Federal share, of TCM costs were not
in accordance with Federal and State requirements, and thereforé bhalisallowed. Another $12 million, $8
million Federal share, requires further investigation as tetlér these same services were provided under other
Federal programs. The State has notified the OIG that it disagrith these findings. The resolution is still
pending, and the State cannot predict the outcome of this matter

MORAL OBLIGATIONS

The State of Maine, through statute, enables certain Authddtestablish capital reserve funds. These funds may
be used to secure a variety of financial undertakings inclubmgsuance of bonds. The minimum amount of the
capital reserve fund may be determined by statute or set byutherfty. The statutes may also limit the amount
of debt that may be secured by the capital reserve funds, andtiaicAuthority to issue debt that is not secured
by these funds.
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On or before December first of each year, the Authority is reduo certify to the Governor the amount, if any,

necessary to restore any capital reserve fund to its requiréchumin If there is a shortfall, the Governor is

required to pay first from the “Contingent Account” the amtsunecessary for restoration. The Governor shall
certify any remaining unpaid amounts to the Legislature, whicthen required to appropriate and pay the
remaining amounts to the Authority during the then-curgate fiscal year.

These moral obligations are not considered to be “full faithcamdit” obligations of the State, and voter approval
of the underlying bonds is not required. No capital reséumnd restorations have been made in the current or
previous years.

The following summarizes information regarding outstandiogal obligations:

Moral Obligation Bonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Required Obligation

Bonds Debt Debt
Issuer Outstanding Reserve Limit Legal Citation
Maine Health and Higher Educational
Facilities Authority - debt $ 1,382,075 431397 no limit 22 MRSA § 2075
conduit debt 50,994 no limit 2 MRSA § 2075
Finance Authority of Maine 40,041 2,378 $ 572,100 10 MRSA 81032,

- - 50,000 20-A MRSA §11449
- - 50,000 38 MRSA §2221

Loring Development Authority * - - 100,000 5 MRSA 81808
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 1,082,397 5o no limit  30-A MRSA 86006
Maine Educational Loan Authority * 3280 1,285 50,000 20-A MRSA 811424
Maine State Housing Authority 1,580,800 137,091 2,150,000 30-A MRSA 84906

Total $ 4,168,422 $ 382,110

* Reported in combining non-major component umigficial statements.
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NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
On August 2, 2007 and October 16, 2007, the State isgl4e6 fillion, and $26.7 million, respectively, of Bond
Anticipation Notes that mature on June 10, 2008.

Public Law 2005 Chapter 636 established the Retired CountyMamdcipal Law Enforcement Officers and
Municipal Firefighters Health Insurance Program to provide healurance coverage to retired county and
municipal law enforcement officers and retired municipal fireéght Beginning July 1, 2007, the State shall
provide a premium subsidy of 45 percent to enrollees. Thadhof this program on the State’s postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB) liability, requine@tASB Statement No. 45, has not been determined.

COMPONENT UNITS

On February 1, 2007 the Maine State Housing Authority (MBkHdeemed $30 million of its 2005 Series B
General Housing Draw Down bonds, with variable interest ratsiring in 2010. On February 1, 2007, MSHA
issued a total of $6.4 million 2005 Series A and B Gérévasing Draw Down bonds at par, with variable interest
rates maturing in 2010. In February and March 2007, MSttieemed a total of $107.4 million of various series
of its Mortgage Purchase Program bonds at par. The bondsddaterest rates from 3.5 percent to 5.95 percent,
and maturities from 2007 to 2034.

On February 13, 2007, Maine Educational Loan Authority, a-major component unit (MELA), issued $50
million of Student Loan Revenue Bonds. The 2007 Serieddare nontaxable auction rate securities and mature
June 1, 2041. The proceeds from this bond will be useatquire and originate nonguaranteed supplemental
educational loans.

In accordance with the Higher Education Loan Purchase Progranfinlnce Authority of Maine (FAME)
purchased FFELP student loan portfolios totaling approeiynai7.3 million in July 2007. During July 2007,
2005 Subordinate Series B bonds totaling $5.5 milliorewetired with the proceeds from the 2007 Series bond
issue.

On September 7, 2007, the U.S. Congress passed, and tidefreas indicated his intention to sign, the College
Cost Reduction and Access Act. The Act reduces certain feedpdite Federal government to lenders and
guarantors participating in the Federal Family Education Laagr8m (FFELP) starting on October 1, 2007.
FAME expects to receive less revenue in its Federal student l@aargy program and its Federal student loan
secondary market program (HELPP) as a result of the fee raskictio

COMMERCIAL PAPER

On August 8, 2007, approximately $20 million was investeldlainsail | Commercial Paper, “Mainsail”. At that
date, Mainsail was rated Al+ and P1 by Standard & Poor'sMoutly’'s, respectively. On August 20, 2007,
Mainsail announced it might be forced to sell assets becauaé iden unable to raise short-term funding due to
market volatility. This resulted in the State’s Mainsail fiosibeing frozen. On August 31, 2007, the date of the
maturity of the Mainsail Il Commercial Paper, the paymentioicppal and accrued interest was not made.

As of December 14, 2007, no Mainsail payment had been receivttk [§tate. The State does not expect this

default to adversely affect its ability to meet all of its gations when due. The State, however, cannot predict the
outcome of this matter.
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Required Supplementary Information - Budgetary Reporting

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

STATE OF MAINE

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

General Fund

Highway Fund

Original Variance with Original Variance with
Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes $ 2,814,411 $ 2,894,048 2,912,019 $ 17,971 229,661 226,777 $ 226,824 47
Assessments and Other 102,537 109,319 111,673 2,354 94,838 92,874 93,293 419
Federal Grants 22,025 16,810 16,762 (48) - - -
Service Charges 37,157 38,242 36,691 (1,551) 5,703 5,422 7,322 1,900
Income from Investments 6,164 1,424 7,646 6,222 1,350 795 1,106 311
Miscellaneous Revenue 12,826 21,051 29,763 8,712 283 330 2,791 2,461
Total Revenues 2,995,120 3,080,894 3,114,554 33,660 331,835 326,198 331,336 5,138
Expenditures
Governmental Support and Operations 243,014 261,585 253,803 7,782 36,090 37,591 35,404 2,187
Economic Development & Workforce Training 42,861 43,261 40,668 2,593 - - -
Education 1,421,686 1,425,921 1,419,038 6,883 - - - -
Health and Human Services 912,515 1,045,165 1,008,391 36,774 - - -
Business Licensing & Regulation - - - - - - -
Natural Resources Development & Protection 71,894 73,863 70,867 2,996 41 40 40 -
Justice and Protection 240,247 248,460 242,654 5,806 38,104 37,785 36,806 979
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 8,881 9,075 8,999 76 - - - -
Transportation Safety & Development - - - - 284,762 322,830 272,746 50,084
Total Expenditures 2,941,098 3,107,330 3,044,420 62,910 358,997 398,246 344,996 53,250
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 54,022 (26,436) 70,134 96,570 (27,162) (72,048) (13,660) 58,388
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers Net (60,448) (73,724) (77,871) (4,147) 3,448 3,852 14,568 10,716
Proceeds from Pledged Future Revenues
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (60,448) (73,724) (77,871) (4,147) 3,448 3,852 14,568 10,716
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Uses $ (6,426) $ (100,160) (7,737)  $ 92,423 (23,714) $ (68,196) $ 908 69,104
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 286,486 129,159
Fund Balances at End of Year 278,749 $ 130,067
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Federal Funds

Other Special Revenue Fund

Original Variance with Original Variance with
Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget
$ - $ - $ - $ - 217,591 $ 238,669 $ 198,865 $ (39,804)
- - - - 108,398 118,613 93,192 (25,421)
2,549,184 2,724,279 2,153,681 (570,598) 10,336 11,911 3,769 (8,142)
1,179 1,179 1,149 (30) 131,179 134,262 74,189 (60,073)
17 17 672 655 2,303 2,381 4,599 2,218
20,521 21,698 5,157 (16,541) 186,798 178,676 216,679 38,003
2,570,901 2,747,173 2,160,659 (586,514) 656,605 684,512 591,293 (93,219)
13,301 20,568 9,282 11,286 137,180 166,244 144,933 21,311
151,213 151,382 88,587 62,795 24,662 31,490 25,045 6,445
194,489 215,158 184,991 30,167 6,314 10,292 7,729 2,563
1,833,060 1,960,948 1,613,390 347,558 456,400 482,740 364,908 117,832
946 1,681 541 1,140 66,262 76,802 59,816 16,986
41,596 55,664 37,129 18,535 99,138 132,385 90,441 41,944
107,001 122,665 89,306 33,359 32,244 35,942 26,953 8,989
3,247 3,414 2,794 620 1,342 1,661 996 665
205,471 199,954 163,921 36,033 30,088 16,955 13,118 3,837
2,550,324 2,731,434 2,189,941 541,493 853,630 954,511 733,939 220,572
20,577 15,739 (29,282) (45,021) (197,025) (269,999) (142,646) 127,353
(5,703) (6,028) 10,063 16,091 188,970 174,051 125,747 (48,304)
(5,703) (6,028) 10,063 16,091 188,970 174,051 125,747 (48,304)
$ 14,874 $ 9,711 $ (19,219) 3 (28,930) $ (8,055) $ (95,948) $ (16,899) $ 79,049

22,741 248,473

$ 3,522
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Required Supplementary Information - Budgetary Reporting

STATE OF MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Special
General Fund Highway Fund Federal Funds Revenue Fund
Fund Balances - Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis $ 278,749 $ 130,067 $ 3,522 $ 231,574
Basis Differences
Revenue Accruals/Adjustments:
Taxes Receivable 203,368 1,232 - 8,403
Intergovernmental Receivables - - 595,710 -
Other Receivables 54,484 215 93,532 71,928
Inventories 1,788 - 557 -
Due from Component Units 179
Due from Other Funds 18,010 (69,079) 4,931 21,272
Other Assets - - - 74
Deferred Revenues (213,411) (7,545) (557) (23,375)
Total Revenue Accruals/Adjustments 64,418 (75,177) 694,173 78,302
Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments:
Accounts Payable (317,402) (15,235) (520,319) (30,995)
Due to Component Units (5,398) (224) (2,718) (4,732)
Bonds Issued - - - -
Accrued Liabilities (20,961) (9,108) (5,666) (7,460)
Taxes Payable (131,242) (25) - -
Intergovernmental Payables - - (110,913) -
Due to Other Funds (24,513) (2,739) (20,484) (2,706)
Total Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments (499,516) (27,331) (660,100) (45,893)
Fund Balances - GAAP Basis $ (156,349) $ 27,559 $ 37,595 $ 263,983
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY |NFORMATION
BUDGETARY REPORTING

Statutory/Budgetary Presentation

In accordance with statute, the Governor preseriie@nial budget for the General Fund and speeatmue
funds to the Legislature for enactment or revisiokffective November 27, 1995, a State Constitaion
Amendment provided the Governor a “line item” vefadollar amounts, allowing a dollar substitutiar those
amounts disapproved, as long as an appropriatiomllocation is not increased (or a deappropriation
deallocation decreased) either in the specified bin in any other line in the legislative documertnother
Constitutional Amendment requires the State to fahdeast 90 percent of the annual cost of futuemdates
imposed on local governments; any exception regquirgvo-thirds vote of the elected members of thadd and
Senate.

Once passed and signed, the budget becomes theiéihplan for the next biennium. It includes prepd

expenditures for all departments and agenciesigsttand debt redemption charges, and expendirespital

projects to be undertaken and executed during feseal year. The budget also includes anticipa¢e@nues and
any other means of financing expenditures. TheeRadget Officer is required to use the revenwgegtions of

the Revenue Forecasting Committee in preparingtreeral Fund and Highway Fund budgets.

Exceptional circumstances do not apply to new @nogror program expansions that go beyond existiogram
criteria and operation.

Detailed budgetary control is maintained at thegpam and line category level at which approprisgi@amd
allocations are approved by the Legislature, ppialty through a quarterly allotment system. That&Budget
Officer and the Governor must approve budget remisiduring the year, reflecting program changes or
intradepartmental administrative transfers. Exceptspecific instances, only the Legislature maynsfar
appropriations between departments. Increases pnoppation, allocation, or funding for new prograrare
presented to the Legislature as a supplemental dbudgror the year ended June 30, 2007, the legislat
deappropriated $15.2 million of original appropoas for the General Fund.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase grdensracts, and other commitments for the expanalivf
funds are recorded to reserve a portion of theiggdge appropriation or allocation, is employedyovernmental
fund types. For financial statement purposes, mhcances outstanding at June 30 are shown as aésews/ of
fund balance. Unencumbered appropriations in thee€ Fund and Highway Fund lapse at June 30 yrbgss
law, they are carried forward to a subsequent ydanounts carried forward are shown as reservatidrfand
balance.

The State’s budget is prepared primarily on a daa$is. Sales, income, corporate and fuel taxdadaca
modified accrual basis adjustment to recognizemegs that are expected to be collected within 6@ @& the
end of the fiscal year.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule is presentedegsaifRd Supplementary Information (RSI) in thisartp
Actual amounts in this schedule are presented londgetary basis. Because this basis differs frooounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafedmerica (GAAP), a reconciliation between the gethry
and GAAP basis is presented in the RSI.

The various funds and programs within funds utiBzeumber of different budgetary control processésnual
legislative appropriations and revenue estimatepeovided for most “operating” funds.
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The original executive budget and original legisatappropriations provide general purpose (unicstt)
revenue estimates in order to demonstrate com@iaith constitutional provisions. Revenues resddyy law
or outside grantors to a specific program are eddch at a level of detail consistent with contngllirelated
expenditure accounts.

For programs financed from restricted revenuesndipg authorization is generally contingent upocogmition
of the related revenue. Reductions of spendingaaity occur if revenues fall short of estimatds.revenues
exceed the estimate, supplemental appropriatieneeguired before the additional resources capéets

The budgetary comparison schedule presented fasémeral Fund, the Highway Fund, the Federal Fand the
Other Special Revenue Fund presents the origindlfiaal appropriated budgets for fiscal year 200602, as
well as the actual resource inflows, outflows amudf balances stated on the budgetary basis.

The original budget and related estimated revemapsesent the spending authority enacted into lgvwthie
appropriation bills as of March 31, 2005, and idels encumbrances carried forward from the prior.yea

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)unexjthat the final legal budget be reflected ie tfinal
budget” column. Therefore updated revenue estsnatailable for appropriations as of June 19, 20&ther
than the amounts shown in the original budgetreperted.

The final appropriations budget represents origarad supplemental appropriations, carry-forwarggreved

transfers, and executive order reductions. Expereti, transfers out, other financing uses, andrabcances are
combined and classified by policy area rather thamg reported by character and function as showthe

GAAP statements. This policy area classificat®mused to better reflect organizational responsikaind to be
more consistent with the budget process.

Compliance at the Legal Level of Budgetary Control

The following schedules depict budgeted to actypeaditures at the Department level, which is dgal level
of budgetary control for all governmental fundsheTschedules provide further detail at the ageesi within
departments for transparency.
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Required Supplementary Information — State Retiremat Plan

Schedule of Funding Progress

(@ (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) (b-a)/c)
Actuarial UAAL (as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Liability Unfunded Annual percentage of
Valuation Value (AAL) — Entry AAL Funded Covered covered
Date Of Assets Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll payroll)

June 30, 2007 8,302,466,643 11,209,708,127 2,907,241,484 74.1% 5951199,514 182.2%
June 30, 2006 7,556,514,663 10,598,346,071 3,02.183 71.3% 1,546,315,522 196.7%
June 30, 2005 7,013,846,148 10,048,587,643 3,034,741,495 69.8% 5161390,862 200.1%
June 30, 2004 6,498,608,717 9,485,605,608 2,98@996 68.5% 1,472,429,214 202.9%
June 30, 2003 6,085,632,834 9,007,851,422 2,925238 67.6% 1,442,278,362 202.6%
June 30, 2002 5,920,475,637 8,511,834,626 2,591,358,989 69.6% 131262,420 183.4%
June 30, 2001 5,844,838,370 7,997,931,582  2,153,093,212 73.1% 1,326,375,573 162.3%
June 30, 2000 5,528,795,711 7,491,075,545 1,962,279,834 73.8% 1,271,009,158 154.4%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual Required Annual Percentage

Year Ended Contribution Contribution Contributed
2007 303,075,774 303,075,774 100.0%
2006 286,438,610 303,438,610 105.9%
2005 261,697,901 274,697,901 105.0%
2004 251,482,848 273,482,848 108.7%
2003 252,709,148 263,209,148 104.2%
2002 242,486,089 242,486,089 100.0%
2001 247,526,221 247,526,221 100.0%
2000 232,878,658 236,878,658 101.7%
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Required Supplementary Information — Participating Local District Plan

Schedule of Funding Progress

(@ (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) (b-a)/c)
Actuarial UAAL (as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Liability Unfunded Annual percentage of
Valuation Value (AAL) — Entry AAL Funded Covered covered
Date Of Assets Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll payroll)
June 30, 2007 2,134,633,222 1,879,685,508 (254,24Y, 113.6% 345,008,132 -73.9%
June 30, 2006 1,974,083,999 1,759,072,188 (21101}, 112.2% 326,272,608 -65.9%
June 30, 2005 1,874,310,141 1,641,144,382 (23338p, 114.2% 304,975,678 -76.5%
June 30, 2004 1,774,950,786 1,582,991,084 (191703p, 112.1% 292,321,815 -65.7%
June 30, 2003 1,701,572,665 1,463,437,856 (23803, 116.3% 277,032,661 -86.0%
June 30, 2002 1,692,033,523 1,377,659,381 (314,321, 122.8% 268,161,476 -117.2%
June 30, 2001 1,544,720,492 1,427,090,054 (117,630,438) 108.2% 254,155,180 -46.3%
June 30, 2000 1,498,729,722 1,351,640,782  (147,088,940) 110.9% 244,163,272 -60.2%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual Required Annual Percentage
Year Ended Contribution Contribution Contributed
2007 8,957,077 9,226,517 103.0%
2006 8,449,017 8,577,898 101.5%
2005 7,587,753 7,594,557 100.1%
2004 7,664,957 17,089,419 223.0%
2003 8,503,871 22,436,866 263.8%
2002 10,017,340 173,065,194 1727.7%
2001 17,122,717 17,122,717 100.0%
2000 13,433,467 13,433,467 100.0%
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY |NFORMATION
PENSION | NFORMATION

Basis of Presentation

For financial statement reporting purposes, therinftion provided on the required supplementargrinfition
schedules includes amounts for employees of paaticig local districts as well as combined amodotsState
employees, teachers, judicial and legislative eyg®#e. Employees of participating local district® arot
considered state employees.

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods:

The information in the required supplemental schesiwas determined as part of the actuarial valnatat the
dates indicated. Additional information as of st actuarial valuation date, June 30, 2003 feliows:

Funding Method

Costs are developed using the entry age normalmetitod (based on a level percentage of coveremlhay
except for the costs of the legislative plan, whteeaggregate method is used. Under this metmadcrued
liability and the present value of future normastsoare determined by summing the individual eagg results
for each participant. The normal cost is then mheitged in aggregate by spreading the present afldeture
normal costs as a level percentage of expectedefetwered payroll. Entry age is defined as trst @lay service
is credited under the plan.

Experience gains and losses, i.e., decreases @ases in liabilities and/or in assets when actxalerience
differs from the actuarial assumptions, adjustuhfinded actuarial accrued liability.

Asset Valuation Method

Assets are valued for funding purposes using aetiiear moving average. Under this method, the-gedr
actuarial asset value equals 1/3 of the currenalffigear-end fair value, as reported in the finalnstatements,
plus 2/3 of the “expected market value.” For pwgm of this calculation, the “expected market Valsghe

preceding fiscal year's actuarial asset value, sadfli for the current fiscal year's cash flows witerest
accumulated at the actuarial assumed rate of retuinvestments.

Amortization

The unfunded actuarial liability is amortized otegel percentage of payroll over the amortizatieniged then in
effect under statutory and constitutional requiretsewhich is over a 19 year closed period fromeJa®, 2000.
In 2004, the Legislature relengthened the period tge2s, the full extent of the then-remaining Constihgl years
for the 2004-2005 biennium, and reshortened the pefiedtive July 1, 2005 to the 13 years that will themain in
the earlier shortened period. In 2005, the Statealeg the “sunset” provision, with the result that pleeiod for
reduction of these unfunded actuarial liabilities continteethe full extent permitted by the State conttity or June
30, 2028.The unfunded actuarial accrual liability of theipidl plan is amortized over a period of which Jags
remained at June 30, 2007.

The IUUAL of PLDs are amortized over periods esshidd for each PLD separately. During fiscal yed87
and 2006, various PLD’s contributed approximatelB&741 and $128,881 to reduce or pay in full thetral
unpooled unfunded actuarial liability, respectivelfhe Consolidated Plan has no Pooled Unfundedakizt
Liability.
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Significant actuarial assumptions employed by theiary for funding purposes as of June 30, 2007 aare
follows:

Investment Returr 7.75% per annum, compounded annually

Salary Increases 4.75% to 10.0% per year

Mortality Rates— Active State employee members and active ppdiitig local district members, non-disabled
State employee retirees and non-disabled partiogpédcal district members — UP 1994 Tables; Actieacher
members and non-disabled teacher retirees — 8390 d994 Tables; All recipients of disability bengfi- RPA
1994 Table for pre-1995 Disabilities.

Post Retirement Benefit Increase8.75% per annum

Group Life Plan:

The Group Life Insurance Program administered lgy Slgstem provides for a life insurance benefitdotive
members equal to a member’'s annual base compemsetidefined by statute. Upon retirement, lifairaace
coverage in the amount of the member’s averagédorapensation is provided with a reduction of 1péb year
until the greater of 40% of the average final conga¢ion or $2,500 is reached. To be covered iremaént,
retirees must have participated in the Group LifegPam for a minimum of ten years. Premiums aneitted to
the System by the employer. The State pays a premate of $0.30 per $1,000 of coverage per mantladtive
state employees. Teachers and employees of pattiay local districts pay a premium rate of $0a22 $0.46
per $1,000 of coverage per month, respectively,esam all of which may be deducted from employees’
compensation as per individual agreements with eyaps and employees. Many assumptions used tondage
the actuarial liability are the same as for thegmmmplan. At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the netsabsdd in trust
for group life insurance benefits were $50.6 milliand $43.5 million, respectively. At June 30, 2@Hhd 2006,
the plan had actuarially determined liabilitiestdB5.5 and $129.8 million, respectively.

The System is in the process of implementing nesmarm rates in Group Life Insurance that were aghbjisty

the Board after an extensive premium study andat@n of the Group Life Insurance Program in 200@his
study resulted in changes in both the funding tinecand premium rates that become effective oafi2008.
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Required Supplementary Information —
Information about Infrastructure Assets Reporied Using the Modified Approach

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the Statedtapted an alternative process for recording détiec
expense on selected infrastructure assets. Uhidepriocess, the State does not record depreciexipeanse nor
are amounts capitalized in connection with improgeta to these assets, unless the improvements expan
capacity or efficiency of an asset. Assets acaalfdar under the modified approach include 8,88y miles
or 17,947 lane miles of roads and 2,965 bridgeiigaa total deck area of 11.5 million square feet the State
is responsible to maintain.

In order to utilize the modified approach, the &iatrequired to:
* Maintain an asset management system that includap-#o-date inventory of eligible infrastructure.
» Perform condition assessments of eligible assetsammarize the results using a measurement scale.
» Estimate each year the annual amount to maintath @eserve the assets at the condition level
established and disclosed by the State.
» Document that the assets are being preserved @bowe, the established condition level.

Roads and bridges maintained by the Departmentrahsportation are accounted for using the modified
approach.

Highways

Measurement Scale for Highways
The Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) usesindicators to determine the condition of higlgwa
adequacy. The six indicators and their relativiefpeeighting are listed in the table below.

Point Rating
Data Element (%) Description

Pavement Condition 45 PCR is defined as the composite condition optnement on a

Rating (PCR) roadway only, and is compiled from the severity artént of
pavement distresses such as cracking, rutting atothipg. It is the key
indicator used to determine the optimum time tatteeparticular
section of road. Points decrease as PCR decreases.

Safety 20 Statewide crash rates are used to al@oants. Locations with high
rates get fewer points.

Backlog (Built v 15 A “Built” road is one that has been construdted modern standard,

Unbuilt roadway) usually post 1950. This includes adequate drainzae, and
pavement to carry the traffic load, and adequafet slistance and
width to meet current safety standards. “Unb(liéicklog) is defined
as a roadway section that has not been built toemmostandards. Yes
or No (15 or 0).

Annual Average Daily 10 This ratio measures how intensely a highwayiiiged. As a highway

Traffic divided by the facility’s AADT/C ratio increases, the average gpegvehicles on that

hourly highway facility tends to decrease. This decrease in g@ecspeed is evidence of

capacity (AADT/C) reduced mobility. As congestion increases, paletsease (0-10).

Posted Speed 5 Lower speeds equal fewer points.

Paved Shoulder 5 In general, roadways with pavedidbrs perform at a higher level and
last longer than those without shoulders or witly gmavel shoulders.
Yes or No (5 or 0).
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Bridges

MDOT uses four separate factors to obtain a nurakviaglue used to indicate the ability of bridgesdmain in
service at the current level of usage. The numaige is a percentage ranging from 0% to represermntirely
insufficient or deficient bridge, and 100% to regmet an entirely sufficient bridge. The four iratmrs and their
relative point weighting are listed in the tablddpwe The composite numeric value is based on tliiceency
rating formula in the_Recording and Coding GuideStructure Inventory and Appraisal of the NatoBridges.

Point Rating
Data Element (%) Description

Structural Adequacy and 55 This category considers inventory rating, supecture, substructure and

Safety culverts.

Serviceability and 30 Serviceability and functional obsolescence #dalresses the number of

Functional Obsolescence lanes, average daily traffic, roadway width, bridgdth, deck condition,
under clearances, waterway adequacy, alignmentjefehse highway
designation.

Essentiality for Public Use 15 This considers detength, average daily traffic, and defense highwa
designation.

Special Reductions (13) The sufficiency rating afedudes consideration of special reductions fo
detour length, safety features, and type of strectu

Assessed Conditions
The following table shows adequacy ratings for neaiance levels from Excellent to Poor.

Adequacy Rating Total
Excellent 80-100
Good 70-80
Fair 60-70
Poor 0-60

MDOT intends to maintain highways and bridges aadaquacy rating of 60 or higher. The followingléa
shows adequacy ratings achieved by MDOT.

Fiscal Year | Highways Bridgeg
2007 76.0 78.0
2006 75.0 77.0
2005 79.3 77.0

Budgeted and Estimated Costs to Maintain

The following table presents the State’s presemwatbsts for the past five fiscal years. It alsoves the estimate
of spending necessary to preserve and maintainotes and bridges at, or above, a sufficiency gatin60 for
both highways and bridges (in millions).

Estimated Actual
Fiscal Year Spending Spending
2008 $ 100 $ -
2007 61 73.3
2006 52 51.1
2005 48 46.1
2004 30 35.3
2003 36 34.3
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Transportation Bonds
Transportation bonds, approved by referendum,sarged to fund improvements to highways and brid@dshe
amount authorized by Chapter 462, PL 2005, $27anilvas spent during FY2007.
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Totals
Other
Special Capital Permanent Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds Funds
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ 83 $ - $ - $ 83
Investments 66,906 - 12,518 79,424
Restricted Assets:
Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool - 12,855 - 12,855
Restricted Deposits and Investments - 13,898 - 13,898
Due from Component Units - 715 - 715
Total Current Assets 66,989 27,468 12,518 106,975
Total Assets $ 66,989 $ 27,468 $ 12,518 $ 106,975
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ - $ 4,639 $ - $ 4,639
Due to Other Funds - 71 - 71
Due to Component Units - 2,165 - 2,165
Other Accrued Liabilities 2 - - 2
Total Current Liabilities 2 6,875 - 6,877
Total Liabilities 2 6,875 - 6,877
Fund Balances:
Reserved
Continuing Appropriations 155 - - 155
Capital Projects - 20,593 - 20,593
Permanent Trusts - - 12,518 12,518
Other 66,832 - - 66,832
Total Fund Balances 66,987 20,593 12,518 100,098
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 66,989 $ 27,468 $ 12,518 $ 106,975
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Governmental Support & Operations
Economic Development & Workforce Training
Education
Health and Human Services
Natural Resources Development & Protection
Justice and Protection
Arts, Heritage, and Cultural Enrichment
Transportation, Safety & Development

Total Expenditures

Revenue over (under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from Other Funds
Transfers to Other Funds
Other
Bonds Issued

Net Other Finance Sources (Uses)

Revenue and Other Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

Fund Balances at End of Year

Totals
Other
Special Capital Permanent Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds Funds
$ 9,441 - $ 1,269 $ 10,710
- 536 - 536
9,441 536 1,269 11,246
130 5,411 - 5,541
- 3,559 - 3,559
- 8,030 - 8,030
- 1,800 - 1,800
- 3,920 - 3,920
- 457 - 457
- 580 - 580
- 42,917 - 42,917
130 66,674 - 66,804
9,311 (66,138) 1,269 (55,558)
35 3,030 - 3,065
(1,993) (9,540) (25) (11,558)
- 60,975 - 60,975
(1,958) 54,465 (25) 52,482
7,353 (11,673) 1,244 (3,076)
59,634 32,266 11,274 103,174
$ 66,987 20,593 $ 12,518 $ 100,098
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OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Baxter Park Fund — This fund accounts for a gift to Revenue on Permanent Funds Fund — This fund

the State of Maine by former Governor Baxter, whichaccounts for expendable earnings on permanent fund
allows for the principal and interest to be used tdoalances.

purchase public reserved lands. Interest incomg ma

also be used for operations of the Baxter Statk. Par

Capital Projects Funds

General Bond Fund — This fund accounts for the The State also includes proceeds from bond issues f
acquisition or construction of major capital fa#ls, purposes other than construction of major capital
other than highways and bridges that are financefacilities in this fund.

primarily from proceeds of general obligation bands

Per manent Funds

Baxter Park Trust Fund — This fund accounts for a gift Other Trust Funds — These funds are comprised of
to the State of Maine by former Governor Baxternumerous small Permanent Funds, the income from
calling for principal to be maintained intact andwhich may be used for specified purposes.

income to be used for park operations.
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Totals
Revenue on Special
Baxter Permanent Revenue
Park Funds Funds
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ - $ 83 83
Investments 66,832 74 66,906
Total Current Assets 66,832 157 66,989
Total Assets $ 66,832 $ 157 66,989
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Current Liabilities:
Other Accrued Liabilities $ - $ 2 2
Total Current Liabilities - 2 2
Total Liabilities - 2 2
Fund Balances:
Reserved
Continuing Appropriations - 155 155
Other 66,832 - 66,832
Total Fund Balances 66,832 155 66,987
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 66,832 $ 157 66,989
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Totals
Revenue on Special
Baxter Permanent Revenue
Park Funds Funds
Revenues:
Investment Income $ 9,028 $ 413 $ 9,441
Total Revenues 9,028 413 9,441
Expenditures
General Government - 130 130
Total Expenditures - 130 130
Revenue over (under) Expenditures 9,028 283 9,311
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Other Funds - 35 35
Transfer to Other Funds (1,675) (318) (1,993)
Net Other Finance Sources (Uses) (1,675) (283) (1,958)
Revenues and Other Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Uses 7,353 - 7,353
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 59,479 155 59,634
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 66,832 $ 155 $ 66,987
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STATE OF MAINE
BALANCE SHEET

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Current Assets:

Restricted Assets:

Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Restricted Deposits and Investments

Due from Component Units
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Component Units
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Reserved

Capital Projects

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

114

General Bond
Fund

$ 12,855
13,898

715

27,468

$ 27,468

$ 4,639
71

2,165

6,875

6,875

20,593

20,593

$ 27,468



STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Governmental Support & Operations
Economic Development & Workforce Training
Education

Health and Human Services

Natural Resources Development & Protection
Justice and Protection

Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment

Transportation, Safety & Development
Debt Service:

Principal Payments
Interest Payments

Total Expenditures
Revenue over (under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from Other Funds
Transfers to Other Funds

Bonds Issued

Net Other Finance Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

Fund Balances at End of Year
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General Bond Fund

$ 536

536

5411
3,559
8,030
1,800
3,920
457
580
42,917

66,674

(66,138)

3,030
(9,540)
60,975

54,465

(11,673)

32,266

$ 20,593




STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Totals
Baxter Other Permanent
Trust Trusts Funds
Assets
Investments $ 5,283 $ 7,235 $ 12,518
Total Assets $ 5,283 $ 7,235 $ 12,518
Fund Balances
Reserved:
Permanent Trusts $ 5,283 $ 7,235 $ 12,518
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STATE OF MAINE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Investment Income (Loss)

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Total Expenditures
Revenues over Expenditures
Transfers to Other Funds
Net Other Finance Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Sources over
Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

Fund Balances at End of Year
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Totals
Baxter Other Permanent
Trust Trusts Funds
$ 567 $ 702 $ 1,269
567 702 1,269
567 702 1,269
- (25) (25)
- (25) (25)
567 677 1,244
4,716 6,558 11,274
$ 5,283 $ 7,235 $ 12,518
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NON-MAJOR
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Lottery Fund- This fund was established to account
for all operations of the Maine State Lottery. Fhi
includes the Tri-State Lotto Commission and the
Multi-State Lottery Association. The Tri-State Latt
Commission was established in 1985 and is a joint
venture between the States of Maine, New
Hampshire, and Vermont. The Commission is
authorized and empowered to promulgate rules and
regulations regarding the conduct of lottery games,
including the prices of tickets, the number ana siz
of prizes for winning tickets, and the licensing of
agents. The Multi-State Lottery Association was
established in July 2004 and is authorized to
initiate, promulgate, administer and carry out one
more lottery product offerings.

Maine Military Authority Fund— This fund was
created for the purpose of operating the Maine
Readiness Sustainment Maintenance Center. The
Center maintains, rebuilds, repairs, stores and
manufactures equipment for the United States
Departments of Defense, Army, Air Force, Navy
and Treasury.

Seed Potato Board Fund This fund accounts for
the growing of nuclear seed for sale to potato
growers, for research in disease control, and the
development of new product varieties.

Marine Ports Fund- This fund is used to account
for the operation and maintenance of port facsitie
within the jurisdiction of the Department of
Transportation.
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State Ferry Service Fund This fund accounts for
the operation of ferry services between the mathlan
and various islands for the purpose of transporting
vehicles, freight, and passengers to and from those
islands.

Prison Industries Fund- This fund accounts for a
self-supporting program of job training through the
employment of inmates in manufacturing and selling
products.

Dirigo Health Agency- This fund was created to
arrange for the provision of comprehensive,
affordable health care coverage to eligible small
employers, including the self-employed, their
employees and dependents, and individuals on a
voluntary basis.

State Transit, Aviation and Rail Transportation
Fund — This fund was established to support
purchasing, operating, maintaining, improving,
repairing, constructing and management of
transportation buildings, structures and
improvements, and equipment.

Consolidated Emergency Communications Fund
This fund accounts for payments made by
municipal, county, and state governmental entities
towards the implementation of the Statewide
Communication System.




STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Maine
Military
Lottery Authority Seed Potato Marine Ports
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ 5 8 -8 - $ 187
Cash and Short-Term Investments 750 - 1 -
Inventories - - 1 -
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Other Receivable 18,943 228 76 205

Due from Other Funds 2,728 5,992 - -
Due from Component Units - - - 66
Other Current Assets 179 26 1 -
Total Current Assets 22,605 6,246 79 458
Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool - - - 20
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 7 1,590 600 20,056
Total Noncurrent Assets 7 1,590 600 20,076
Total Assets 22,612 7,836 679 20,534
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 1,255 1,091 - -
Accrued Payroll 77 836 19 -
Due to Other Funds 3,330 5,084 10 -
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:

Compensated Absences 10 8 2 -
Deferred Revenue 373 - - -
Other Accrued Liabilities 17,075 916 160 -

Total Current Liabilities 22,120 7,935 191 -

Long-Term Liabilities:

Compensated Absences 86 69 21 -

Total Long-Term Liabilities 86 69 21 -

Total Liabilities 22,206 8,004 212 -

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 7 1,590 600 20,056
Unrestricted 399 (1,758) (133) 478
Total Net Assets $ 406  $ (168) $ 467 $ 20,534
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Consolidated

Totals

Transit, Aviation, Emergency Other
Prison Dirigo & Rail Communications Enterprise
Ferry Service Industries Health Transportation Fund Funds
$ 120 95 $ 10445 $ 1,137 % 398 $ 12,387
3 3 - - - 757
277 501 - - - 779
105 21 1,874 530 110 22,092
126 - - - 130 8,976
- - - - - 66
- - - - - 206
631 620 12,319 1,667 638 45,263
13 10 1,143 124 43 1,353
21,343 9 - 46,756 - 90,361
21,356 19 1,143 46,880 43 91,714
21,987 639 13,462 48,547 681 136,977
34 26 361 4 2 2,773
302 14 36 161 - 1,445
20 2 1,205 - 89 9,740
28 1 6 - 17 72
- - 1,223 - - 1,596
- - - - - 18,151
384 43 2,831 165 108 33,777
248 11 56 4 151 646
248 11 56 4 151 646
632 54 2,887 169 259 34,423
21,343 9 - 46,756 - 90,361
12 576 10,575 1,622 422 12,193
$ 21,355 585 $ 10575 $ 48,378 $ 422 $ 102,554
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STATE OF MAINE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Maine
Military
Lottery Authority Seed Potato Marine Ports
Operating Revenues

Charges for Services $ 231,122 $ 30656 $ 228 % 89

Assessments - - - -

Miscellaneous Revenues 50 1 12 -
Total Operating Revenues 231,172 30,657 240 89

Operating Expenses

General Operations 180,718 34,992 612 755

Depreciation 4 148 15 1,342
Total Operating Expenses 180,722 35,140 627 2,097
Operating Income (Loss) 50,450 (4,483) (387) (2,008)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)- net 456 (339) 2 38
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 456 (339) 2 38
Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions and
Transfers 50,906 (4,822) (385) (1,970)

Capital Contributions and Transfers

Capital Contributions from Other Funds - - - -

Transfers from (to) Other Funds (50,830) 567 270 -
Total Capital Contributions and
Transfers In (Out) (50,830) 567 270 -
Change in Net Assets 76 (4,255) (115) (1,970)

Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year 330 4,087 582 22,504
Total Net Assets - End of Year $ 406 % (168) $ 467 % 20,534
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Consolidated

Totals

Transit, Aviation, Emergency Other
Prison Dirigo & Rail Communications Enterprise
Ferry Service Industries Health Transportation Fund Funds
$ 3,799 % 1,506 63,339 $ 358 % 4992 $ 336,089
- - - 1,749 - 1,749
- 2 - - - 65
3,799 1,508 63,339 2,107 4,992 337,903
7,500 1,686 65,178 2,159 4,557 298,157
1,475 5 - 2,059 - 5,048
8,975 1,691 65,178 4,218 4,557 303,205
(5,176) (183) (1,839) (2,111) 435 34,698
38 13 - 62 - 270
38 13 - 62 - 270
(5,138) (170) (1,839) (2,049) 435 34,968
2,926 - - 13,598 - 16,524
3,802 (38) (5,937) (2 (13) (52,181)
6,728 (38) (5,937) 13,596 (13) (35,657)
1,590 (208) (7,776) 11,547 422 (689)
19,765 793 18,351 36,831 - 103,243
$ 21,355 % 585 10,575  $ 48378 % 422 $ 102,554
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users $
Payments to Prize Winners
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Transfers in
Operating Transfers out
Special Iltem - Transfer of Assets to STAR fund

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payments for Acquisition of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Revenue

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash/Cash Equivalents

Cash/Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash/Cash Equivalents - End of Year $

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense
Decrease (Increase) in Assets & Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable

Interfund Balances

Inventories

Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll Expenses

Change in Compensated Absences
Other Accruals

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $

Maine

Military Seed Marine

Lottery Authority Potato Ports
228,887 $ 34,597 $ 206 $ 23
(145,479) - - -
(31,450) (14,883) (129) (755)
(1,579) (20,217) (399) -
50,379 (503) (322) (732)
620 793 -
(51,450) (226) 270 -
(50,830) 567 270 -
- 275 - -
- 275 - -
456 (339) 2 38
456 (339) 2 38
5 - (50) (694)
750 - 51 901
755 $ -3 13 207
50,450 $ (4,483) $ (387) $ (2,008)
4 148 15 1,342
443 3,192 (34) (66)
(3,010) 852 8 -
68 (1,080) - -
18 104 1) -
(39) 77 23 -
2,445 687 54 -
(71) 3,980 65 1,276
50,379 $ (503) $ (322) $ (732)

Non Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Contributed Capital Assets
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Totals

Transit, Consolidated Other
Ferry Dirigo Aviation, & Rail Emergency Enterprise

Service Prison Health Transportation Communications Funds
3,705 $ 1,590 $ 62,801 $ 2,288 $ 4882 $ 338,982
- - - - - (145,479)
(2,587) (1,415) (65,827) (1,833) (520) (119,399)
(4,744) (185) (1,084) (168) (3,908) (32,284)
(3,626) (10) (4,110) 287 454 41,820
3,862 - - - - 5,275
(60) (38) (5,937) 2) (13) (57,456)
3,802 (38) (5,937) (2) (13) (52,181)
(268) - - 137 - 144
- 1 - - - 1
(268) 1 - 137 - 145
38 13 - 62 - 270
38 13 - 62 - 270
(54) (34) (10,047) 484 441 (9,946)
190 142 21,635 777 - 24,446
136 $ 108 $ 11,588 $ 1,261 $ 441 $ 14,500
(5,176) $ (183) $ (1,839) $ (2,111 $ 435 $ 34,698
1,475 5 - 2,059 - 5,048
17 56 (538) 178 (110) 3,138
(111) 28 (1,446) 5 (41) (3,712)
(15) 46 - - - 31
(117) 26 (314) 4) 2 (1,419)
25 - (8) 156 - 294
276 12 62 4 168 583
- - (27) - - 3,159
1,550 173 (2,271) 2,398 19 7,122
(3,626) $ (10) $ (4,110) $ 287 % 454 $ 41,820
2,926 - - - - 2,926

125



126



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Motor Transport Service Fund This fund accounts Revenue Services FurdThis fund accounts for the

for all the equipment and vehicle operations of theesources generated and used to provide up-to-date

Department of Transportation. information to facilitate compliance with Maine tax
law and to help reduce common mistakes in filing ta

Postal, Printing and Supply Fund- This fund forms.

accounts for the purchase of general office supplie

materials and photocopiers required by any StatBetiree Health Insurance Fund This fund accounts

department or agency, the purchase of and corftact for post retirement health care premiums and benefi

all postal and mailing services, duplicating needg] for most retired state employees and Legislatard, a

the acquisition and disposition of State and felderdor a portion of the premiums for teachers.

surplus property. This fund is also used to adsteni

the State’s Procurement Card Program. Employee Health Insurance Fund This fund
accounts for health care premiums and benefits for

Information Services Fund This fund accounts for most state employees.

the costs of providing information services in data

processing and telecommunications and foStatewide Radio & Network System Fun@his fund

coordinating data processing services includingccounts for resources generated and used to acquir

computer operations, programming and applicationexpand, upgrade and replace a statewide radio and

systems development, technical support andetwork system for use by State agencies.

networking services.

Financial and Personnel Services FurdThis fund
Risk Management Fund This fund accounts for accounts for centralized services provided by the
resources generated and used to provide insuranBepartment of Administrative and Financial Services
advice and services for all forms of insurance pkce Services provided include personnel administration,
health and workers’ compensation. This includegmployee relations, budget management, general
insurance for automobile, fire, liability and anther administration, and accounting.
type of coverage that may be necessary to prdtect t
State against financial loss. Transportation Facilities Fund This fund accounts
for the purchase, operation, maintenance,
Workers’ Compensation Fund This fund accounts improvement, repair, construction, and management o
for resources generated and used to provide workersuildings owned by the Department of Transportation
compensation advice and insurance services.

Governmental Facilities Authority Fund This fund
Central Fleet Management FurdThis fund accounts includes the operations of the Maine Governmental
for the cost of administering a uniform program forFacilities Authority, a blended component unit. eTh
the operation and maintenance of all State vehiclesuthority was created to assist in the financing,
except those of the Department of Transportatiah anequipping, improvement, reconstruction, acquisition
Public Safety. and construction of additions to structures designe
for use as a court facility, State office or Statéivity
Leased Space Fund This fund accounts for State space.
facilities leasing activities and maintains reconfs
State agency property, leasing needs and all &kaila
space owned, leased and potentially available for
lease.

127



STATE OF MAINE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Motor Transport Postal, Printing Information Risk
Service & Supply Services Management
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ 1,936 $ - $ - $ 17,998
Cash and Short-Term Investments 1 1 - -
Cash with Fiscal Agent 438 - 12,498 -

Restricted Assets:

Restricted Deposits and Investments - - - -
Inventories 3,733 904 - -
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Loans Receivable - - - -

Other Receivable 534 129 41 11
Due from Other Funds 1,590 2,489 16,129 60
Other Current Assets - 123 479 271

Total Current Assets 8,232 3,646 29,147 18,340

Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool 212 - - 1,969
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Loans Receivable

Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 47,086 14,438 -

7
Total Noncurrent Assets 47,298 7 14,438 1,969
Total Assets 55,530 3,653 43,585 20,309
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 34 1,085 3,847 44
Accrued Payroll 657 98 1,498 13
Due to Other Governments - - - -
Due to Other Funds 35 2,307 7,912 99
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrang 1,731 - 9,249 -
Revenue Bonds Payable - - - -
Obligations Under Capital Leases - - - -
Claims Payable - - - -
Compensated Absences 49 12 204 25
Deferred Revenue - - - 325
Other Accrued Liabilities 55 - 772 -
Total Current Liabilities 2,561 3,502 23,482 506
Long-Term Liabilities:
Working Capital Advances Payable - 111 - -
Deferred Revenue - - - -
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrang 3,533 - 19,168 -
Revenue Bonds Payable - - - -
Obligations Under Capital Leases - - - -
Claims Payable - - - 3,190
Compensated Absences 424 105 1,753 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities 3,957 216 20,921 3,190
Total Liabilities 6,518 3,718 44,403 3,696
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 42,676 7 14,397 -
Restricted for:
Other Purposes - - - -
Unrestricted 6,336 (72) (15,215) 16,613
Total Net Assets $ 49,012 $ 65 $ (818) $ 16,613
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Employee

Workers' Central Fleet Revenue Retiree Health Health Statewide Radio &
Compensation Management Leased Space Services Insurance Insurance Network System

26,515 - 3% 109 % 384 % 97,962 54,625 % 184
- 1 - - - - -
- 1,483 - - - - 9,316
- 54 - - - - -
- 20 - - 587 2,082 -
1,041 1,273 127 - - 12 -
114 - - - 5 8 -
27,670 2,831 236 384 98,554 56,727 9,500
2,901 - 12 42 10,718 5,977 20
- 14,000 37,599 - - - 1,503
2,901 14,000 37,611 42 10,718 5,977 1,523
30,571 16,831 37,847 426 109,272 62,704 11,023
288 166 245 - - 73 -
49 30 9 - - 33 -
41 1,887 30 - - 17,853 130
- 3,663 - - - - 1,271
- - 6,402 - - - -
7,432 - - - 5,602 9,946 -
42 42 24 - - 42 -
- 88 - - - - 191
7,852 5,876 6,710 - 5,602 27,947 1,592
- 6,295 - - - - 7,260
- - 35,349 - - - -
37,926 - - - - - -
37,926 6,295 35,349 - - - 7,260
45,778 12,171 42,059 - 5,602 27,947 8,852
- 4,042 (4,152) - - - 1,503
- - - - - - 2,171
(15,207) 618 (60) 426 103,670 34,757 (1,503)
(15,207) 4660 $ (4,212) $ 426 $ 103,670 34757 $ 2,171
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STATE OF MAINE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (Continued)
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2007

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Cash and Short-Term Investments
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Restricted Assets:
Restricted Deposits and Investments
Inventories
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:
Loans Receivable
Other Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:
Loans Receivable
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll

Due to Other Governments

Due to Other Funds

Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements
Revenue Bonds Payable
Obligations Under Capital Leases
Claims Payable
Compensated Absences

Deferred Revenue

Other Accrued Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:

Working Capital Advances Payable

Deferred Revenue
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements
Revenue Bonds Payable
Obligations Under Capital Leases
Claims Payable
Compensated Absences
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Totals
Financial &
Personnel Transportation Governmental Internal Service
Services Facilities Fund Facilities Authority Funds
$ 19  $ 6,466 $ - 3% 206,298
- - - 3
- - - 23,735
N - 2,403 2,403
B, . - 4,691
- - 14,610 14,610
- - 2,414 5,818
371 - - 23,092
- - 3 1,003
490 6,466 19,430 281,653
13 708 - 22,572
- - 167,995 167,995
- 2,947 - 117,580
13 3,655 167,995 308,147
503 10,121 187,425 589,800
20 2 8 5,812
678 - - 3,065
- - 225 225
184 - - 30,478
- - - 15,914
- - 14,610 14,610
B, . - 6,402
- - - 22,980
88 - - 528
- - 84 409
- - 2,047 3,153
970 2 16,974 103,576
- - - 111
- - 984 984
- - - 36,256
- - 167,995 167,995
- - - 35,349
- - - 41,116
777 - - 3,059
777 - 168,979 284,870
1,747 2 185,953 388,446
- 3,117 - 61,590
- - 2 2,173
(1,244) 7,002 1,470 137,591
$ (1,244) $ 10,119  $ 1472 $ 201,354
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STATE OF MAINE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Motor Transport Postal, Printing Information Risk
Service & Supply Services Management
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $ 34,752 $ 42,735 64,222 % 4,935
Miscellaneous Revenues - - 230 22
Total Operating Revenues 34,752 42,735 64,452 4,957
Operating Expenses
General Operations 24,334 42,742 69,064 3,488
Depreciation 5,717 6 3,144 -
Claims/Fees Expense - - - 683
Other Operating Expenses - - - -
Total Operating Expenses 30,051 42,748 72,208 4,171
Operating Income (LosS) 4,701 (13) (7,756) 786
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Revenue (Expense) - net 130 - - 1,172
Interest Expense (183) - (304) -
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)- net - - 1 -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (53) - (303) 1,172
Income (Loss) Before Capital
Contributions and Transfers 4,648 (13) (8,059) 1,958
Capital Contributions and Transfers
Capital Contributions from Other Funds 2,057 - - -
Transfers from (to) Other Funds 212 49 2,308 (7)
Total Capital Contributions and
Transfers In (Out) 2,269 49 2,308 (7)
Change in Net Assets 6,917 36 (5,751) 1,951
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year (As Restated) 42,095 (101) 4,933 14,662
Total Net Assets - End of Year $ 49,012 $ (65) (818) $ 16,613
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Employee Statewide Radio
Workers' Central Fleet Revenue Retiree Health Health & Network
Compensation Management Leased Spaces Services Insurance Insurance Systems
16,266 8884 $ 22,393 % 184 % 91,881 148,195 $ 1,955
117 - - - 11 82 215
16,383 8,884 22,393 184 91,892 148,277 2,170
3,750 6,023 10,069 - 55,233 142,554 -
- 2,359 4,822 - - - -
8,459 - - - - - -
12,209 8,382 14,891 - 55,233 142,554 -
4,174 502 7,502 184 36,659 5,723 2,170
1,587 - 88 19 5,213 4,018 -
9) (307) (7,764) - - - -
- (374) - - - - -
1,578 (681) (7,676) 19 5,213 4,018 -
5,752 (179) 174) 203 41,872 9,741 2,170
7,995 8 1) - - (21,501) -
7,995 8 1) - - (21,501) -
13,747 (171) (175) 203 41,872 (11,760) 2,170
(28,954) 4,831 (4,037) 223 61,798 46,517 1
(15,207) 4660 $ (4212) $ 426 $ 103,670 34,757 $ 2,171

133

(continued)



STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS (Continued)

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Financial &
Personnel Transportation
Services Facilities Fund

Governmental
Facilities Authority

Totals

Internal
Service Funds

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services $ 17,638 $ 10,753  $ 8,496 $ 473,289
Miscellaneous Revenues - - 37 714
Total Operating Revenues 17,638 10,753 8,533 474,003
Operating Expenses
General Operations 17,793 1,151 227 376,428
Depreciation - - - 16,048
Claims/Fees Expense - - - 9,142
Other Operating Expenses - - 362 362
Total Operating Expenses 17,793 1,151 589 401,980
Operating Income (Loss) (155) 9,602 7,944 72,023
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Revenue (Expense) - net - 517 134 12,878
Interest Expense - - (7,956) (16,523)
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)- net - - - (373)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) - 517 (7,822) (4,018)
Income (Loss) Before Capital
Contributions, Transfers and Special Items (155) 10,119 122 68,005
Capital Contributions, Transfers and Special Items
Capital Contributions from Other Funds - - - 2,057
Transfers from (to) Other Funds 127 - - (10,810)
Total Capital Contributions, Transfers In (Out)
and Special Items 127 - - (8,753)
Change in Net Assets (28) 10,119 122 59,252
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year (As Restated) (1,216) - 1,350 142,102
Total Net Assets - End of Year $ (1,244) $ 10,119 $ 1,472  $ 201,354
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2007

(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activ  ities
Payments for Acquisition of Capital Assets
Proceeds From Financing Arrangements
Principal and Interest Paid on Financing Arrangements

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Revenue

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash/Cash Equivalents
Cash/Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash/Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Ca  sh
Used by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Ca  sh
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense
Decrease (Increase) in Assets

Accounts Receivable
Interfund Balances
Inventories
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll Expenses
Change in Compensated Absences
Other Accruals

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Non Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activitie s
Property Leased, Accrued, or Acquired
Contributed Capital Assets

Motor Postal
Transport Printing & Information Risk
Service Supply Services Management
$ 33,201 $ 43565 $ 58,545 $ 5,165
(14,960) (41,234) (24,722) (3,880)
(10,992) (2,381) (37,229) (340)
7,249 (50) (3,406) 945
337 70 2,499 -
(125) (21) (191) ()
212 49 2,308 (W)
(9,756) 1 (7,449) -
2,000 - 14,800 -
(1,339) - 3,838 -
(9,095) 1 11,189 -
130 - 1 1,172
130 - 1 1,172
(1,504) - 10,092 2,110
4,091 1 2,406 17,857
$ 2,587 $ 13 12,498 $ 19,967
$ 4,701 $ (13) $ (7,756) $ 786
5,717 6 3,144 R
(1,258) 910 (5,753) 179
(18) 453 6,952 22
(293) 27) - -
(1,643) (1,285) (531) 38
16 4 87 1
9 (45) 87 )
18 (53) 364 (79)
2,548 (37) 4,350 159
$ 7,249 $ (50) $ (3,406) $ 945
2,057 - - -
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Statewide

Retiree Employee Radio &
Workers' Central Fleet Leased Revenue Health Health Network
Compensation Management Space Services Insurance Insuran ce System
16,441 $ 8,653 $ 22,401 $ 184 $ 92,459 $ 150,275 $ 2,170
(11,197) (4,915) (9,791) - (55,623) (137,712) 321
(1,046) (746) (195) - - (786) -
4,198 2,992 12,415 184 36,836 11,777 2,491
- 14 - - - 12 -
©) (6) ) - - (21,513) -
9) 8 1) - - (21,501) -
- (3,033) (15) - - - (1,503)
- 4,500 - - - - 10,000
9) (3,472) (12,392) - - - (1,469)
9) (2,005) (12,407) - - - 7,028
1,587 - 88 19 5,213 4,018 -
1,587 - 88 19 5,213 4,018 -
5,767 995 95 203 42,049 (5,706) 9,519
23,649 489 26 223 66,631 66,308 1
29416 $ 1484 $ 121 $ 426 $ 108,680 $ 60,602 $ 9,520
4,174 $ 502 $ 7502 $ 184 $ 36,659 $ 5723 $ 2,170
- 2,359 4,822 - - - R
(302) (224) 8 - 567 1,998 -
3 303 8 - - 16,632 130
- @) - - - -
(70) 38 70 - (98) (11,962) -
14 - 1 - - 4 _
- 10 4 - - (10) -
379 11 - (292) (608) 191
24 2,490 4,913 - 177 6,054 321
4,198 $ 2992 $ 12,415 $ 184 $ 36,836 $ 11,777 $ 2,491
- - 4,093 - - - -
(continued)
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Financial Totals
and Transportation Governmental Internal
Personnel Facilities Facilities Service
Services Fund Authority Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 17,382 $ 10,753 $ 11,811 $ 473,005
Payments to Suppliers (1,483) (1,149) (586) (306,931)
Payments to Employees (15,989) - - (69,704)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (90) 9,604 11,225 96,370
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers In 238 - - 3,170
Operating Transfers Out (111) - - (21,984)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 127 - - (18,814)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activ  ities
Payments for Acquisition of Capital Assets - (2,947) - (24,702)
Proceeds From Financing Arrangements - - 10,985 42,285
Principal and Interest Paid on Financing Arrangements - - (22,551) (37,394)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital Financing Activities - (2,947) (11,566) (19,811)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Revenue - 517 134 12,879
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities - 517 134 12,879
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash/Cash Equivalents 37 7,174 (207) 70,624
Cash/Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 95 - 2,610 184,387
Cash/Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 132 $ 7174 $ 2,403 $ 255,011
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Ca  sh
Used by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $ (155) $ 9,602 $ 7,944 $ 72,023
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Ca  sh
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense - - - 16,048
Decrease (Increase) in Assets
Accounts Receivable (256) - 3,251 (880)
Interfund Balances - - 89 24,574
Inventories - - - (327)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable 15 2 1) (15,427)
Accrued Payroll Expenses 87 - - 214
Change in Compensated Absences 74 - - 127
Other Accruals 145 - (58) 18
Total Adjustments 65 2 3,281 24,347
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (90) $ 9,604 $ 11,225 $ 96,370
Non Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activitie s
Property Leased, Accrued, or Acquired - - - 4,093
Contributed Capital Assets - - - 2,057
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PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUSTS
& AGENCY FUNDS

Private Purpose Trust Funds

Abandoned Property Fund This fund accounts for Permanent School Fund This fund is comprised of

unclaimed property receipts. All holders of prdaper numerous small private purpose trusts, the income

presumed abandoned must report these properties ftom which may be used for specified purposes.

the Treasurer annually. The Treasurer will honor

claims indefinitely. NextGen College Investing Plar is the Maine
College Savings Program. The program was

Revenue on Private Purpose Trusts Fundlhis fund established under Chapter 417-E of Title 20-A, to

accounts for expendable earnings on private purposmcourage the investment of funds to be used for

trust fund balances. Qualified Higher Education Expenses at institutiohs
higher education. The plan consists of the

Lands Reserved Trust Funds These funds were investments made by participants in the State’'s

established to account for revenue derived from th@ualified State Tuition Program under Section 589 o

sale of timber from public lands and from apprecrat the Internal Revenue Code.

on investments. The income is to be used for dchoo

purposes by townships when they become organized

towns or plantations.

Agency Funds

Payroll Withholding Fund- This fund accounts for all Other Agency Funds- These funds account for
payroll taxes and deductions withheld to pay thewumerous small agency funds which have been
federal government, other State agencies, and bayr@ombined for financial reporting purposes.

vendors.

Treasurer’'s Agency Fund This fund accounts for
Private Trusts Fund- This fund is used to account for deposits of quasi-governmental units placed in the
assets held by the State acting as an agent fienpat Treasurer’'s Cash Pool for investment purposes.
of State mental health facilities, inmates at State
correctional institutions, recipients of State-soiped  Municipal Health Insurance Progranfrund — This
elder and adult services, and child supporfund accounts for health insurance coverage pravide
enforcement services. Also included in this fume a to retired county and municipal law enforcement
insurance company and unemployment guarantgfficers and retired municipal firefighters.
deposits, and assets held in Courts and Corrections
restitution escrow accounts.
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Totals
Revenue on

Private NextGen Private

Abandoned Purpose Lands Permanent College Purpose

Property Trusts Reserved School Investing Plan Trusts

Assets
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ 523 $ 38 $ 711 $ - $ - $ 1,272
Investments at Fair Value:

Other - 33 8,765 2,849 - 11,647
Investments Held on Behalf of Others - - - - 5,231,583 5,231,583
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Interest and Dividends - - - - 222 222

Due from Other Funds 6,766 - - - - 6,766
Other Assets 18,001 - - - - 18,001

Total Assets 25,290 71 9,476 2,849 5,231,805 5,269,491
Liabilities

Accounts Payable 23 - - - 3,254 3,277
Other Accrued Liabilities - 1 - - - 1
Total Liabilities 23 1 - - 3,254 3,278

Net Assets

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension, Disability, Death,

Group Life Insurance Benefits and Other Purposes 25,267 70 9,476 2,849 5,228,551 5,266,213
Total Net Assets $ 25,267 $ 70 $ 9,476 $ 2,849 $ 5,228,551 $ 5,266,213
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Additions:

Contributions:
Members

Investment Income:
Net Increase in the Fair Value of Investments
Capital Gains Distributions from Investments
Interest and Dividends

Net Investment Income

Bond and Note Proceeds
Miscellaneous Revenues
Transfers In

Total Additions

Deductions:
Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries
Administrative Expenses

Transfers Out

Total Deductions

Net Increase (Decrease)

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension, Disability, Death,
Group Life Insurance Benefits and Other Purposes:

Beginning of Year

End of Year

Totals
Revenue on

Private NextGen Private

Abandoned Purpose Lands Permanent College Purpose

Property Trusts Reserved School Investing Plan Trusts
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,699,856 $ 1,699,856
- - 702 161 431,852 432,715
- - - - 112,678 112,678
356 187 193 71 143,524 144,331
356 187 895 232 688,054 689,724
12,121 - - - - 12,121
- 16 - - - 16
12,477 203 895 232 2,387,910 2,401,717
263 59 - - 1,109,531 1,109,853
R - - - 36,841 36,841
8,916 144 - - - 9,060
9,179 203 - - 1,146,372 1,155,754
3,298 - 895 232 1,241,538 1,245,963
21,969 70 8,581 2,617 3,987,013 4,020,250
$ 25,267 $ 70 $ 9,476 $ 2,849 $ 5,228,551 $ 5,266,213
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STATE OF MAINE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
AGENCY FUNDS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Totals
Municipal
Health
Payroll Other Insurance Treasurer's Agency
Withholding Private Trusts Agency Program Fund Agency Funds
Assets
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ - $ 4,341 $ 1,916 $ 333 $ - $ 6,590
Cash and Short-Term Investments - - - - 14 14
Cash with Fiscal Agent - 27 - - - 27
Investments Held on Behalf of Others - 60,034 2,226 - - 62,260
Other Assets - 389 - - - 389
Total Assets $ - $ 64,791 $ 4,142 $ 333 $ 14 $ 69,280
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 14 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 14
Agency Liabilities - 64,791 4,142 333 14 69,280
Due to Other Funds 1,466 - - - - 1,466
Other Accrued Liabilities (1,480) - - - - (1,480)
Total Liabilities $ - $ 64,791 $ 4,142 $ 333 $ 14 $ 69,280
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STATE OF MAINE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABIL ITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2007

(Expressed in Thousands)

Payroll Withholding
Assets
Cash, Short-term Investments & Equity

in Treasurer's Cash Pool

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable & Other Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Private Trusts
Assets
Cash, Short-term Investments & Equity
in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Other Assets

Investments Held on Behalf of Others

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable & Other Accrued Liabilities
Agency Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Municipal Health Insrance Program
Assets
Cash, Short-term Investments & Equity

in Treasurer's Cash Pool

Total Assets

Liabilities
Agency Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance
July 1, 2006 Additions Deductions June 30, 2007
149 $ 266,302 266,451 -
149 $ 266,302 266,451 -
149 $ 429,689 431,304 (1,466)
- 1,466 - 1,466
149 $ 431,155 431,304 -
3,465 $ 4,751 3,848 4,368
300 91 2 389
60,539 1,234,420 1,234,925 60,034
64,304 $ 1,239,262 1,238,775 64,791
- 683 683 -
64,304 $ 1,239,202 1,238,715 64,791
64,304 $ 1,239,885 1,239,398 64,791
- $ 333 - 333
- $ 333 - 333
- $ 333 - 333
- $ 333 - 333
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Other Agency
Assets
Cash, Short-term Investments & Equity

in Treasurer's Cash Pool

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable & Other Accrued Liabilities
Agency Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Treasurer's Agency

Assets
Cash, Short-term Investments & Equity
in Treasurer's Cash Pool

Total Assets

Liabilities
Agency Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Totals - All Agency Funds

Assets

Cash, Short-term Investments & Equity
in Treasurer's Cash Pool

Investments Held on Behalf of Others

Other Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable & Other Accrued Liabilities
Agency Liabilities

Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Balance

Balance

July 1, 2006 Additions Deductions June 30, 2007
4,253 8,678 8,789 4,142
4,253 8,678 8,789 4,142

15 5,969 5,984 0
4,238 6,442 6,538 4,142
4,253 12,411 12,522 4,142

72 139,905 139,963 14

72 139,905 139,963 14

72 139,901 139,959 14

72 139,901 139,959 14
7,939 419,969 419,051 8,857

60,539 1,234,420 1,234,925 60,034
300 91 2 389
68,778 1,654,480 1,653,978 69,280
164 436,341 437,971 (1,466)
68,614 1,385,878 1,385,212 69,280
- 1,466 - 1,466
68,778 1,823,685 1,823,183 69,280
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NON-MAJOR
COMPONENT UNIT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Child Development Services System maintains a
coordinated service deivery system for the
provision of Childfind activities, early intervention
services, and free, appropriate public education
services for eligible children with disabilities.

Loring Development Authority is responsible for the
acquisition, development and management of the
properties within the geographical area of the former
Loring Air Force Base.

Maine Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of
Hearing (formerly Governor Baxter School for the
Deaf) is a comprehensive educational organization
that offers educational, residential, transitional, and
outreach services to meet the needs of persons who
are deaf or hard of hearing, their families,
professionals, service providers, agencies and
communities on a local, statewide, regional and
national level.

147

Maine Educational Loan Authority was created to
grant educational loans primarily using funds
acquired through issuance of long-term bonds

payable.

Maine Maritime Academy is a college specializing
in ocean and marine programs at the undergraduate
and graduate levels. The operation of the Academy
is subject to review by the federal government.

Maine Port Authority is responsible for acquiring,
financing, constructing and operating port and
railroad facilities within the State, to improve the
global competitiveness of Maine businesses.

Maine Technology Institute was established to
encourage, promote, stimulate and support research
and development activity.

Northern New England Passenger Rail Authority
initiates, establishes and maintains regularly
scheduled passenger rail service between points
within Maine to points within and outside of Maine.




STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Maine
Educational
Center for
Child Loring the Deaf and
Development Development Hard of
Services Authority Hearing
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ -0 8% - $ -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,764 746 450
Cash with Fiscal Agent - - -
Investments - - -
Restricted Assets:
Inventories - - -
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:
Loans Receivable - - -
Other Receivables 63 114 44
Due from Other Governments - - -
Due from Primary Government 1,305 766 -
Other Current Assets 27 44 1
Total Current Assets 3,159 1,670 495
Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool - - -
Assets Held in Trust - - 2

Restricted Assets:

Restricted Deposits and Investments - - -
Investments - - 789
Receivables, Net of Current Portion:

Loans Receivable - - R

Notes Receivable - 1,114 -

Other Receivables - - -
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 829 67,990 309
Other Noncurrent Assets - - -

Total Noncurrent Assets 829 69,104 1,100

Total Assets 3,988 70,774 1,595

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 2,204 147 297
Accrued Payroll 185 - 465
Compensated Absences 305 34 74
Due to Other Governments - 12 -
Due to Primary Government 131 715 131
Bonds Payable - - -
Obligations under Capital Leases 15 - -
Accrued Interest Payable - - -
Deferred Revenue 397 75 -
Other Current Liabilities 150 122 2

Total Current Liabilities 3,387 1,105 969

Long-Term Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments - - -
Bonds Payable - - -

Obligations under Capital Leases 51 - -
Deferred Revenue - - -
Total Long-Term Liabilities 51 - -

Total Liabilities 3,438 1,105 969

Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 764 67,704 309
Restricted 49 - 608
Unrestricted (263) 1,965 (291)
Total Net Assets $ 550 $ 69,669 $ 626
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Northern

New
Maine England
Educational Maine Maine Passenger
Loan Maritime Maine Port Technology Rail
Authority Academy Authority Institute Authority Totals
$ - 8 97 % - 38 - 38 -8 97
9,077 651 1,597 12,991 6 27,282
- - - 1,081 - 1,081
- 4,752 - 200 - 4,952
- 669 - - - 669
9,674 183 - 28 - 9,885
2,909 395 13 3 1 3,542
- - - 9 2,199 2,208
- - - 95 - 2,166
185 919 - - 791 1,967
21,845 7,666 1,610 14,407 2,997 53,849
- 10 - - - 10
- - - 5,045 - 5,047
- 2,993 - - 1,364 4,357
10,944 12,513 - - - 24,246
69,677 2,564 - 62 - 72,303
- - 69 - - 1,183
863 89 - - - 952
2 19,223 17,293 30 1,082 106,758
864 4,725 - - - 5,589
82,350 42,117 17,362 5,137 2,446 220,445
104,195 49,783 18,972 19,544 5,443 274,294
159 2,305 11 660 1,506 7,289
- - - - - 650
- - - - 16 429
183 - - - - 195
- - 66 - - 1,043
- 139 - - 267 406
- - - 3 - 18
327 - - - - 327
338 136 7 12,125 - 13,078
- 185 - 5,045 - 5,504
1,007 2,765 84 17,833 1,789 28,939
1,494 1,710 - - - 3,204
97,456 2,368 - - - 99,824
- - - 14 - 65
1,017 - - - - 1,017
99,967 4,078 - 14 - 104,110
100,974 6,843 84 17,847 1,789 133,049
- 16,767 17,293 - 1,082 103,919
2,332 16,339 933 - 2,364 22,625
889 9,834 662 1,697 208 14,701
$ 3221 $ 42940 $ 18883 $ 1697 $ 3,654 $ 141,245
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Expenses

Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Program Investment Income
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Net Revenue (Expense)

General Revenues
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Non-program Specific Grants,
Contributions and Appropriations
Miscellaneous Income
Gain (Loss) on Assets Held for Sale

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning of the Year

Net Assets, End of Year

Maine
Educational
Center for
Child Loring the Deaf and
Development Development Hard of
Services Authority Hearing
$ 25621 % 3420 % 6,377
4,279 1,609 211
72 - -
20,352 42 -
- 57 -
(918) (1,712) (6,166)
- 93 137
- 1,050 6,330
121 20 -
- 80 -
121 1,243 6,467
(797) (469) 301
1,347 70,138 325
$ 550 $ 69,669 $ 626
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Northern

New
Maine England
Educational Maine Maine Passenger
Loan Maritime Maine Port Technology Rail
Authority Academy Authority Institute Authority Totals
$ 6,209 $ 24533 § 1,046 $ 8660 $ 16,736 $ 92,602
5,079 12,746 138 68 5,258 29,388
1,332 1,728 - - - 3,132
- 1,445 221 8,333 7,294 37,687
- 262 - - 2,343 2,662
202 (8,352) (687) (259) (1,841) (19,733)
- 477 68 697 144 1,616
- 8,372 - - - 15,752
- 429 - 16 - 586
- (191) - - - (111)
- 9,087 68 713 144 17,843
202 735 (619) 454 (1,697) (1,890)
3,019 42,205 19,507 1,243 5,351 143,135
$ 3221 $ 42940 $ 18,888 $ 1,697 $ 3,664 $ 141,245
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON
SCHEDULES BY AGENCY
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STATE OF MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY AGENCY

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Variance
with Final
Final Budget Actual Budget
Department of Administrative and Financial Services
Administrative Services $ 14,815 $ 12,906 $ 1,909
Employee Relations 824 814 10
Financial Services 91,319 90,489 830
Human Resources 1,278 1,265 13
Financial and Personnel Services - - -
Purchasing 477 477 -
108,713 105,951 2,762
Department of Agriculture 8,377 8,172 205
Attorney General 15,318 15,280 38
Department of Audit 1,213 1,208 5
Department of Corrections
Corrections 45,341 42,313 3,028
Maine State Prison 37,764 37,560 204
Maine Correctional Center 21,800 21,626 174
Downeast Correctional Facility 5,484 5,466 18
Charleston Correctional Facility 16,595 16,456 139
Long Creek Youth Development Center 14,917 14,821 96
141,901 138,242 3,659
Department of Conservation 23,434 22,563 871
Department of Economic and Community Development 12,197 11,883 314
Department of Environmental Protection 6,729 6,562 167
Department of Human Services
Human Services 723,805 695,333 28,472
Behavioral and Developmental Services 280,406 274,896 5,510
Riverview Psychiatric Center 12,486 11,766 720
Dorothea Dix Psychiatric Center 12,566 10,965 1,601
Office of Substance Abuse 12,553 12,103 450
Freeport Towne Square 2 - 2
Elizabeth Levinson Center 3,080 3,061 19
1,044,898 1,008,124 36,774
Department of Labor
Labor 16,758 14,482 2,276
Labor Relations Board 471 467 4
17,229 14,949 2,280
Department of Transportation
Transportation - - -
Air Transportation - - -
Rail/Van Pool - - -
Defense, Veterans and Emergency Management 8,313 7,265 1,048
Department of Education
Education 1,159,917 1,153,285 6,632
Education - Unorganized Territory 10,824 10,580 244
1,170,741 1,163,865 6,876
General Government
Office of the Governor 3,021 3,014 7
State Planning 2,507 2,258 249
Ombudsman Program 127 127 -
5,655 5,399 256

154



Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife
Judicial Department

Legislative Department
Legislative
Law and Legislative Reference Library
Statehouse Preservation and Maintenance
Program Evaluation and Government Accountability

Department of Marine Resources
Department of Public Safety

Secretary of State
Secretary of State
Archives Services

Treasurer of State
Direct Charges

Other Agencies
Museum
Maine State Cultural Affairs Council
Maine Historic Preservation Commission
Library
Maine Humanities Council
Finance Authority of Maine
Centers for Innovation
Com. On Governmental Ethics and Election Practices
Maine Indian Tribal State Council
Board of Property Tax Review
Maine Municipal Bond Bank
Maine State Retirement System
Human Rights Commission
Saco River Corridor Commission
Atlantic Salmon Commission
NE International Water Pollution Control Commission
Downeast Institute Appl Marine
Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission
St. Croix International Waterway
Maine Public Broadcasting Corporation
Maine State Housing Authority
Maine Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing
Maine Potato Board
Board of Education
Maine Historical Society
Foundation for Blood Research
Pine Tree Legal
Maine Community College System
Maine Maritime Academy
University of Maine
Arts and Humanities Administration
Disability Rights Center
Maine Hospice Counsel

Grand Total
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Variance

with Final
Final Budget Actual Budget

24,840 $ 23,540 $ 1,300

58,374 57,922 452

24,771 22,683 2,088

1,541 1,385 156

1,914 1,899 15

960 715 245

29,186 26,682 2,504

9,717 9,541 176

23,675 23,085 590

2,538 2,513 25

866 862 4

3,404 3,375 29

89,138 89,089 49

22,487 20,057 2,430

1,624 1,586 38

527 497 30

305 305 -

3,459 3,459 -

67 67 -

13,244 13,244 -

149 149 -

145 139 6

59 59 -

115 98 17

83 83 -

1,389 1,389 -

572 556 16

56 56 -

624 624 -

10 10 -

15 15 -

34 34 -

26 26 -

2,251 2,251 -

438 438 -

6,057 6,057 -

5 5 -

140 130 10

55 55 -

66 66 -

304 304 -

47,721 47,721 -

7,738 7,738 -

193,524 193,524 -

787 779 8
136 136

66 66 -

281,791 281,666 125

3,107,330 $ 3,044,420 $ 62,910
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STATE OF MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HIGHWAY FUND EXPENDITURES BY AGENCY

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Variance
with Final
Final Budget Actual Budget
Department of Administrative and Financial Services
Administrative Services $ 2,566 $ 2,476 $ 90
Financial Services 372 364 8
2,938 2,840 98
Department of Environmental Protection 40 40 -
Legislative Department
Program Evaluation and Government Accountability 99 3 96
Department of Transportation
Transportation 322,159 279,280 42,879
Rail/Van Pool 671 671 -
322,830 279,951 42,879
Department of Public Safety 37,785 36,806 979
Secretary of State
Motor Vehicles 34,554 32,563 1,991
Direct Charges - (7,207) 7,207
Grand Total $ 398,246 $ 344,996 $ 53,250
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STATE OF MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FEDERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY AGENCY

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Variance
with Final
Final Budget Actual Budget
Department of Administrative and Financial Services
Administrative Services $ 123 % 74 $ 49
Bureau of Information Services 405 - 405
Financial Services 5 - 5
Financial and Personnel Services 553 369 184
State Employee Health Commission 129 - 129
1,215 443 772
Department of Agriculture 6,150 3,645 2,505
Attorney General 5,588 4,306 1,282
Department of Corrections
Corrections 7,428 3,008 4,420
Maine State Prison 20 - 20
Maine Correctional Center 105 51 54
Downeast Correctional Facility 52 1 51
Charleston Correctional Facility 260 120 140
Long Creek Youth Development Center 496 157 339
8,361 3,337 5,024
Department of Conservation 14,041 10,324 3,717
Department of Economic and Community Development 42,094 23,249 18,845
Department of Environmental Protection 16,494 10,391 6,103
Department of Human Services
Human Services 1,923,559 1,585,198 338,361
Behavioral and Developmental Services 17,289 10,328 6,961
Dorothea Dix Psychiatric Center 40 - 40
Office of Substance Abuse 20,062 12,334 7,728
1,960,950 1,607,860 353,090
Department of Labor 109,288 65,338 43,950
Department of Transportation
Transportation 196,172 168,029 28,143
Air Transportation 2,806 1,319 1,487
Ferry Service/Ports and Marine 157 82 75
Rail/Van Pool 819 23 796
199,954 169,453 30,501
Defense, Veterans and Emergency Management 94,021 71,030 22,991
Department of Education
Education 214,013 184,597 29,416
Education - Unorganized Territory 538 395 143
214,551 184,992 29,559
General Government
Office of the Governor 1,609 1,012 597
State Planning 6,726 4,223 2,503
Ombusdsman Program 57 57 -
8,392 5,292 3,100
Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife 9,762 6,069 3,693
Judicial Department 3,742 3,009 733
Department of Marine Resources 7,571 5,251 2,320
Department of Professional and Financial Regulation
Professional and Financial Regulation 57 12 45
Department of Public Safety 10,494 7,280 3,214
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Public Utilities Commission

Secretary of State
Secretary of State
Motor Vehicles
Archives Services

Treasurer of State

Other Agencies
Arts and Humanities Administration
Atlantic Salmon Commission
Human Rights Commission
Library
Maine Historic Preservation Commission
Museum
University of Maine

Grand Total

159

Variance

with Final

Final Budget Actual Budget
1624 $ 529 $ 1,095
10,346 3,483 6,863
485 4 481
71 58 13
10,902 3,545 7,357
57 2 55
842 730 112
1,646 1,447 199
458 343 115
1,512 1,396 116
727 572 155
333 96 237
608 - 608
6,126 4,584 1,542
2,731,434 $ 2,189,941 $ 541,493




STATE OF MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND EXPENDITURES BY AGENCY

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
(Expressed in Thousands)

Variance
with Final
Final Budget Actual Budget

Department of Administrative and Financial Services
Administrative Services $ 9,019 $ 1572 $ 7,447
Financial Services 16,803 13,878 2,925
Human Resources 537 318 219
Financial and Personnel Services 106 9 97
State Employee Health Commission 1,200 115 1,085
27,665 15,892 11,773
Department of Agriculture 38,846 28,794 10,052
Attorney General 9,364 7,432 1,932
Department of Audit 1,630 1,397 233

Department of Corrections

Corrections 2,158 734 1,424
Maine State Prison 327 160 167
Maine Correctional Center 877 460 417
Downeast Correctional Facility 176 60 116
Charleston Correctional Facility 470 221 249
Long Creek Youth Development Center 39 2 37
4,047 1,637 2,410
Department of Conservation 23,949 15,469 8,480
Department of Economic and Community Development 11,555 9,150 2,405

Department of Environmental Protection
Environmental Protection 51,736 34,900 16,836
A.C.E. Service Center

51,736 34,900 16,836

Department of Human Services
Human Services 402,644 296,288 106,356
Behavioral and Developmental Services 31,198 25,143 6,055
Riverview Psychiatric Center 21,720 20,265 1,455
Dorothea Dix Psychiatric Center 17,977 15,457 2,520
Office of Substance Abuse 7,297 6,346 951
Freeport Towne Square 116 104 12
480,952 363,603 117,349
Department of Labor
Labor 6,647 3,910 2,737
Labor Relations Board 100 63 37
6,747 3,973 2,774
Department of Transportation
Transportation 15,956 12,358 3,598
Air Transportation 218 20 198
Rail/Van Pool 780 740 40
16,954 13,118 3,836
Defense, Veterans and Emergency Management 2,297 1,408 889
Department of Education
Education 6,712 4,363 2,349
Education - Unorganized Territory 8 - 8
6,720 4,363 2,357
General Government
Office of the Governor 208 124 84
State Planning 3,033 1,449 1,584
Public Advocate 2,065 1,686 379
5,306 3,259 2,047
Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife 7,595 3,737 3,858
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Judicial Department

Legislative Department
Legislative

Department of Marine Resources

Department of Professional and Financial Regulation
Professional and Financial Regulation
Board of Dental Examiners
Board of Nursing
Board of Optometry
Board of Osteopathic Examination and Registration
Board of Professional Engineers
Board of Registration in Medicine

Department of Public Safety
Public Utilities Commission

Secretary of State
Secretary of State
Motor Vehicles
Archives Services

Treasurer of State

Other Agencies
Arts and Humanities Administration
Atlantic Salmon Commission
Baxter Compensation Authority
Baxter State Park Authority
Board of Water System Operators
Com. On Governmental Ethics and Election Practices
Dirigo Health
Finance Authority of Maine
Harness Racing Promotion Board
Human Rights Commission
Library
Lobster Promotion Council
Maine Community College System
Maine Consumer Choice Health Plan
Maine Health Data Organization
Maine Historic Preservation Commission
Maine Potato Board
Maine State Cultural Affairs Council
Maine State Housing Authority
Mine Children's Trust Incorporated
Museum
Saco River Corridor Commission
University of Maine
Worker's Compensation Board
Wild Blueberry Commission of Maine

Grand Total

161

Variance

with Final

Final Budget Actual Budget
4,118 $ 3,263 $ 855
43 17 26
6,683 4,361 2,322
25,693 19,899 5,794
366 346 20
821 658 163
63 52 11
201 141 60
257 217 40
1,422 1,277 145
28,823 22,590 6,233
16,110 13,214 2,896
36,340 26,570 9,770
739 685 54
1,576 1,280 296
83 44 39
2,398 2,009 389
123,407 121,237 2,170
105 67 38
253 123 130
75 14 61
3,190 2,995 195
96 32 64
7,787 2,795 4,992
495 495 -
189 129 60
6 1 5
547 383 164
480 362 118
1,529 1,359 170
1 - 1
1,683 1,266 417
660 368 292
1,418 683 735
67 13 54
9,011 9,011 -
105 39 66
281 165 116
38 29 9
2,042 2,007 35
9,573 8,970 603
1,595 1,240 355
41,226 32,546 8,680
954,511 $ 733,939 $ 220,573
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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STATISTICAL SECTION NARRATIVE AND TABLE OF CONTENTS

This part of the State of Maine’s comprehensiveuahfinancial report presents detailed informaisna context
for understanding what the information in the fioiah statements, note disclosures, and requiredlsomentary
information says about the State’s overall finahleealth.

CONTENTS

FINANCIAL TRENDS

These schedules contain trend information to hedpreader understand how the State’s financiabpeence
and fiscal health have changed over time. Thedules presented from an entity wide perspectieionlude
FY2002 and forward, coinciding with the implemergat of GASB Statement No. 34. Fund perspective
schedules are presented for the last six yearspéxhere noted. Schedules included are:

ENTITY WIDE PERSPECTIVE:

Schedule 1 — Net Assets by Activities, Last Sixcisrears 165

Schedule 2 — Changes in Net Assets by Activitiast Six Fiscal Years 166

Schedule 3 — Fund Balances, Governmental Funds$ dia Fiscal Years ... 168
Schedule 4 — Revenues, Expenditures, and Othanéiimy Sources (Uses),

Governmental Funds, Last Six Fiscal Years ... 169
Schedule 5 — Revenues, Expenditures, and Othanéiimy Sources (Uses),

General Fund, Last Six Fiscal Years 170

REVENUE CAPACITY
These schedules contain information to help thdareassess the State’s most significant revenueeasiu
individual income tax, and sales and use tax. Sdesdncluded are:

Schedule 6 — Individual Income Tax and Tax Rate$axable Income, Last Six Calendar Years 171
Schedule 7 — Individual Income Tax Filers and Tability by Maine Adjusted Gross Income,

Tax Years 2006, 2004, and2000 172
Schedule 8 — Sales and Use Tax Rates and Revey&ssirce, Last Six Calendar Years 173

DeBT CAPACITY
These schedules present information to help thderegssess the affordability of the State’s curevrdls of
outstanding debt and the State’s ability to issdditeonal debt in the future. Schedules includesl a

Schedule 9 — Calculation of Legal Debt Margin,tlBen Fiscal Years 174
Schedule 10 — Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Tipst Six Fiscal Years. 175
Schedule 11 — Pledged Future Revenue CoverageShaBiscal Years. 176

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC | NFORMATION
These schedules offer demographic and economicédtuads to help the reader understand the environimen
which the state operates. Schedules included are:

Schedule 12 — Demographic Information, Last Secll Years 177
Schedule 13 — Principal Employers, Last Six FiN@ArS 178
Schedule 14 — Schedule of State Government FoleTEquivalent

Employees by Policsed, Last Six Fiscal Years 179
Schedule 15 — Operating Indicators and Capitarétion, Last Two Fiscal Years 180
Schedule 16 — Capital Assets by Function, Last Figoal Years 181
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SCHEDULE 1
STATE OF MAINE
NET ASSETS BY ACTIVITIES

Last Six Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 3519371 $ 3,347,672 $ 3,061,098 $ 2,878596 $ 2,628,197 $ 2,424,949

Restricted 198,786 172,449 290,385 214,026 184,809 242,976
Unrestricted 50,153 (67,588) (171,074) (37,519) (123,477) 5,887
Total Governmental Activities Net Assets $ 3,768,310 $ 3452533 $_ 3,180,409 $ 3,055103 $ 2,689,529 $ 2,673,812

Business-Type Activities
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 90,361 $ 79,030 $ 49,961 $ 51,434 $ 72,375 $ 53,679

Restricted 489,677 476,832 459,538 450,475 459,127 464,862
Unrestricted (74,054) (74,098) (71,445) (71,419) 2,179 6,798
Total Business-Type Activities Net Assets $ 505984 $ 481,764 $ 438,054 $ 430,490 $ 533,681 $ 525339

Total Primary Government
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 3,609,732 $ 3,426,702 $ 3,111,059 $ 2,930,030 $ 2,700,572 $ 2,478,628

Restricted 688,463 649,281 749,923 664,501 643,936 707,838
Unrestricted (23,901) (141,686) (242,519) (108,938) (121,298) 12,685
Total Primary Government Activities Net Assets $ 4274294 $ 3,934,297 $ 3,618,463 $ 3,485593 $ 3,223,210 $ 3,199,151

SOURCE: State of Maine Comprehensive Annual Financial Reporting System. Accrual basis of accounting.

165



STATE OF MAINE
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Last Six Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

SCHEDULE 2

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
Governmental Support & Operations $ 460,315 $ 530,008 $ 480,837 $ 469,682 $ 403,505 $ 432,206
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 12,994 12,191 13,273 12,498 13,012 -
Business Licensing & Regulation 60,506 53,547 49,553 46,249 34,447 -
Economic Development & Workforce Training 161,427 160,093 171,092 191,868 206,586 131,285
Education 1,622,653 1,494,438 1,412,524 1,357,080 1,340,614 1,323,259
Health & Human Services 2,989,001 3,167,521 3,051,822 2,775,008 2,522,643 2,367,786
Labor - - - - - 92,544
Justice & Protection 358,718 340,281 322,072 297,619 301,575 108,742
Natural Resources Development & Protection 179,670 166,358 171,307 166,167 163,606 132,858
Transportation, Safety & Development 267,994 322,438 246,837 203,968 240,286 240,869
Interest Expense 36,246 36,873 32,530 31,324 32,120 24,576
Total Governmental Activities 6,149,524 6,283,748 5,951,847 5,551,463 5,258,394 4,854,125
Business-Type Activities:
Employment Security 120,215 103,867 113,642 118,965 124,452 123,606
Alcoholic Beverages - - 7 61,958 59,412 56,896
Lottery 180,722 179,628 161,691 146,214 125,641 120,520
Transportation 4,218 - - - - -
Airport - 22 892 819 - -
Marine Ports 2,097 1,378 1,829 1,415 - -
Ferry Services 9,405 6,707 7,876 7,296 - -
Military Equipment Maintenance 35,140 65,013 50,908 25,923 - -
Dirigo Health 65,178 47,122 13,587 - - -
Other 6,875 3,860 2,107 2,107 11,918 13,990
Total Business-Type Activities 423,850 407,597 352,539 364,697 321,423 315,012
Total Primary Government Expenses 6,573,374 6,691,345 6,304,386 5,916,160 5,579,817 5,169,137
Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
Governmental Support & Operations 76,507 71,507 67,067 148,707 46,501 65,882
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 818 920 816 1,308 712 -
Business Licensing & Regulation 52,033 65,588 51,374 54,920 35,159 -
Economic Development & Workforce Training 3,202 2,966 3,355 2,242 3,552 54,042
Education 4,865 8,605 1,362 924 465 2,062
Health & Human Services 9,656 15,097 13,649 14,722 57,627 10,606
Justice & Protection 80,435 75,035 63,274 63,475 52,009 17,625
Natural Resources Development & Protection 81,305 76,921 72,450 78,870 75,312 54,921
Transportation, Safety & Development 97,761 95,394 97,172 9,919 104,780 96,457
Operating Grants and Contributions 2,361,828 2,536,857 2,324,723 2,265,857 1,952,069 1,666,512
Capital Grants and Contributions 6,434 24,268 174,140 200,754 164,927 152,029
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 2,774,844 2,973,158 2,869,382 2,841,698 2,493,113 2,120,136
Business-Type Activities:
Employment Security 112,482 102,611 100,136 86,143 119,327 146,297
Alcoholic Beverages 12,525 12,525 12,582 89,087 85,985 81,620
Lottery 231,628 230,962 211,965 188,671 166,903 159,133
Transportation 2,169 - - - - -
Airport - 27 125 147 - -
Marine Ports 127 87 427 14 - -
Ferry Services 3,837 3,464 3,642 3,168 - -
Military Equipment Maintenance 30,656 70,427 46,476 27,336 - -
Dirigo Health 63,339 25,886 5,216 - - -
Other 6,755 4,128 2,178 1,878 5,340 4,456
Operating Grants and Contributions 21,386 20,663 23,915 25,927 - 34,321
Capital Grants and Contributions 4,143 - 194 1,771 9,000 2,048
Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 489,047 470,780 406,856 424,142 386,555 427,875
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities (3,374,680) (3,310,590) (3,082,465) (2,709,765) (2,765,281) (2,733,989)
Business-Type Activities 65,197 63,183 54,317 59,445 65,132 112,863
Total Primary Governmental Net (Expense)/Revenue (3,309,483) (3,247,407) (3,028,148) (2,650,320) (2,700,149) (2,621,126)
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2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets:
Governmental Activities:
Taxes:
Corporate $ 292,255 $ 305,872 $ 244,842 $ 216,366 $ 182,554 $ 158,493
Individual Income 1,478,542 1,403,790 1,296,606 1,149,109 1,095,143 1,043,312
Fuel 181,459 177,904 176,020 166,174 161,534 149,193
Property 48,339 53,272 50,962 28,412 38,179 35,546
Sales & Use 1,191,982 1,156,201 1,049,890 1,086,049 1,012,552 976,618
Other 255,550 263,506 223,326 117,168 90,769 63,111
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 39,599 28,881 20,650 17,049 8,521 8,944
Miscellaneous Income 123,036 104,272 92,851 124,043 119,825 81,981
Loss on Assets Held for Sale (445) (217) (112) (3,035) - -
Tobacco Settlement 48,978 41,573 50,006 49,018 43,587 112,125
Special ltems - (31,212) 30,881 75,000 - -
Transfers - Internal Activities 40,979 51,708 50,211 68,132 56,790 69,636
Total Governmental Activities 3,700,274 3,555,550 3,286,133 3,093,485 2,809,454 2,698,959
Business-Type Activities:
Miscellaneous Income 2 448 - - - -
Loss on Assets Held for Sale - - - - - 1,093
Special Items - 31,787 (50,000) (85,703) - -
Transfers - Internal Activities (40,979) (51,708) (50,211) (68,132) (56,790) (69,636)
Total Business-Type Activities (40,977) (19,473) (100,211) (153,835) (56,790) (68,543)
Total Primary Government 3,659,297 3,536,077 3,185,922 2,939,650 2,752,664 2,630,416
Change in Net Assets
Governmental Activities 325,594 244,960 203,668 383,720 44,173 (35,030)
Business-Type Activities 24,220 43,710 (45,894) (94,390) 8,342 44,320
Total Change in Net Assets - Primary Government $ 349,814 $ 288,670 $ 157,774 $ 289,330 $ 52,515 $ 9,290

SOURCE: State of Maine Comprehensive Annual Financial Reporting System. Accrual basis of accounting.
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STATE OF MAINE

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Six Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

SCHEDULE 3

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

General Fund

Reserved $ 127,136 $ 177,796 $ 192,684 $ 122440 $ 60,946 $ 156,495

Unreserved (283,485) (355,427) (146,328) (124,706) (81,361) (136,169)
Total General Fund $ (156,349) $ (177,631) $ 46,356 $  (2,266) $ (20,415) $ 20,326
All Other Governmental Funds

Reserved $ 424965 $ 460,257 $ 521,984 $ 487,506 $ 449,667 $ 553,836

Unreserved 4,270 (67,148) (30,605) (38,886) (80,578) (64,812)
Total All Other Governmental Funds $ 429235 $ 393,109 $ 491,379 $ 448,620 $ 369,089 $ 489,024
Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 272886 $ 215478 $ 537,735 $ 446,354 $ 348,674 $ 509,350

SOURCE: State of Maine Comprehensive Annual Financial Reporting System. Modified accrual basis of accounting.
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STATE OF MAINE
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Six Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

SCHEDULE 4

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenues:
Taxes $ 3,430,669 $ 3,344,803 3,035,988 2,764,684 $ 2585456 $ 2,417,458
Assessments and Other Revenue 289,301 290,455 256,690 260,225 212,339 212,777
Federal Grants and Reimbursements 2,386,317 2,625,354 2,500,523 2,461,204 2,169,919 1,837,347
Service Charges 123,249 135,815 119,996 131,871 128,148 141,584
Investment Income 26,740 24,140 16,740 15,247 6,396 6,422
Miscellaneous Revenue 161,676 115,800 130,609 148,537 165,242 91,321
Total Revenues 6,417,952 6,536,367 6,060,546 5,781,768 5,267,500 4,706,909
Expenditures
Current:
Governmental Support & Operations 444,366 529,462 461,645 474,173 383,432 481,855
Economic Development & Workforce Training 162,003 162,326 173,919 194,379 207,732 133,320
Education 1,637,848 1,510,662 1,425,244 1,367,414 1,327,936 1,325,259
Health and Human Services 3,066,272 3,364,164 3,097,852 2,830,069 2,597,851 2,443,949
Labor - - - - - 92,191
Business Licensing & Regulation 61,540 56,064 50,883 47,702 35,282 -
Natural Resources Development & Protection 204,204 191,612 184,171 200,428 175,348 136,601
Justice and Protection 372,674 362,394 346,849 303,659 323,326 109,022
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 13,215 12,655 13,471 12,715 13,074 -
Transportation Safety & Development 462,023 574,314 469,978 458,679 456,482 393,985
Debt Service:
Principal Payments 83,680 75,090 66,790 72,325 85,165 87,605
Interest Payments 20,334 18,998 15,972 15,480 16,957 20,779
Total Expenditures 6,528,159 6,857,741 6,306,774 5,977,023 5,622,585 5,224,566
Revenue over (under) Expenditures (110,207) (321,374) (246,228) (195,255) (355,085) (517,657)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Other Funds 352,896 282,739 342,965 434,934 376,005 291,483
Transfer to Other Funds (279,691) (235,505) (288,865) (349,799) (323,827) (213,817)
Other 35,543 10,727 6,061 11,246 10,546 -
Proceeds from Pledged Future Revenues - 22,111 49,423 - - -
Bonds Issued 60,975 52,390 140,025 133,815 103,580 32,610
Net Other Finance Sources (Uses) 169,723 132,462 249,609 230,196 166,304 110,276
Special ltems:
Return of Excess Equity from Retiree Health Insurance Fund - - 105,711 - - -
Refund to Federal Government Resulting from Excess Equity Distribution - - (19,119) - - -
Purchase of Landfill - - - (26,000) - -
Sale of Landfill Capacity - - - 26,000 - -
Proceeds from Sale of Liquor Operating Rights - - 50,000 75,000 - -
Net Special Items - - 136,592 75,000 - -
Revenues and Other Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Uses $ 59,516 $ (188,912) 139,973 109,941 $ (188,781) $ (407,381)
Debt Service as a Percentage of NonCapital Expenditures 1.64% 1.42% 1.37% 1.55% 1.91% 2.18%

SOURCE: State of Maine Comprehensive Annual Financial Reporting System. Modified accrual basis of accounting.
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SCHEDULE 5
STATE OF MAINE
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
GENERAL FUND

Last Six Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenues:
Taxes $ 3003382 $ 2926835 $ 2,653,628 $ 2,453,800 $ 2,307,439 $ 2,173,345
Assessments and Other Revenue 109,336 105,371 88,514 81,852 62,010 61,685
Federal Grants and Reimbursements 16,762 17,334 28,894 25,230 25,580 21,578
Service Charges 36,717 41,395 38,351 44,049 35,356 41,111
Investment Income 9,653 12,299 6,877 5,837 2,346 3,830
Miscellaneous Revenue 25,099 14,993 12,437 45,008 5,660 457
Total Revenues 3,200,949 3,118,227 2,828,701 2,655,776 2,438,391 2,302,006
Expenditures
Current:
Governmental Support & Operations 262,721 327,529 270,370 263,839 172,344 277,640
Economic Development & Workforce Training 40,280 45,324 42,278 47,095 54,292 61,348
Education 1,438,605 1,283,214 1,201,008 1,144,907 1,143,982 1,157,639
Health and Human Services 972,875 1,097,456 957,371 777,074 813,105 927,868
Labor - - - - - 14,729
Business Licensing & Regulation - - 3 - 37 -
Natural Resources Development & Protection 70,373 70,878 67,310 66,692 67,315 51,439
Justice and Protection 245,592 227,588 220,141 203,360 202,653 24,941
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 8,958 8,504 8,521 8,352 9,017 -
Transportation Safety & Development - 178 831 3,338 1,603 9,308
Debt Service:
Principal Payments 69,350 57,985 53,510 56,310 63,950 64,305
Interest Payments 17,369 15,263 12,541 12,458 12,953 15,479
Total Expenditures 3,126,123 3,133,919 2,833,884 2,583,425 2,541,251 2,604,696
Revenue over (under) Expenditures 74,826 (15,692) (5,183) 72,351 (102,860) (302,690)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Other Funds 115,292 90,912 101,813 127,525 197,119 128,126
Transfer to Other Funds (190,074) (164,923) (168,173) (238,637) (135,000) (124,836)
Other 23,346 666 - - - -
Bonds Issued - - 1,681 2,335 - -
Net Other Finance Sources (Uses) (51,436) (73,345) (64,679) (108,777) 62,119 3,290
Special Items:
Return of Excess Equity from Retiree Health Insurance Fund - - 68,484 - - -
Purchase of Landfill - - - (26,000) - -
Sale of Landfill Capacity - - - 26,000 - -
Proceeds from Sale of Liquor Operating Rights - - 50,000 75,000 - -
Net Special Items - - 118,484 75,000 - -
Revenues and Other Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Uses $ 23,390 $ (89,037) $ 48,622 $ 38,574 $ (40,741) $__ (299,400)
Debt Service as a Percentage of NonCapital Expenditures 3.0% 2.6% 2.6% 3.0% 3.4% 3.4%

SOURCE: State of Maine Comprehensive Annual Financial Reporting System. Modified accrual basis of accounting.
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SCHEDULE 6
STATE OF MAINE
INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX
AND TAX RATES ON TAXABLE INCOME

Last Six Calendar Years
(Expressed in Millions)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Individual Income Tax Liability — $ 1,386,010 $ 1,286,375 $ 1,200,138 $ 1,079,587 $ 1,020,675 $ 1,016,073
Personal Income $ 42,199,321 $ 41,300,331 $ 39,510,398 $ 37,281,183 $ 35,998,489 $ 35,107,104
Average Effective Tax Rate 3.3% 3.1% 3.0% 2.9% 2.8% 2.9%
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Income Bracket $0 - $4,549 $0 - $4,449 $0 - $4,349 $0 - $4,249 $0 - $4,199 $0 - $4,149
Tax Rate 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Income Bracket
Tax Rate

$4,550 - $9,099
4.5%

$4,450 - $8,849
4.5%

$4,350 - $8,649
4.5%

$4,250 - $8,449
4.5%

$4,200 - $8,349
4.5%

$4,150 - $8,249
4.5%

Income Bracket
Tax Rate

$9,100 - $18,249
7.0%

$8,850 - $17,699
7.0%

$8,650 - $17,349
7.0%

$8,450 - $16,949
7.0%

$8,350 - $16,699
7.0%

$8,250 - $16,499
7.0%

Income Bracket
Tax Rate

$18,250+
8.5%

$17,700+
8.5%

$17,350+
8.5%

$16,950+
8.5%

$16,700+
8.5%

$16,500+
8.5%

Individual income tax brackets are indexed for inflation beginning in tax year 2003.

1 Amounts shown are for single and married filing separate returns.
For joint filers, approx. double the income amounts, for head of household filers multiply the brackets by approx 1.5.

SOURCE: Maine Revenue Services
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SCHEDULE 7
STATE OF MAINE
INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX FILERS AND TAX
LIABILITY BY MAINE ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME

(Tax Liability Expressed in Millions)

2006 Tax Year

Number of Percentage Tax Percentage

Income Level Filers of Total Liability of Total
$0 and below 7,297 12% $ 0.06 0.0%
$1-$ 10,000 105,837 16.9% 0.91 0.1%
$10,001 - $ 20,000 105,633 16.9% 14.22 1.2%
$20,001 - $ 30,000 95,430 15.3% 48.24 3.9%
$30,001 - $ 50,000 123,868 19.8% 154.05 12.5%
$50,001 - $ 75,000 88,477 14.1% 218.97 17.8%
$75,001 - $100,000 45,206 7.2% 184.07 15.0%
$100,001 - $200,000 39,840 6.4% 273.92 22.3%
$200,001 and higher 13,758 2.2% 334.19 27.2%
Total 625,346 100.0% $ 1,228.61 100.0%

2004 Tax Year

Number of Percentage Tax Percentage

Income Level Filers of Total Liability of Total
$0 and below 8,205 13% $ 0.10 0.0%
$1-$ 10,000 114,036 17.9% 1.08 0.1%
$10,001 - $ 20,000 112,199 17.6% 16.21 1.3%
$20,001 - $ 30,000 98,084 15.4% 51.61 4.3%
$30,001 - $ 50,000 126,055 19.8% 158.86 13.2%
$50,001 - $ 75,000 87,593 13.7% 220.24 18.3%
$75,001 - $100,000 41,821 6.6% 172.85 14.4%
$100,001 - $200,000 34,463 5.4% 237.74 19.8%
$200,001 and higher 14,737 2.3% 344.48 28.6%
Total 637,193 100.0% $ 1,203.16 100.0%

2000 Tax Year

Number of Percentage Tax Percentage

Income Level Filers of Total Liability of Total
$0 and below 5,186 0.8% $ 0.01 0.0%
$1-$ 10,000 122,157 19.5% 1.38 0.1%
$10,001 - $ 20,000 121,639 19.4% 19.22 1.8%
$20,001 - $ 30,000 100,323 16.0% 55.57 5.1%
$30,001 - $ 50,000 124,257 19.8% 154.93 14.2%
$50,001 - $ 75,000 81,593 13.0% 202.87 18.6%
$75,001 - $100,000 33,419 5.3% 135.26 12.4%
$100,001 - $200,000 26,288 4.2% 180.25 16.5%
$200,001 and higher 11,884 1.9% 340.49 31.2%
Total 626,746 100.0% $ 1,089.97 100.0%

SOURCE: Maine Revenue Services
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STATE OF MAINE
SALES AND USE TAX RATES AND REVENUES BY SOURCE

Last Six Calendar Years

SCHEDULE 8

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Business Operating $ 2,099,287 $ 1,974,352 $ 1,875,710 $ 1,714,115 $ 1,611,253 $ 1,731,182
Building Supply 2,526,623 2,464,352 2,344,687 2,013,655 1,846,797 1,738,224
Food Store 1,404,216 1,343,160 1,278,427 1,253,829 1,215,792 1,182,825
General Merchandise 3,097,387 2,986,708 3,001,887 2,897,803 2,795,288 2,668,766
Other Retail 1,936,040 1,824,692 1,708,180 1,587,861 1,497,463 1,458,366
Auto/Transportation 3,613,741 3,695,730 3,744,219 3,698,571 3,519,874 3,446,679
Restaurant/Lodging 2,451,376 2,319,463 2,238,980 2,146,647 2,093,837 2,010,496
Total $ 17,128,670 $ 16,608,457 $ 16,192,090 $ 15312481 $ 14,580,304 $ 14,236,538
Sales and Use Tax Rates:
1/1/01 repeal
snack tax;
General Sales & Use 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 7/1/00 - 5%
Lodging & Prepared Food 7% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7%
Short-term Auto Rental 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%

SOURCE: Maine Revenue Services
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SCHEDULE 9

STATE OF MAINE
CALCULATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
FOR THE TEN YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Pursuant to Article IX, Section 14 of the Maine Constitution, the Legislature shall not create any debt
or debts on behaf of the State, which shall exceed $2,000,000 in the aggregate, except to suppress
insurrection, to repel invasion, or for purposes of war, and except for temporary loans to be paid out of
money raised by taxation during the fiscal year in which they are made. Whenever 2/3 of both Houses
shall deem it necessary, by proper enactment ratified by a majority of the electors voting thereon at a
general or specia election, the Legislature may authorize the issuance of bonds on behalf of the State
as approved by such action. Temporary loans to be paid out of moneys raised by taxation during any
fiscal year shall not exceed in the aggregate during the fiscal year in question an amount greater than
10% of all the moneys appropriated, authorized and alocated by the Legislature from undedicated
revenues to the Genera Fund and dedicated revenues to the Highway Fund for that fiscal year,
exclusive of proceeds or expenditures from the sale of bonds, or greater than 1% of the total valuation
of the State of Maine, whichever isthe lesser.

There were no temporary loans outstanding at June 30, for the years presented below, which were
subject to the Constitutional limitations.*

All other genera long-term bonds outstanding at June 30, for the years presented below, were issued
pursuant to properly ratified legislation.

Calculations of temporary loans made during the year, yet paid back prior to year end are:

(Dollar Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Temporary 10% of Total 1%
Loans Total % of Total Governmental of Total

Outstanding | Governmental | Governmental Funds % of Valuation

During the Funds Funds Revenue Limit Total Total Limit
Y ear Y ear* Revenue Revenue Amount Valuation Valuation |  Amount
2007 $55,840 $6,906,395 0.81% $690,640 | $148,946,200 .04% | $1,489,462
2006 $169,852 $6,366,819 2.67% $636,682 | $133,628,600 13% | $1,336,286
2005 $332,850 $6,114,226 5.44% $611,423 | $118,038,020 .28% | $1,180,380
2004 $405,275 $5,902,866 6.87% $590,287 | $104,219,950 .39% | $1,042,200
2003 $347,080 $5,114,543 6.79% $511,454 | $94,034,050 37% $940,341
2002 $27,610 $4,808,789 57% $480,879 | $84,874,550 .03% $848,746
2001 $5,000 $4,608,742 1% $460,874 | $78,389,400 .01% $783,894
2000 $9,694 $4,604,954 21% $460,495 |  $74,260,000 .02% $742,600
1999 $33,695 $4,257,340 .719% $425,734 | $71,779,350 .05% $717,794
1998 $33,500 $4,168,141 .80% $416,814 | $69,691,900 .05% $696,919
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STATE OF MAINE
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Last Six Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands, Except Per Capita)

SCHEDULE 10

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Governmental Activities Debt

General Obligation Bonds $ 448,760 $ 467,550 $ 487,095 $ 416,360 $ 358,410 $ 346,495

MGFA Revenue Bonds 182,605 186,215 189,570 197,950 196,383 191,646

COPS and Other Financing Arrangements 79,886 36,581 36,865 45,346 48,658 22,626

Obligations Under Capital Leases 41,751 40,091 39,905 40,137 34,916 34,105

Pledged Future Revenues® 42,353 46,268 49,423 - - -

Total Governmental Activities Debt 795,355 776,705 802,858 699,793 638,367 594,872

Business-Type Activities Debt - - - - - -
Total Primary Government Debt $ 795,355 $ 776,705 $ 802,858 $ 699,793 $ 638,367 $ 594,872
Debt Ratios
Ratio of Total Debt to Personal Income? 1.8% 1.8% 1.9% 1.8% 1.7% 1.7%
Per Capita® $ 592 $ 582 $ 606 $ 532 $ 489 $ 459
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt
Gross Bonded Debt $ 631,365 $ 653,765 $ 676,665 $ 614,310 $ 554,793 $ 538,141

Less: Debt Service Funds 5,824 5,824 11,657 12,002 12,343 12,681
Net Bonded Debt $ 625,541 $ 647,941 $ 665,008 $ 602,308 $ 542,450 $ $ 525,460
Ratio of Net Bonded Debt to Estimated Property Value 0.5% 0.6% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7%
Per Capita® $ 465 $ 486 $ 502 $ 458 $ 415 $ 406

* Federal revenues associated with constructing certain highway projects are pledged as "Loans Receivable from Primary Government".
These Pledged Future Revenues offset the unspent proceeds of the GARVEE bonds received by a component unit.

2 Personal income data can be found in Schedule 12.
3 Population data can be found in Schedule 12.
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SCHEDULE 11

STATE OF MAINE
PLEDGED FUTURE REVENUE COVERAGE

Last Six Fiscal Years

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicle (GARVEE) Bonds
Federal Aid Revenues $ 168,499,410 $ 167,405,491 $ 174,988,696 $ N/A $ N/A $ N/A
Annual Debt Service $ 5,578,914 $ 4,866,781 $ 366,480 $ N/A $ N/A $ N/A
Debt Service Coverage 3.31% 2.91% 0.21% N/A N/A N/A

The State has committed to appropriate each year a portion of the State’s future federal transportation funds, in amounts sufficient to cover the principal and
interest requirements of MMBB'’s debt for these bonds. The State’s receipt of these funds is subject to continuing federal appropriations.

SOURCE: Department of Transportation.
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STATE OF MAINE
DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

Last Six Fiscal Years

SCHEDULE 12

Maine:
Population (in thousands)*
Total Personal Income (in thousands)
Per Capita Personal Income*
Unemployment Rate®

2

United States:
Population (in thousands)*
Total Personal Income (in thousands)
Per Capita Personal Income®
Unemployment Rate®

1

1

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
1,344 1,334 1,322 1,315 1,308 1,297
44,240 42,819 41,300 39,510 37,281 35,998
32,917 32,098 31,252 30,046 28,497 27,756
4.2% 4.4% 4.6% 4.3% 4.9% 4.2%
302,633 299,103 296,410 293,657 290,850 287,985
11,595,412 10,882,821 10,251,639 9,705,504 9,157,257 8,872,871
38,315 36,385 34,586 33,050 31,484 30,810
4.5% 4.6% 5% 5.6% 6.3% 5.8%

Maine State Planning Office Projection for 2006 and 2007.
2 Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce.

U.S. Census Bureau for 2006 and 2007.
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Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce through 2005.

Local Area Unemployment Statistics Information and Analysis, Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor
Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce through 2005.



SCHEDULE 13
STATE OF MAINE

PRIVATE EMPLOYERS - TOP 25
NOT SEASONALLY ADJUSTED
RANKED BY NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES IN MAINE

Last Six Fiscal Years

Ranking

Company 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Hannaford Brothers COmMPanY..........ccoouitiiniin e e e e e e e 1 1 1 1 1 1
Wal Mart ASSOCIAES, INC....uie it it et e e e e e e e e e e et et aaaas 2 2 2 2 3 3
Maine MediCal CONEEI..........cce it e e et e e 3 4 4 4 5 5
Bath 1ron Works COrporation...........c..euvueevetsiee e iee et e eee e e vee e eeienaaneans 4 5 3 3 2 2
[ = 1= T T [ o PP P 5 3 5 5 4 4
Eastern Maine Medical CeNEr...........ou ittt e et e e e e e 6 7 7 9 10 9
ShaW'S SUPEIMAIKELS. .. ..ttt e e e e e e e e e e e aees 7 6 6 7 8 8
UNUM PROVIDENT COP .t ittt ettt et e et et et e et et ee e e e e eaea e aens 8 8 8 8 7 7
BanKnorth NLA ... e 9 9 100 10 12 12
MaineGeneral Medical Center - AUQUSTA. .......oveveiie it et e e ee e eee e 10 10 11 11 13 11
VEISO PaPEI ... oo et 11  NA NA NA NA NA
Central Maine Medical CeNEI...........iu i e e e e e e e e 12 14 14 14 21 22
BANK OF AMEIICAZ. ... ...t ee ettt ettt ettt 13 N/A NA NA NA NIA
Pratt & Whitney Aircraft GroUD..........uieiriiiie e e e e e e 14 15 15 15 16 13
HOME DEPOt USA, INC...coiiie e e e e e 15 13 13 13 19 24
L= oy Y [0 ] = | 16 16 16 16 NA 21
ST B TV T4 (=] o 17 17 17 23 22 17
Rite Aid Of MAINE, INC....vii i e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 18 18 18 17 23 20
Eldercare RESOUICES COMP.....cuiuuit ittt e et et e e et et e e e eeeenens 19 N/A N/A NA NA NA
JaCKSON Laboratory. ... ... cve e e e e e e e 20 19 19 20 24 25
Central Maing POWET CO.......uiiiie et ittt e e e et e e 21 21 20 22 20 16
Verizon New ENgland, INC.......oouiuiir i e e et e e e e 22 20 21 21 17 15
Aroostook MediCal CENEEN.........iuiitiiii et et e et e 23 22 25 N/A NA NA
1210117 [ T O] 1= o T 24 25 N/A NA NA NA
Rumford Paper COMPANY.........uitieiee et et et e et e et et e e neaean s 25 24 N/A NA NA NA
MBNA Marketing SYStEmMS, INC2.........ouveii oo e NA 11 9 6 6 6
INtErNAtioNal PaPEr O™ ... . e e e ettt e N/A 12 12 12 11 10
Anthem Health SyStemIS........ouiii e e e e e e e e N/A 23 22 18 18 14
1Y/ Tao T @1 I @0 g o o] - i e o Nt N/A N/A 23 19 N/A NA
/1= T @ )4 {0 o N 0] o 0 N/A  NA 24 24 NA 23
ALteNdant SErVICES, INC........iuuiui e e N/A- N/A NA 25 NA NA
University 0f Maing at OrON0..........iuit it iie et e e e e e et e e e eeaee e N/A N/A NA NA 9 N/A
University of SOUtNErn MainNe...........ooii i e e e e N/A N/A NA NA 14 N/A
Maine Community College SYStEMS........iuieiie it e e ee e eeeene N/A N/A NA NA 15 N/A
(@37 a1 o] 10 I @] o o] =1 1T 1 N/A N/A NA NA 25 NA
Great NOrthern Paper, INC.......o.ui i e e e et e e e e veaeen e N/A  N/A N/A NA NA 18
Fairchild Semiconductor COrporation.............cvvuvrie v et e e, N/A N/A NA NA NA 19

* Verso Paper, purchased International Paper Co. mills in Bucksport and Jay
2 Bank of America purchased MBNA Marketing Systems, Inc.

The total employment for the top 25 employers on the list is 66,337. This represents 11.05% of the statewide
employment, or 13.24% of the total private employment for 2nd quarter, 2007.

SOURCE: Maine Department of Labor, Center for Workforce Research and Information
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STATE OF MAINE

SCHEDULE 14

SCHEDULE OF STATE GOVERNMENT FULL TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES

BY POLICY AREA

Last Six Fiscal Years

Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment
Business Licensing & Regulation

Economic Development & Workforce Training
Education

Governmental Support & Operations

Health and Human Services

Justice and Protection

Labor

Natural Resources Development & Protection
Transportation Safety & Development

Total Full Time Equivalents

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
107.4 107.4 109.5 109.5 * *
413.2 413.2 417.2 417.2 * *
624.1 624.1 892.5 892.5 834.6 819.7
209.6 209.6 215.0 215.0 343.7 442.8

2,247.5 2,222.5 1,696.3 1,754.3 2,531.9 2,497.9
3,738.9 3,767.4 4,025.5 4,047.5 5,483.2 5,412.2
2,937.6 2,909.6 2,969.7 2,971.2 840.5 1,022.5
* * * * 851.0 851.0

1,623.2 1,522.3 1,615.3 1,620.8 1,294.4 1,287.7
2,300.7 2,301.7 2,390.5 2,390.5 2,390.5 2,390.5
14,102.2 14,077.8 14,331.5 14,4185 14,569.8 14,724.3

*Note: Statutory agency realignment among policy areas occurred in 2003.

SOURCE: Maine Bureau of Budget.
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STATE OF MAINE

SCHEDULE 15

OPERATING INDICATORS AND CAPITAL INFORMATION

Fiscal Years Ended June 30

Operating Indicators by Function:
Business Licensing & Regulation
Number of licenses issued

Education

Students enrolled in the free/reduced lunch program

Economic Development & Workforce Training
Unemployed persons

Governmental Support & Operations
Return on investments
Number of lottery tickets sold, in millions

Health and Human Services
Percentage of population enrolled in MaineCare®
Number of TANF cases®
Number of members served by Dirigo Health

Justice and Protection
Average Number of Adult Inmates
Average Number of Juvenile Inmates
Number of guard troops
Number of cases tried in the court system

Natural Resources and Development
Number of park passes purchased
Number of visitors to State parks
Number of hunting and fishing licenses sold®

Transportation Safety & Development
Number of construction projects

! Based on the average enrollees over the fiscal year.

% Based on the average number of cases over the fiscal year.

% Calendar year based.
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2007 2006
57,268 124,543
71,536 69,125
30,700 32,100

5.25% 4.10%
234 229
26% 26%
12,631 12,821
24,110 18,067
2,060 2,078
203 275
3,168 3,131
278,088 281,006
10,092 9,016
2,063,356 2,083,310
462,680 350,547
271 195



SCHEDULE 16

STATE OF MAINE
CAPTIAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION

Capital Assets by Function: 2007 2006 *
Governmental Support & Operations
Vehicles in the motor pool 1,738 1,675

Health and Human Services
Number of regional offices 16 16

Justice and Protection

Number of correctional facilities 8 8
Number of armories 17 17
Number of State police barracks 8 8
Number of patrol cars 541 521
Number of courts 46 56

Natural Resources and Development

Total acreage of State parks 100,092 99,935
Number of State park buildings 526 519
Number of warden's vehicles and marine patrol watercraft 682 664

Transportation Safety & Development
Number of DOT vehicles and equipment 1,625 1,163
Number of regional DOT active buildings 312 647

Per GASB 44 "If a government did not previously prepare one or more of
these schedules it may implement them prospectively and it is not required to
retroactively report years prior to the implementation date of this statement.
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